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1. DEPARTMENT GENERAL INFORMATION

PHYSICAL ADDRESS: DR JAMES MOROKA AVE

GARONA BUILDING

FIRST FLOOR

MMABATHO

2735

POSTAL ADDRESS: Private Bag X2044

MMABATHO

2735

TELEPHONE NUMBER/S: 018 388 3429/3432

EMAIL ADDRESS: ssemaswe@nwpg.gov.za

WEBSITE ADDRESS : http://www.nwpg.gov.za/education/
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2. LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS/ACRONYMS

APP Annual Performance Plan MTEF Medium-Term Expenditure
Framework
DBE Department of Basic Education NDP National Development Plan
DDM District Development Model NPR National Population Register
(NPR)
DHA Department of Home Affairs NQF National Qualifications
Framework
DIP District Improvement Plan NSNP National School Nutrition
Programme
DTT District Task Team NSC National Senior Certificate
ECD Early Childhood Development NGO Non-Governmental Organisation
EFAL English First Additional Language | OVC Orphaned and  Vulnerable
Children
EGRA Early Grade Reading Assessment | PCL Professional Communities of
Learning
EIG Education Infrastructure Grant PPI Programme Performance
Indicator
EMIS Education Management | PPM Programme Performance
Information System Measure
EPWP Expanded Public Works | PFMA Public Finance Management Act
Programme
FSS Full-Service schools POI Programme Output Indicator
GESF Gender Equality Strategic | PPP Public-Private Partnership
Framework
GDP Gross Domestic Product QLTC Quality Learning and Teaching
Campaign
GGP Gross Geographic Product SASAMS | School  Administration  and
Management System
GNI Gross National Income S Senior Certificate
HEI Higher Education Institution SDIP Service Delivery Improvement
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Plan
HDI Human Development Index SIAS Screening Identification
Assessment and Support

[IAL Incremental Introduction of | SIP School Improvement Plan
African Language

IHDI Inequality-adjusted Human | SMT School Management Team
Development Index

ICT Information and Communication | SETA Sector Education and Training
Technology Authority

IGD Institutional Governance | SACE South  African Council for
Development Educators

IQMS Integrated Quality Management | SAPS South African Police Services
System

JASF Job-Access Strategic Framework | SASA South African Schools’ Act

LSSS Learner Social Support Services | SGB School Governing Body

LSPID Learners with Severe to Profound | SMT School Management Team
Intellectual Disability

LSEN Learners with Special Education | SOI Standard Output Indicator
Needs

LTSM Learning and Teaching Support | SPMDS | Staff Performance Management
Materials and Development System

MST Mathematics, Science and | TIMSS Trends in International Maths

Technology

and Science Study
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3. FOREWORD BY THE MEC

Ms ML Matsemela
Hon. MEC for Education
Department of Education

MEC FOREWORD

The academic year 2020 will remains the most challenging year for the country and the education
sector in particular, thus far. We moved from a no schooling period, to gradual and staggered

introduction of Grades for the major part of the year.

| present this Annual Report amidst the Covid-19 pandemic that continues to disrupt our livelihood.
Last year our learners experienced a hard time with their studies due to the unbearable Covid—19
pandemic. Learners stayed home for five months to avoid the spread of the virus. This led to the
differentiated time-tabling wherein they had to attend school on different days or weeks. Our
performance as a province dropped from number 4 to number 5. The Grade 12 class of 2020

obtained a percentage of 76, 2%, which is a decrease from the 2019 86,4% performance.

In most areas remote teaching and learning could not take place during the hard lockdown due to
lack of resources. We introduced the Dial-a-Tutor programme with the intention of providing support
to learners with no cost to them. They accessed the service through a toll-free number and could

speak to experts on various subjects.

Maya Angelo in her poem, “Still | rise” emphasizes the spirit of “No surrender, No retreat” in the
phase of huge challenges. There is no situation that will remain permanent; still we rose during
pandemic and still we will rise after the pandemic. The entire world is moving fast towards the 4th
Industrial Revolution (4IR), the sector has prioritized the usage of the Information and
Communication Technology (ICT) in schools. We have procured 30 292 tablets for Grade 12
learners and 1 198 laptops for Grade 12 teachers. The intervention is done with the view of

enhancing teaching and learning in and outside the classroom environment.
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Partnership of the department with network providers benefitted schools through donation of
devices for use by both the teachers and learners. MTN donated 100 tablets to 10 schools including
Sim cards with 500MB data for a month. The Vodacom partnership has provided e-schooling
content to schools in the Rustenburg, Kagisano Molopo and Mafikeng Sub districts. They provided
the selected schools with Sim cards and routers that enables learners to create a shortcut to

accessing content.

Department of Education cares about every individual in our various school communities and that
everyone deserves a safe environment. Our schools are faced with the massive social challenges
of bullying and Gender Based Violence. Since Education is a societal matter, through our
programme,, “Ngwana sejo oa tlhakanelwa” , championed by Quality Learning and Teaching
Campaign (QLTC), we managed to mobilize various stakeholders to partner with us in making our

schools safer for learning and teaching.

We appreciate the private sector that continues to work with us in ensuring that we provide quality
education to learners at all times by building schools of high quality. | want to convey my sincerest
gratitude to those mining houses that have collaborated on a 50 — 50 partnership with the
department in building the schools infrastructure, namely, Royal Bafokeng Platinum, Samancor and
Impala Platinum Mine. | also want to take this opportunity to express our gratitude to both MTN SA
Foundation and Vodacom for their varied donations that included electronic gadgets, data and

content to our schools.

The demand for provisioning of Educators in the 2020 academic year was more challenging
because of pandemic. Educators with comorbidities worked from home and thus substitute
educators had to be provided within the constrained resources. We have gradually, since 2019
translated temporary educators to permanent in terms of the Education Labour Relations Council
(ELRC) Collective Agreement (CA) No 4 of 2018. The Departments worked tirelessly to make sure

that there were no learners without teachers.

We managed to continue with the Pro-poor programmes during this pandemic. Even before
reopening of schools for all learners, we started feeding learners through National Schools Nutrition
Programme (NSNP). The Department procured and distributed sanitary pads to 116 979 girl
learners in quintile 1-3 schools. This effort was aimed at ensuring that vulnerable adolescent girls
did not miss school during menstruation period, and eventually drop out because of menstruation-

related issues.

Owing to the advent of the pandemic, Departmental infrastructure plan for 2020/2021 had to be

amended in line with new Covid-19 protocols. Part of the allocated budget had to be re-purposed

x Ngwanalsejololaitlhakanelwa'y
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and some projects increased while others reduced. This was to ensure that schools were provided
protective equipment against Covid. The Department had to accelerate implementation of

provisioning of water, sanitation, fence and additional classrooms.

In the mid-1940s as the world approached the end of the Second World War, the then British Prime
Minister, Winston Churchill, was credited with having said "Never let a good crisis go to waste."
What is inspiring about Churchill's quote is that it causes us to look for a silver lining during a crisis
and to seek opportunities where they might not have been before. The pandemic exposed the
inequalities in our education system, as well as the glaring disparities that still exists from one
school to the other. This crisis will not go to waste. As team Education, we will make sure that it

doesn’t. All lessons learned and working shall be implemented.

My gratitude goes to Team Education for their sterling work and dedication amidst the pandemic.

The role played by oversight structures and partners did not go unnoticed. It is highly appreciated.

DATE: 31 AUGUST 2021

MEC: NORTH WEST DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
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REPORT OF THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER

Mr JNT Mohlala
Accounting Officer
Department of Education

Overview of the operations of the department

| am presenting this Annual Report as an account of what we have been able to achieve
during this difficult time. When this year started, there were a lot of uncertainties on whether
the academic year will go to waste or be salvaged. We started working from our homes in
March 2020, not knowing how it would be done. It was done. As lockdown rules were eased,
we adjusted accordingly. Team Education managed to soldier on, and the Annual Report

2020/21 is the testimony to our successes and our challenges.

The Annual Performance Plan 202021 had to be revised because of the pandemic that
befell the globe. Budgets had to be repurposed and in other instances reduced, leading to
reduction of targets. Review of this financial year summarises progress made in respect of
deliverables on key focus areas of service delivery, while recognising the constrained
environment. The Department has received a qualified audit opinion, mainly because
historic immovable assets ranging from the year 2013. This is attributable to the limited
monitoring of completed projects and updating of the asset register timeously resulting in the
auditors raising material findings on assets and project values disclosed in the annual

financial statements.

The budget for the financial year 2020/21 was therefore allocated to respond to the seven

National Priorities. | will in this overview, present the synopsis of some of our achievements:

Analyses of results

The Department produced 76.19% matric pass in 2020 which was 10% less than in 2019.
The decline was mainly because of Covid-19 which interrupted the academic vyear
extensively. It was a difficult year, but the quality of our results improved. This was evident
in the increase of candidates who achieved Bachelors, passes with a Diploma and Higher

Certificates.

x Ngwanalsejololaitlhakanelwa'y
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The advent of Covid-19 brought along several challenges to the class of 2020:

e |t affected our livelihood and thus the rate of absenteeism was higher leading to the
loss of teaching and learning time. Educators with comorbidities worked from home
and left many learners to their own accord.

e Prolonged closure of schools was also a hindrance, and many learners were affected
psychologically.

e There was no direct intervention for progressed learners, which normally takes place
during the autumn recess

e Learners did not sit for the June examinations which normally provides an indication
of the gaps the curriculum and determines the nature of interventions

e Only few learners could be taken into camps as a result of social distancing

e The cohort was a bigger class in numbers, with progressed learners writing all

subjects
All the grades were able to sit for examinations and did well with the revised curriculum.

Teacher Development

For 2020/21 financial year, Teacher Development programmes could not run as expected
due to inaccessibility of teachers due to COVID -19 pandemic. There was a need to shift to
online training as venue based training could not materialise. There were however serious
challenges because of inadequate resources and not all office buildings and schools had

proper connectivity for online training to be realised.

A total number of five hundred and fifty eighty (558) grade 7 Mathematics teachers were
registered for a Short Learning Programme by the University of Free State through ETDP
Seta for online learning. Not all teachers had laptops that could support the application used
by the University (Global Protect), and this led to some of them being despondent to

continue.

A special focus was made on the early grade reading where a total number of 2 300 primary
school language teachers were trained on content and methodology. In addition, principals
of schools were trained on Quality Management System that enhances effectiveness in the

schooling system.
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Reading

Reading for meaning is number one sector priority for 2019-2024. The Department accepts
early grade reading skills as the basic foundation that determines a child’s educational

progress through school to higher education institutions and into the work place.

For 2020/21 financial year, Educators for Foundation Phase and those for Intermediate
Phase were trained on methodologies of teaching English First Additional Language. We
also managed to train educators on methodologies of the implementation of English First
Additional Language and Setswana Home Language in Grades 1-3. Online platforms were

created and are available for all teachers.

Schools started to implement the Early Grade Reading Assessment tool to determine the
progress of their learners in reading. It helps teacher to see where learners are compared to

benchmarks and where attention is still needed.
Three Stream Model of Basic Education

The Three-Stream Model places leaners from grades 10 to 12 into three different streams of

education summarised as follows:

. Academic: The current and traditional general stream which prepares learners for

further studies in higher education institutions.

. Technical vocational: This stream prepares learners for technical colleges,

including subjects focusing on electrical, mechanical, and civil engineering; and

. Technical occupational: This stream focuses on preparing learners for work
immediately after completing secondary school education. In the main, it
concentrates on the development of skills like hair dressing, boiler making, welding,
panel-beating, spray-painting, upholstery, visual arts, woodwork, glasswork, glazing,

farming, etc.

The province has 13 Agriculture focus schools and, due to budget constraints only 5, have
been adequately funded through the Maths, Science and Technology grant, to ensure
provisioning of resources for practical assessments in both Agricultural Technology and
Agricultural Management Practices. A total of 10 Public schools started piloting occupational
subjects in Grade 8. These schools have selected subjects such as woodworking,
construction, electrical and mechanical technology, Auto mechanics, civil technology and

welding and this focus will continue in the 2021/22 financial year.

x Ngwanalsejololaitlhakanelwa'y
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Early Childhood Development

Training for the Grade R educators and the pre-Grade R practitioners was thwarted by the
Covid-19 pandemic, however in mitigation, the Department provided them with training kits
in lieu of a face-to-face training. To support the provision of quality of Early Childhood
Development (ECD), 147 community-based ECD centres received a subsidy during the
2021/22 financial year.

The ECD function shift from the Department of Social Development(DSD) to the Department
of Education (DoE) gained momentum with the Project Management Team and Work
streams (i.e. technical teams) having been established and formalised through the much

appreciated assistance of the Department of Basic Education in 2020/2021 financial year.
School Infrastructure

The outbreak of COVID-19 came with new protocols, amongst them, that leaners and
teachers had to maintain social distancing and personal protective materials had to be
bought for schools. To procure these additional needs, R350 millions of infrastructure grant

was repurposed.

The advent of Covid-19 implied that more classrooms were needed, access to running
water, proper fencing in order to manage access control, and appropriate sanitation facilities

were all a must have. This was done to prevent and manage the spread of Corona virus.
Learning and Teaching Support Material (LTSM)

Stationery, Textbooks and Workbooks have been delivered to all schools in the province.
Delivery went on until February 2021 unlike other years where deliveries were completed in
November. COVID-19 impacted negatively on our procurement and delivery Plan. LTSM
service providers were appointed late due to the lockdown that was imposed on the country
in March 2020.

Pro-poor programmes

No Fee school's policy ensures that learners from poor communities do have access to
education. The national norm for no fee schools is 68.7 per cent and the province is at 88
per cent of the total learner population. All schools in quintile 1-3 benefitted from the no-fee
policy. We continued to feed all learners in quintile 1-3 during lockdown when schools were
still closed. For the year under review, more girl learners were provided with sanitary towels
because in the first quarter very few learners were at school and thus the saving was used to
increase the number.
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Virements /roll overs

The final expenditure for Compensation of employees as at end of financial year exceeded
the adjusted budget. Savings identified from goods and services allocation and
compensation of employees apart from Programmes 2 and 5 were done to defray over
expenditure.

The Department has received the following roll overs in the 2019/20 financial year
Conditional Grant Roll-overs — R2, 806 million

The Department was granted a rollover in the sum of R2, 806 million from the previous
financial year.

These funds were allocated as follows:

e Learners with Profound Intellectual Disabilities Grant R 665 thousand

e Maths, Science and Technology Grant R 2,141 million

Equitable Share Roll-overs — R35.260 million

Programme 2 — Public Ordinary School Education

Learner Teacher Support Material - R30 million
Textbooks and supplementary materials ordered was delivered towards the end March
2020, as a result some of the invoices received from publishers and distributors could not be

processed for payment before financial year-end.

Programme 2 — Public Ordinary School Education

Top-up school furniture: R5.260 million

The roll over amount represents outstanding orders for school furniture that could not be
finalised before closure of the previous financial year due to high volumes of official orders

placed with the suppliers at the beginning of the year.
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Discontinued key activities / activities to be discontinued

>

None

New or proposed key activities

>

Gifts

>

ECD Function Shift from Department of Social Development to Department of

Education.
Presidential Proclamation
The scope of the operations of the department will be increased.

Budget will follow function: Budget of the functions transferred by the Social
Development will be transferred to Education, Exact determination of financial
implications not yet finalised since the number of employees to be transferred is

not yet confirmed.
and Donations received in kind from non-related parties

None

Exemptions and deviations received from the National Treasury

>

None

Events after the reporting date

>

Other

>

None

None
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Approval and sign off

Ms SM Semaswe Mr. JNT Mohlala
Superintendent General Accounting Officer
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STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY AND CONFIRMATION OF ACCURACY FOR THE
ANNUAL REPORT

To the best of my knowledge and belief, | confirm the following:
All information and amounts disclosed throughout the annual report are consistent.
The annual report is complete, accurate and is free from any omissions.

The annual report has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines on the annual

report as issued by National Treasury.

The Annual Financial Statements (Part E) have been prepared in accordance with the
modified cash standard and the relevant frameworks and guidelines issued by the

National Treasury.

The Accounting Officer is responsible for the preparation of the annual financial

statements and for the judgements made in this information.

The Accounting Officer is responsible for establishing and implementing a system of
internal control that has been designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the
integrity and reliability of the performance information, the human resources
information and the annual financial statements.

The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual

financial statements.

In my opinion, the annual report fairly reflects the operations, the performance
information, the human resources information and the financial affairs of the
department for the financial year ended 31 March 2021.

Yours faithfully

Mrs.S.M.SEMASWE Mr.J.N.T.Mohlala

Superintendent General Accounting Officer
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7.1. Vision

A caring and supportive community for excellence in Basic Education.

7.2. Mission

To protect and promote the right of every LEARNER to quality, equitable, culture-based, and

complete basic education where:

% Learners learn in a child-friendly, gender-sensitive, safe, and motivating
environment;

*%*  Teachers facilitate learning and constantly nurture every learner;

% Administrative staff ensure an enabling and supportive environment for
effective learning and teaching; and

% Family, community, and other stakeholders are actively engaged and share

responsibility to support and inculcate life-long learning

7.3. Values

Key corporate values the North West Department of Education intend to comply with include:

Inclusion We recognize diversity for redress and equity
Excellence We move beyond compliance by going an extra mile
Integrity We respond to our fellow employees and other stakeholders with

honesty, fairness and respect

Transparency We are open in our functions and operations for public interest and
comment

Innovation We will continually strive for better and new ways of doing things

Empathy We appreciate the context in which people operate and express
themselves

Accountability We take responsibility of the consequences of our actions

x Ngwanalsejololaitlhakanelwa'y
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6. LEGISLATIVE AND OTHER MANDATES

A. Legislative Mandates

The following list of Acts elaborates the legislative mandate of the Department:-

Act

Brief Description

The National Education
Policy Act (NEPA), 1996
(Act 27 of 1996)

This Act provides for the determination of national education

policy
management, governance, programmes, monitoring, evaluation

for planning, provision, financing, co-ordination,
and wellbeing of the education system by the Minister, subject to
the competence of the provincial legislatures in terms of section
146 of the Constitution, principles listed in section 4 of the Act,
and the

education. It further provides for consultative structures for the

relevant provisions of provincial law relating to
determination of national education policy and legislation in the
form of the Council for Education Ministers (CEM), Heads of
Education Departments Committee (HEDCOM), and other
consultative bodies on any matter the Minister may identify, as
stated in section 11 of the Act and, where applicable, the

Education Labour Relations Council.

South African Schools
Act, (SASA), 1996. (Act
84 of 1996 as amended)

This Act provides for a uniform system for the organisation,
governance and funding of schools. It ensures that all learners
have the right of access to quality education without
discrimination, and makes schooling compulsory for children

aged 7-14 years.

The

Educators

Employment  of
Act, 1998.
(Act No. 76 of 1998)

This Act provides for the employment of educators by the state
and regulates the conditions of service, discipline, retirement and

discharge of educators.

The
Council
Act, 2000 (Act 31 of
2000)

South

for

African

Educators

This Act deals with the registration of educators in the teaching
profession with the South African Council for Educators (SACE),

and further provides for promotion, development and

enhancement of the teaching profession as well as the
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Act Brief Description
enforcement of the Code of Professional Ethics for educators to
protect the dignity of the profession on continuous basis.

Public Finance| This Act applies to departments, public entities listed in Schedule

Management Act, 1999
(Act 1 of 1999)

2 or 3, constitutional institutions and provincial legislatures
subject to subsection 3(2) of the Act, and regulates
accountability, transparency and sound management of the
revenue, expenditure, assets and liabilities of institutions listed in
section 3 of the Act, and also contains responsibilities of persons

entrusted with financial management.

Public Service Act, 1994
as amended
[Proclamation No. 103 of
1994].

This Act provides for the organisation and administration of the
public service and regulates the conditions of employment, terms
of office, discipline, retirement and discharge of members of the

public service.

Labour Relations Act &
Basic  Conditions  of
Employment Act 75 of
1997

These are the leading legislations in matters of labour. They give
effect to section 27 and 23 (1) of the constitution. These
legislations recognise the right to a fair labour practice and to

comply with international standards of employment

The Promotion of
Administrative ~ Justice
Act [PAJA], 2000 (Act 3
of 2000) and the
Promotion of Access to
Information Act [PAIA],

2000 (Act 2 of 2000)

These Acts are essential legislative instruments and apply, in
the case of PAJA, to all administrative acts performed by the
state administration that have an effect on members of the
public. In particular, it deals with the requirements for procedural
fairness if an administrative decision affects a person (section 3)
or public (section 4), reasons for administrative action and
grounds for judicial review (sections 5 and 6). PAIA on the other
hand deals with section 32 of the Constitution, the right of
access to information ‘records’ held by public and private bodies
such as all documents, recordings and visual material, but does

not apply during civil and criminal litigation.

x Ngwanalsejololaitlhakanelwa'y
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Act

Brief Description

Promotion of Equality
and Prevention of Unfair
Discrimination Act 4 of
2000

This Act gives effect to section 9 read with item 23 (1) of
Schedule 6 of the Constitution, so as to prevent and prohibit
unfair discrimination and harassment; to promote equality and
eliminate unfair discrimination; to prevent and prohibit hate

speech; and to provide for matters connected therewith.

State Liability Act 20 of
1957 as amended

This Act consolidates the law relating to the liability of the state
in respect of acts or omissions of its servants or officials.

B. POLICY MANDATES

Act

Brief Description

Education
White Paper 2

EWP 2 deals with decisions on a new structure for school
organisation, including a framework of school categories,
proposals concerning school ownership and governance, and
observations on school funding. The policy sought to address
the huge disparities among South African schools by providing
for a new structure of school organisation and system of
governance which would be, inter alia, workable and
transformative; uniform and coherent; and yet flexible enough to
take into account the wide range of school contexts, the
availability or absence of management skills, parents’
experience or inexperience in school governance, and the

physical distance of many parents from their children’s school.
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Act

Brief Description

Education
White Paper 5

EWP 5 proposes the establishment of a national system of
Reception Year provision that will comprise three types:
Reception Year programmes within the public primary school
system; Reception Year programmes within community-based
sites; and independent provision of Reception Year programmes.
The White Paper undertakes to provide grants-in-aid, through
provincial departments of education, to school governing bodies
who respond effectively to the early childhood education (ECED)
challenge outlined in the White Paper. With regard to pre-school
or early childhood development, the Department of Education
plays a supportive role to the Department of Social
Development, the lead department in terms of the Children’s Act,
2005. The National Education Department, with regard to the
Reception Year, determines policy and plays a monitoring role,
while provincial departments provide the services with
independent providers. The Reception Year, Grade R (for
children aged 4 turning 5), is being implemented through
programmes at public primary schools, at community-based sites

and through independent provision.

Education
White Paper 6

This EWP 6 deals with critical constitutional rights to basic and
further education and equality in the provision of education and
educational opportunities in particular for learners who
experience and have experienced barriers to learning and
development, or who have dropped out of learning because of
the inability of the education and training system to
accommodate their needs. It recognises a vision of an inclusive
education and training system and funding requirements which
include the acknowledgment that: all children and youth can
learn and need support; the creation of enabling education
structures, systems and learning methodologies to meet the
needs of all learners; acknowledging and respecting differences
in learners, whether due to age, gender, ethnicity, language,

class, disability, HIV or other infectious diseases; the overhauling

x Ngwanalsejololaitlhakanelwa'y
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Act

Brief Description

of the process of identifying, assessing and enrolling learners in
special schools, and its replacement by one that acknowledges
the central role played by educators and parents; the general
orientation and introduction of management, governing bodies
and professional staff to the inclusion model, and the targeting of
the early identification of diverse learning needs and intervention
in the Foundation Phase; the establishment of district-based
support to provide co-ordinated professional services that draws
on expertise in further and higher education and local
communities, etc.; the launch of the national advocacy and
information programme in support of the inclusion model,
focusing on the roles, responsibilities and rights of all learning
institutions, parents and local communities; and highlighting the
focal programmes and reporting on their progress.

Education
White Paper 7

EWP 7 is about e-Education and revolves around the use of
information and communication technology (ICT) to accelerate
the achievement of national education goals. It is about
connecting learners and teachers to each other and to
professional support services, and providing platforms for
learning. It seeks to connect learners and teachers to better
information, ideas and one another via effective combinations of
pedagogy and technology in support of educational reform. The
White Paper is premised on the recognition that learning for
human development in the learning society requires collaborative
learning and a focus on building knowledge. ICTs create access
to learning opportunities, redress inequalities, improve the quality
of learning and teaching, and deliver lifelong learning. ICTs
further play an important role in the transformation of education
and training, transform teaching and learning, and shift the focus
to an inclusive and integrated practice where learners work
collaboratively, develop shared practices, engage in meaningful
contexts and develop creative thinking and problem solving

skills.
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C. UPDATES TO INSTITUTIONAL POLICIES AND STRATEGIES

The following departmental policies will support our strategies:-

North West Schools Act 3 of 1998

Gazette 7806 of 2018 — provincial SGB election regulations

National Norms & Standards Funding Policy (NNSSF) : Basic School Financial Records.
Government Notice No. 17 of Government Gazette No. 38397 — Amended National
Norms and Standards for School Funding which were published in Government Notice
No. 890, Government Gazette No. 29179 of 31 August 2006

Education Sector ICT Strategy

National Strategy For Learner Attainment

National Curriculum Statement (NCS)

Circular 31 of 2010: Grade R Policy on Subsidy Payment to Grade Practitioners in
Community Centres

National integrated Early Childhood Development Policy, 2015

National Policy on HIV/AIDS for Learners and Educators in Public Schools.

Regulations pertaining to the conduct, administration and management of assessment
for the National Senior Certificate (11 December 2006)

Addendum to FET Policy document, National Curriculum Statement on the National
Framework regulating Learners with Special Needs

National Planning on an Equitable Provision of an Enabling School Physical Teaching
and Learning Environment (21 November 2008)

National Policy of Whole School Evaluation (July 2001)

D. National Policy Framework for Teacher Education and Development in South Africa (26 April
2007)

x Ngwanalsejololaitlhakanelwa'y
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F.

ENTITIES REPORTING TO THE MEC

None
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PART B: PERFORMANCE INFORMATION
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1. AUDITOR GENERAL’'S REPORT: PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES

The AGSA currently performs certain audit procedures on the performance information to provide
reasonable assurance in the form of an audit conclusion. The audit conclusion on the performance
against predetermined objectives is included in the report to management, with material findings
being reported under the Predetermined Objectives heading in the Report on other legal and

regulatory requirements section of the auditor’s report.

Refer to page 246 of the Report of the Auditor General, published as Part E: Financial Information.

2. OVERVIEW OF DEPARTMENTAL PERFORMANCE
2.1 Service Delivery Environment

The Service Delivery environment for the annually fluid organizational environment and transitional
period of March 2020/21 financial year, and thereafter, is described as unexpected, unpredictable,
revealing and highly disruptive of the plans laid down before. From continental, national and
provincial perspective and practice it was unprecedented and disruptive in a positive and negative
ways, as both a threat and an opportune moment to test organizational adaptability, flexibility and

responsiveness to uncertainty.

As a negative input factor, Covid 19 devoid of ready solution e.g. medical treatment or vaccine,
engendered socio-economic protocols that impacted social behavior reengineering. The key result
has been a situation where education has been mainly a contact service delivery practice
transformed to being a “social distanced” resourced service. This became an opportune moment of

upping activities as provided in Education White Paper 7.

And the above also is question of what was happening around the issue of ‘home schooling’. For
the public schooling system, only 67,1% compared to 84% of the private schooling system, there
was engagement in home schooling during lockdown. The figures are not encouraging looking at
the size differences of these systems of education provisioning. But we know in terms of results how

the matriculants fared in this context.

The challenges in relation to the unprecedented context are real. The practices and activities of
providing reading skills have been minimized as a result amongst others through revealed glaring

disparities in access to data and other relevant infrastructure. The delaying in the implementation in

x Ngwanalsejololaitlhakanelwa'y
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full force of the three streams education model impacted upon by such as measures for contact
between education stakeholders. While children could be numerically enrolled in schools the
challenge is the amount of time availed and therefore lessened by the intervention mechanism such

as platooning.

The challenge of Covid 19 as an opportunity in relation to the provincial and national Fourth
Industrial Revolution as a result of it disrupting material and technological supply chains
internationally demonstrates low level responses in exploiting it for increased manufacturing
capacity as an outcome of provincial education. Certain education institutions could be upgraded to
centres of scientific/technological experimentations and production for instance technical high

schools.

The environment and context defined has constrained the intended delivery time of migrating the 0-

4 ECD subsystem to the department of education.

In a context defined by negative impact of Covid 19 on the economy of the country, which
contracted it significantly, the normal legal procedures regarding governance, management and
labour relations practices have been impacted upon. But this has not endeared the other

stakeholders to others therefore cohesion, social or otherwise is likely to be a victim.

However, the emerging new relationships should be encouraging to the education stakeholders in
this context to allow for schooling and education to be modified not only to remain the four wall
setup system but to be virtual to allow teachers to be defenders of real truths against pedaled fake
knowledge or miseducation industries. Even more is the important point of investment in ICT and
4IR skills sets for manufacturing capacity not only for transfer of technology, is reemphasized here.
Fortunately there is a base. In Statistics South Africa survey on the impact of these descriptors of
the service delivery environment, 75,9% of respondents indicated they had smart phones that could

be used for home learning. 36,1% had access to tablets and 61,2% had to laptops.

Therefore, other than the importance of reorganizing the school this way, and reorganizing the
migrant labour system trampled family institution as a delivery and mediating systems of education,
the investment as such begins to decolonize the industries as such through education. Covid 19 is
an opportunity to have a situation of teachers teaching in four walled setup while “zoomed” with
those at home at the same time. Platooning system transformed into an opportunity not a barrier,
however this is precedent on the investment. The rechanneling of resources should be to such
solutions on the assumption of not knowing how long will Covid 19 and its new thousands variants
will be with us. This reality should be coupled with attending to the problem where 68,4% of children

during the lockdown reporting they had difficulty in adapting with the new mode of learning.
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Statistics demonstrate that before lockdown, 95, 6% of people worked from non-residential and
many people during lockdown including public servants, 77,9% worked from their homes and only
15, 1% worked from non-residential building. This should indicate organizations surviving and

ensuring a sense of productive normality through this restructured work arrangements.

Other statistics that defined the service delivery environment for implementation of education
services are that before lockdown 76,6% breadwinners from which the children are dependents
reported getting income from wages and salaries and there was 9,9% nose dive during lockdown.
On the other end statistics show that people indicating no income anymore upping from 5.2% before
lockdown to 15,4% during lockdown. This situation points at the reinforcement and reproduction of

triple problems of poverty, unemployment and inequality.

The service delivery environment for education has brought an understanding of a new normal that
says there should the real and material “I" and virtual “Me” living in the same space and time
continuum. The reality of four walled setup and the “virtual” school not in dualism but in a
continuum. The learner in classroom and the learner “zoomed”. This is a situation that is
ascertained by the statistical fact that says 8 of 10 respondents said attending school poses a risk to
the children. The latter is public health and safety contextual issue. And that during lockdown and
when waves after wave are predicted about 68.5% of children spent their time watching television
than usual, 50,0% playing video games than usual and 60,2% being on the internet than usual
during the lockdown. Left uninterrupted this situation might become new cultural norm. Investment
in ICT is necessary to ensure reduction of time and space gaps and between the learner at school

and learner ‘zoomed’.

The state levers should be used in a resolute manner to attend to these gaps, challenges and
solutions on behalf of the historically disadvantaged. The service delivery context dictates no
hesitant use of state levers to transform economy through education to serve the people. Covid 19
as a critical disruptive factor should challenge the receiving mode of existence to productive and

creative mode of existence.

x Ngwanalsejololaitlhakanelwa'y

37



NORTH WEST DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

*

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021

%tre %t'8 %0T %8'8 %ET
(TLL¥T) %0T (sez 9) (812 9) (0£9 ¥9) (0005 9)
%18 %9'78 %G9 %ZL €8 %E8
(T9z6%) %S9 (zz8 29) (229 ov) (€82 ¥75) (000 19) 6 dpeio
%69 %629 %SG %L°LS %09
(6e8SY) %SG (029 tv) (0g0 6€) (029 €9) (000 2€)
%T6 %9°'€6 %G. %89°26 %EB6 9 apeis
(92109) %S. (8e 99) (ezz €9) (129 €9) (000 09)
%8 %G'98 %G. %6 %18 £ apels
(90589) %G. (059 59) (2€6 99) (zes v2) (000 G9) A1end
%88 %9°68 %S %16 %gg | PUE  Anueno
(95809) %GL (882 L9) (5€6 99) (962 89) (000 29)
[enoy s1abue | [enioy s1ebue | [enoy s1abue |
12/0202 12/0202 02/6102 02/6102 6T/8102 6T/8102

plepuels palisaq

prepuels ualind

"a1ep 0] sjuswaAalyode ayl pue uejd AaAlap adiAlas ay 1ybIybiy mojaq sajgel ayL

ue|d 1uawanoidwi AlaAlleg 82IAI8S ¢

38



NORTH WEST DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

*

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021

[enuIA pue 81Sgam
[eq.l|leN uo Sal01s
Buissaooe ‘ddysreymn
ybnoiyr uoneuasaid
[ensiA oipny

ybnoay: pabebus
Alre|nbal alom
slayoeal pue 108lgns

paseq [00YdS) LINS

S|o0yos |[e 10}
Ausuend :g9s'T

:sassaooud
juswabebug

1se| ay1 buunp 0zoz
10} s19bpnq panoidde

SI00Y3S JO %86 INOQY

‘ainpaso.d

Bunsaw prepuels
Buimojjoy sbunssw
play S|ooyas palonuowl
JO %¥6 1SsoW 1Y

paseq |00YdS) LNS

S|00yos ||e 10}
Ausuend :g9S'T

:sassaso.d
juswabehug

Alyuo\= paseq
|00Yd2S) LINS

S|00Yoas ||e 10}
Asuend :g9S'T

:sassaso.d
juswabebug

uolrelnsuo)d

¢£S81Ield1}auag 99IAISS 1IN0 1JNSUOD 3M Op MOH

S3T1dIONIEd
313d0OH.1vd

"JOU JO 8UOp U3aq aAey pjnoMm SIY) JIaUlayMm Jo 8oUspIAe Bumab ‘|aAs| 101ASIp gns Je lipne ue bulog -
"WIBYl YIM paleipall Usag Sey aAoge syl Jl %28yd 0] Sjooyds Bunisin - -

NV1d 3FHL IAIIHOV OL d3SN STIDILVHLS
‘awnuesw ay}
ul Buiyiswos op 03 BulAn aq [jim ¥eys Ing ‘wiay} 4o e g 1ou [|im 3 ybnouys ‘syses Aljenb 18S 0} Moy UO ‘uoielapow o) W0 aAeY PInom oym sisijeldads

pue slayoea) ylog Buneiusaiio 01 paredo|ie ag [[IM ‘@2e|d sayel uonelapowl a8yl a10}ad SINOY M3} 1Si1} 8U1 ‘Pa1onNpuod S uoelapow [eouinold sy -
‘JuUaWISSasse
abeuew 01 Moy way Buimoys ‘siayoes) pue sisiie1dads 01 SJUBWNJ0P JO uonNgLISIP S|ieIud Jeak diwapede TZoz pue 0Zoz Jo) ueld Juswssasse ay] -

NV1d LNIOILNOD IHL 1HOITTHOIH

‘6T AIAOD 01 anp pjoy uo 1day alam ‘|2A3] [eloulnold Je sa|ll YgS 10 Uolelapow pue sassadoid Jusawssasse Uo sisijeloads
Jo Bulurely se yans sanlAloe J8Yl0 "S|ooyas Jo Bulidisn|d ybnouayl sajl} vgs Jo ajdwes e Buliolluow Aq pauayibuans si ssadoud ay) "Ajrejnbal
pauoddns aJe ‘(A|[elouinoid 189S Xsel uowwod pue s1oafoid ‘lusawubisse ‘s1Sa1) 1UBWSSASSY paseqg |[00YydsS Bulwio) reak ayl bulinp auop sysel

[ew.o} Jay1o ‘@lowliayuing “Jeak ayl Jo pua ayl Je palaisiuiwpe ale yalym ‘sapelb asayl ul Sysel [ewloy Buisipiepuels uo pa)lequa sey aduinoid

9] ‘palalsiulwpe usaym juswniisul ajbuis B Jo palSISU0D YaIyM YNY 3)1|uN ‘SUOIIRISPISUOD [RISASS S|IR1US S3IlIAII0R BA0QR Y] JO JUsWaAaIyde ayl

91el aouewloliad pue sisqunu si 1ndino ay) pue sduewIoiad Jsusea| Uo SNJ0J Yloqg Sk aA0ge sioledlpul Aliiuenb o1 rejiwis ate sioreaipul Alend

S90IAJ8S 199 Alfenb 01 peou ayy :s1abie|

[enjoy

12/020¢

syebue |

12/020¢

[enjoy

0c/6T0¢

s1ebie |

0¢/6T0¢C

[enjoy

6T/8T0¢

syabue |

6T/8T0¢C

pJepuels palisag

pJepuels Wwaind

39

x Ngwanalsejololaitlhakanelwa'y



NORTH WEST DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

*

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021

190pnQ)ieak
[eloueul} ay ul pajund
smaunp3 Jo Adod v

sjuswalinbai

vSdq Jad se

S921JJ0 [eluawedap
noybnoayy

pare|nalio pue pajund
‘panoidde ‘paonpoud
Jaurey) Alanlaq
92IAI8S Jo Adoo v

[eluswuedag

1S9\ ULON
ay} Jo souIsIa
¥ Ul S9210

uonedionred
2lignd pue arepdn
-npa ‘smaunpa
‘lans|smau
[eulalxa ‘1vuenu|

10 abueyd pue
SjulesIsuod 196png )reak
[eroureul} ayy ul payuud
smaunp3 Jo Adod v

sjuswalinbal ysdq Jad
Se s991JJ0 [eluswledap
noybnoay

pare|na.io pue pajuLd
‘panoidde ‘paonpo.d
Jaurey) Alanleq
92IAIBS Jo Adoo v

[eluawredag

1S9 M\ ULION
au Jo s1LIsIa
¥ U1 S80I0

uonedionsed
a1gnd pue arepdn
-Npa ‘smaunpa
‘lan9|smau
[eulalxa ‘1vuenu|

Sjuana
pue Bunssw juenodwi
uo Jels wiojul 0}

siseq Ap@am/A|rep uo
pare|naJio sayepdn-np3

"SJUIRIISUOD
196pnq 01 anp

sawi Inoy Jo pealsul
Jaurenb e ul sauo Ajuo
pauld sem smaN-np3

[eluawredag

1S9\ YLON
9yl JO s1ousIg
¥ Ul S9210

uonedionsed
a1gnd pue arepdn
-Npa ‘smaunpa
‘1ona|smau
[eulaixa ‘1vuenu|

solbale.ls
SS90V

(vod

pue d1v pawwin
Jued A1ano2al
‘abelanod wnnoLINg
‘uonelapow
[eiouinoid pue
10L1SIp/|00YIS ‘s400q
MI0M JO SN papnjoul)
sjooyos Jo Bulioyuow
pue uoddns Jejnbay

‘siap|oyaxels |e
Jo ajo4 aybuisiseydws
Jo asodind

|yl yum emjauexeyl e o
oles euembBN Jo youneg|
€ 0] g9S pue LINS 8yl
pauAul D3N "sbunsaw
Ajauenb aiayy Buunp

‘reak olwapeoe
M3U 8y} 10} 8UO0}
ay) 19s 0] ejobX9)
wn[naLINg
fenuuy'g

‘doys>iom

Aep g'zeagisnw
aU0 Y2IYym Jo Jeak
Jad 108lgns Jad

uoflelspow vds spalgns | PUE SGOS Yum pareys s1o9lgns $,4Sd £ 1se9| Iy
/ Sluawissasse Ajenb [ 10} :4Sd°Z aJe uaxe) suoIsIoap e 10} 4Sd'Z
Jo Bumas ul isisse 0} IV "sBunsaw | NS
sbunsaw Jaisnjo pue ul wall epuabe Buipueis
SH4Sd J0 @ouepuane B S| 9ouBWIO0Nad sjo8lgns
pabeinoou] JlWBpeIY Jausea [[e 10} :4Sd'2
‘sBunsaw Alquuon= "reak JlWwapeIe JO W) Alqiuon=
[emoy s1abre ] [en1oy SEJEAN [enjoy s)ebue ]
T¢2/020¢ T2/020¢ 02/670¢ 0¢/6T0¢ 6T/8T0C 6T/8T0C

pJepuels palsaqg

plepuels us.nd

40



NORTH WEST DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

*

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021

As911N0D ainseaw am op MOH

ABojouyosa

pue 82uaIds Jo
Ja1siul Aq ejeuelog
1e odx3 ABojouyda |
® 92UBIIS SYleN

sJalwald pue
(NSY 1@ )Binghip

e souinoid ayy 01

USIA s,)uapisald ‘ba
'019 ‘slak}} ‘sainyooiq
‘s1o|ydwred

ybnouyr seniunwiwiod
wJojul 0 pasn
sawuwelbold yoeanno
[eIoUINOI4/[euoneN

uonew.ojul
JueAdjal yum parepdn
Ajrejnbal ausgan

‘suoiessiuiwpe
Jo abueyd

Buipiing
ruoJes ‘100j} 1sli4

FENELS)
-Juspusuadng
3y} Jo 32O

19
dedsmauyyoeanno

[rews
/saxe-/sauoydajo |

ABojouyosa |

pue aJualds

Jo JaisIulN Aq ejeuelog
1e odx3 ABojouyda |

% 92U3I0S SR\

s,Jalwald pue (NSH
1@ )BingAin 1e asuinoid
3y} 01 JISIA s,Juspisald
LEROERSEV
‘sainyoo.q ‘s1o|ydwred
ybnoiy) senmunwiwiod
wiiojul 01 pasn
sawwelbouid yoeanno
[elouInOld/[euoneN

uoirewojul
weAsjal yum parepdn
Ajre|nbal ausgan

sanAnoe [eluswiedap
A8y uo way) wioyul

01 Jjels 01 pasieqolb
pue usnum Apenbal
sarepdn-np3 Jo salas v

Buipiing
reuoJes ‘100j} 1s114

EIEDE]S)
-jJuapuaiuliadng
|yl Jo 8dl0

JE)
dedsmau/yseannQ

[rewa
/Saxe-/sauoydaja |

‘pPaINgLISIp
alom so|ydwed
aAnewWloUl pue

uoneonpa aAIsn|au|
‘olreW 32URYD

puodas ‘Aresing
BYeysnT ezpun4 uo
uoiewIojuU| 0] SS8298
pey Alunwwo) ayl
pue died a|Aueq 1e
aoe|d »00] swwelboid
yoeanno [eouinoid syl

‘SluUaAS ods ‘a|gelaw
JureW ‘uawWaleIs
BIpaW ‘SaloueIRA

‘srenali) ‘suoday
‘B 9 "s|geeAR SpeW
SI )l Se uonewloyul
yum parepdn sl

G€Lc
OHLVaviAin

702X
Beq a1enlid

Buipiing
reuoJes ‘100j} 1s114

[elauan
-jJuapuajuliadng
3yl Jo adlio

Jad
edsmau/yoeannQ

Ireway
saxed/sauoydaja |

pue sjuresuod dlISgaM (suonensiuiwpe alsgam | alsqaM [eluawedaq alIsqam
[emoy s1abue | [enioy s1abue | [emoy s1ablue |
T¢/020¢ 12/020¢ 0¢/6T0¢ 02/6T0¢C 6T/8T0C 6T/8T0C

pJepuels palisag

pJepuels walind

41

x Ngwanalsejololaitlhakanelwa'y



NORTH WEST DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

*

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021

92IAJ3S JO uonNqgUIsIq

aouewlopad

1S9 pJemal

01 siseq Apjaam uo
auop ale sa1edlyNIa)
uoniuboday

pue suonelAU|
‘sawwrelbold

‘Auredioiuniy

[e207 Buaiyen 01
uanum sem abeubis
103}J9 0] uoissiwiad Jo
18119| e s101sIg J8Y10
pue LIpo exebN
104 ‘(ejeuelog ba
)101s1p Jad solweuAp
01 anp abeubis

198.9 0] pabeurew
S901J0 SIoLISIP

Jayio ‘alowliayrun
‘reak 1se| are| abueyo
awreu [eluswredap
0] anp paepino
Ajpuaiing 1nqg saolyo
[eluawredap pue
swex3 ‘swooipteoq
s$OAQA ‘9d1j0

9S ‘woolpreoyg

D3N 1e pade|d uaaq
sey abeubis ay

0] siseq [enuue
uo spreme D110v

slayoeal
Burw.iopad

1s8q ay1 asiubooal
0] siseq |[enuue

uo V1IN s abuelre
0] |anunuod 0}
juswiedap ayl's

swiod

[eioijo 1e siarsod
ajad oyreg pue
slaueyd adInIas
‘saxoq uonsahbng
J0 uonnquisiar

pasifeuly
aq 01 Ayedouniy
yum Juaswabebug

‘2oe|d
ul ued Buipueliq
Moyspeoy

swuiod [eioijo
IIe 1e (Jeusarxs pue

'siayoea)
Burwiopad 1s8q

ay1 asiubodal 01 6T0Z
JaquanoN uo (V1N)
premy Jayoes] |[euonen
S1 play Juawpedap ay L

sjuiod [e1o1Jo Te siaueyd
32IA19S JO uonnqguIsia

aouewload 1saq
plemal 01 siseq Ajpjoam
UO auop aJe saredlyIad
uoniubooay pue
suoneyAu| ‘sswwelbold

‘(ejeuelog o

) 1013S1p Jad solweuAp
0] anp abeubis

10919 0] pabeuew
S921JJ0 S1aInSsIp

Jaylo ‘alowisyunS
‘reak 1se| are| abueyo
aweu [eyuswyedap 0}
anp parepino Apualind
g sa2140 [eluswedap
pue swex3
‘swoolpreoq sOAQJ
‘a21J0 9S ‘woolpreog
D3N ¥e paoed

uaaq sey abeubis ayl

slayoea)
Buiwiopad

1s9q a1 asiubooal
0] siseq [enuue

uo V1N su abuelre
0] anunuoa 0}
uawuedsp ayl's

swiod

[eroiyo 1e siaysod
ajad oyreg pue
Slapeyd 99IAIeS
‘saxoq uonsabbng
jo uonnqinsia-e

pasifeul
aq 01 Aureduniy
yum Juswabebug

‘2oe|d
ul uejd Buipuelq
MOySspeoy

sjuiod [eroijo
[Ie 1e (jeulaixa pue

Sl uonauny oure auod
[I9M [eluawedaq

'siayoea)
Bulwiopad 1s8q

ay) asiubodal 01 8T0Z
J9QUWIBAON UO V1N SH
p|ay uawuedap ayl

sjulod
[eIo140 Je siaueyd
92IAJBS JO uonnguIsiq

siseq Apjoam

auop aJe saredlila)
pue suoneyAu|
‘seswwrelbold

‘Buipuelq 19819

0] [enoidde Joj 8T0Z
ur Aypedioiuniy 207
Buaiye 01 uanum
uaaq sey abeubis
10918 0] uoissiwiad Jo
Jana| e s821)J0 S1o1ISIp
1810 J0J ‘alowiayuing
'S9921JJ0 [eluawedsp
pue swex3
‘swooupieoq sHAd
‘921JJ0 HS ‘Wooipreoyg
O3 e paoed

siayoea)
Buiwiopad

1S9q ay) asiubooal
01 SISe( [enuue uo
VLN Su abueue

0] 2NuUnUod 0]
awedap ayl'e

swiod

[elo10 1e siaysod
aJad oyreg pue
slaueyd adIAIas
‘saxoq uonsabbng
jo uonngilsia-e

pasifeuy
aq 01 Auredidiunpy
yum Juswabebug

2oe|d
ur ueyd Buipuelq
Mmoyspeoy

swiod eoiyo
[e 1e (jeusaixa
pue euiaiul)

reuiaul) abeubis [euiaiul) abeubis T | uaaq sey abeubis ay abeubis'T Asa1ino)d
[en1oy sjebue | [enmoy SEJT [en1oy SEET
T2/0202 T2/0202 0¢/6T0C 02/6T0C 6T/8T0C 6T/8T0C

pJiepuels palisaq

pJepuels wualnd

42



NORTH WEST DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

*

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021

del Jou pIp spremy
2170 [enuuy ayl

‘INSY 1Q ¥e 020C
JaquWianoN Z0 uo piay
9I9M SjuBINdLIRN

Jo BuluBis abpald
pue Bunsaw Jakeid

196png V1IN

ay1 uo Ajpanebau
paloedwl sassasoud
suawisnipe 196png
‘UMOPX20] AINOD
0] anp uaddey

JOU p|N02 JUSWIINIOBI
pue Aoedonpe

VLN ‘sabuajieyod 6T
aiAOD 01 anp soed
@e)Jou pIp V1IN

‘slausea
JlIje|A JO 9ouewloLad
1U9||99Xa asIubooal
01 'y Jauend 12/0202
Jeak ay1 Jo Buluuibaq
3y Ul parelqalad sem
uonouny ol auoq
[19/W\ [eluswedag

sjulod
[eIo140 Je siaueyd

slaules| T apelo
|le 10} siakeld
[elouIn0Id’S

slapjoyaxels
pue sjooyos
abpajmoudoe
pue asiubooal

‘siauiea

Jle\ JO aouewlopad
19|[99xa asiubooal

0] Jeak ayi Jo Buiuuibaq
By} Ul parelqa|ad

S| uonouny ol auog
[I8/M [eluswuedag

slaules| g1 apelo
[le 4oy} siake.d
[elouinold'g

slapjoyaxels
pue sjooyos
abpajwmoudoe

pue asiubooal

01 Siseq |enuue

uo spieme D110

"S1011SIp pue arelodiod
yioq Joj speidiyjo

1lods pue uoneoanpa

10 Judwredap Jo} auop
alam sbe| sweN 00. T

‘'siauiean
JlR|A Jo aourwWIouad
ay) asiubooal 0}
Jeak ayy Jo Buluuibaq
3] Ul parelga|a?

Slaules| g1 apelo
[le 4oy} siakeld
[elouIn0ld G

slapjoyaxels
pue sjooyos
abpajmouoe

pue asiubooal

01 Siseq [enuue uo

spreme O1710'%

enoy

12/020¢

sjabue |

12/020¢

[enoy

02/670¢

syebue |

02/6T0C

[en1oy

6T/8T0Z

s1ebie |

6T/8T0C

pJepuels palisaq

pJepuels Wwalnd

43

x Ngwanalsejololaitlhakanelwa'y



NORTH WEST DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

*

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021

(xduosaud

3gQ) uoneuiwexs
[euly ay) aoejda.

0] siaded aseq
|00Y2S pasiplepuels
jo Bumes

pue uonelapow
WI1-PIA 19NPUOD
[[IM JUBWISSASSY
139 :eouinoid

jueldwoo

SdVD 8Je sjooyds
Jaylaym Ajlian

01 SI0SIAPY 103l0Nns

‘uonesapow
Buunp paoalap

alam 1ey) seale Aalb
8y}l U0 uonuanIaul 1o}
sisieloads pue sjooyds

pue uoltelapow
WI81-PIN 19NPUOD
[[IM JUBWISSASSY
139 :feouinoid

el dwoo

SdVvD aJe s|ooyds
Jay1aym Ajlian

0] SI0SIAPY 108[gNnSs

9yl "LT0¢ Joj suop
919M S|O0Y9S 3y} Jo
00T UeYl SSa| 9 ape.b
10] ajiym parelsapow
919M S|00Y9IS

3yl JO 90T 18n0

6 pue ¢ sapelb 104

"SI0SIAPY

jueldwod

SdVvD aJe s|ooyas
Jayiaym Ajuian 0}
SJosIApY 103lgns
YHm passnosip

Te pawire ssadoud syl | YNm passnasip pue YUM passnasip pue 198[gNns yum pareys pue uanum
usanuMm si 1odal e Yum paleys pue ‘g uanuMm si odal e pue pajesausb a1em | sjjiodal e UoISSeS
UOISSaS uoleIapow pue 9 ‘¢ 19 ul s13lgns UOISSaS uolielapowl suoday ‘s1o8lgns uonelapouwl Aouaredsuel |
yoea Ialy ay) |[e Jo} pajessusb yoea Iayy |l'e 10} wooisjaydlod yoea Jayy pue ssauuado
|[00y2s yBiH elfensapn alam suoday "6T0Z AINC ‘saluba |
1@ 0202 48q0100 [enuuelg | ul suop sem uonelapowl [enuuelg [00YSI0H 18/T0Z [enuuelg
0E-£Z W0} palonpuod ‘lerouinold vdsS "Jfeak olwapeoe ‘leuinold | ANt #T-0T Pulinp auop ‘Jerpuinoid
SeMm UoneIapoN vas / leusaix3 6T0Z 10 Indino ay / leulaixg SeM uolelspow ygs / |eulaixge
aoe|d
‘s|ooyos ul ueld Buipueiq
Bulpnjoul saduo MOYS-peoy
S10LISIP ‘S10LISIA-aNS "S|ooyos suonnysul
‘sa01y40 91eli0diod |e suonniisul e | Buipnjoul s8I0 SI0LISIP ‘'suonnysul je (jre 10u) suonnsul 1e pake|dsip
ul paAeidsip D3N pue | pake|dsip sialsiuiw | ‘S101SIJ-gNS ‘arelodiod | paAedsip Jebeuew | e paAe|dsip siabeuew Jabeuew ay)
Ja1sIuI ‘quapisald | a8y jo sydeiboroyd |le ur pakeidsip | ay jo sydeisboloyd ay1 Jo sydeibojoyd Jo sydeiboloyd
Jo sueluod arelodio) pue saweN sjeauod arelodio)d pue saweN pue saweN - pue saweN
jualedsues; pue uado ale am Jaylaym abnehb am op MmoH
‘6T
dIAOD 01 8np 8oe|d
[enloy s1abue | [emoy s1abue | [enioy s1ebue |
T¢/0202 T¢/0202 0¢/6T0C 0¢/6T0C 6T/8T0C 6T/8T0C

prepuels paiisad

pJepuels uaiind

44



NORTH WEST DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

*

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021

219M S|00Y2S OF

‘Buiures| pue
Buiyoes) 1oddns 01
S92IN0Ssal elpawnnuw
yum papinoid

9J9M S|00Y9S GZ

Gz :buiures| pue
Buiyoea) yoddns
01 S824N0Sal
elpawnnw

yum papiaoid
S|o00Y9s Jo JlaquinN

‘Buiures)

pue Buiyoea) Loddns

0] S82JN0Sal eIpawnnw
ynm papinoid

91aM S|00YIS GZ

60T :Bulures| pue
Buiyoes) oddns
0] S82JN0Ssal
elpawnnw

ynm papinoid
S|o00Y9s Jo JlaquinN

‘Buiures| pue
Buiyoes) 1oddns 01
S92IN0sal elpawinw
yum papiaoid

9J9M S|00Y9S GZ

/0T :Bulures| pue
Buiyoes) oddns
0] S92JN0Ssal
elpswininw ynum
papinolid sjooyos
ICPELIIIN]

020z Arenuer ul
S|00Y9S 0] paJaAlap
K1suones %001

sjooyas palabie 01
s|ela1eN Loddns
Jayoea| pue
Jaulea palapio
ay1 Jo (dn Buiddoy)

6T0Z Arenuer ul sjooyas
0} painquisip [eusrey
yoddns Jayoea |

s|jooyos pajabie) 0]
slelare\ uoddns
layoea] pue
Jaulea palapio
ay1 Jo (dn Buiddoy)

8T0¢C

Arenuer ul sjooyds

0] panquisip feusie
uoddns Jayoea |

s|jooyos
paabier 01
slela1e\ uoddns
layoea] pue
Jaulea palapio
ay1 Jo (dn Buiddoy)

pue SY0001X81 %66 %00T Ajlddns o1 pue lausea %00T %00T Ajddns o1 pue Jausea %00T %00T Ajddns o
CINSLT CINSLT CINS1T
‘looyos
Y1IM palesiunuiLod
pue pajelauab
suodal ‘reak
3y} Jo pus ayi 1e
auop aq [I1M YdMN dn-mojjo}
1O UOIRISPOIN e ayew 01 a|qissodwil
Ajrensn si 11 ‘aso0)o Aay)
‘1eak ayl Jo pua ‘1eak ayi Jo pua alojaq Aep e nwagns
ayl1e % 9 sapelo aylle g% 9 sapelo S|00yoas 1eyl 19ef sy
1o} siaded YdMN 1o} siaded YdMN 01 anp pue ‘paisanbal
19S OS[e [ )] 195 OS[e [Im )] alam Aauyp se
1WQNS 10U pIP S|O0YIS
'S|00y9as 's|jooyos sl 186.e) pauueld ay)
0] suodal puas 0] suodal puas | Bulurene 1ou 1oj uoseal
[en1oy s1abue | [en1oy s1abue | [enoy sjabue |
12/020¢ 12/020¢C 02/6T0C 02/6T0C 6T/8T0C 6T/8T0C

plepuels palisag

pJepuels jualnd

45

x Ngwanalsejololaitlhakanelwa'y



NORTH WEST DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

*

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021

U180 uo p|ay sem
yolym suoneiqalad
Aeq Aoelal
[euoneuIauU| BY) UI
paredionsed sjooyos

Areiqi [enbig sxoog
-9 ay} ui ayedionted
0} payuap!

uaaq aAey S|o0Yds 0T

'sJaulod Buipeal
pue sqgn|o Buipeal
10 JUBWYsI|geISa
‘sanARoe pesT

0] peay ‘sa2In0sal
Areiqi| panddns

ay1 Jo 1oedwi pue
abesn uo paJjonuow
9J9M S|00Y9IS 2/

(¢

INY3 1L 0202) redwoly
Islowobas yiny 1g
pue ews|oN UIPOIA
eYebN Ul [eLsrew
Buipeal Jo [eAslal
pue Buinssi 1o} sasnq
ajiqow Ag padJinlas

[enjoy

12/0¢0¢

syebue |

12/020¢

[enjoy

02/6T0C

syebue |

0¢/6T0C

[enioy

6T/8T0C

s1ebue |

6T/8T0C

pJepuels palisaq

pJepuels jualin)d

46



NORTH WEST DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

*

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021

0c0¢
J9QWIBAON Ul 1 D3N
‘d1dSd uo sdoysxiom

pa1oNpuUod SIS

09/ T:sIsAfeuy
10413 Jaurean

T69T :dldSsd

9€ VI

-:paurel) siayoea)
/8YE :Uuo pauresL
SJayoea] Jo Jaquinn

s109lgns omy

ay1 uo 1isifeloads
uoneonp3 108lgns
pue slayoea)

Jo Buiurea

09/ T:SIsAjeuy
10413 JouIea]

(es1opnedid Jo
aoe|d u1) TE9T :dI¥Sd

9€ 1V

-:uo
paulel] sisydes] /3ve

9t¥T :sishjeuy
JoJ3 Jsutean

0,72 :dI¥Sd
otTeT:y8sIDARdID
0S:T1vI

-:Uo Ssiaydesal
8ect Jo bulures |

WG Ty 1e sisAjeue
10413 uo pauresn
aJaM slayoea] 6/G

sonewsaye\ uo paures
aJaMm slayoeal /4T

1sije1oads 19algns

Aq apow Buipeosed e
sem 1l 92uIs uonealdu
[eroueul) ON © 1O3N
pue 173SIO ‘173dID
papnjoul yaym
‘(dI¥Ssd) swwelboid
Juswanosdw|
Buipeay |00ydSs
Arewlid uo pauren
aJam siayoea] T90E

apelo) Buipeal
Buipnjoul ‘Aoeual

¥€G=6-L 1O 13SIO

2.0T=9-T9 1adiD

Z ainxauue
payoene Jad

Se paulel) aq |[IM
sloyeoanpa 139
sonewayie

pue abenbue]

-: paurel] lsyoea]
JO JaquinN

Aousledsuel]
pue ssauuadQ

"S|O0YIS UDASS
Ul PaAISSCO a1aM
suonelqa|ad ayl pue
0202 42q0120 U160
ay1 uo Aeq Areigi
[00Y2S [euoneUIBIU|
pue .puokag pue
dlwispued 6T PINCD
Bunnp Buiuies| pue
Buiyoeas) ‘Aoelal,
awayl ayl Japun
0202 Jaquierdas

[enjoy

T¢2/0¢0¢

SElAE

T2/020¢

[enjoy

0¢/6T0C

s1ebie ]

0¢/6T0¢C

[enjoy

6T/8T0C

sjebie ]

6T/8T0C

plepuels palsisadg

pJepuels jualnd

47

x Ngwanalsejololaitlhakanelwa'y



NORTH WEST DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

*

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021

yolym spejuswuepun-
ay1 Bunuasaid

(0z0z 1990320 pud
) Bunum Arewwns
uo doys3iom

(0202 1970190 pud)
$S3S Buluren s304

0¢0¢ 19003120 ul sgn|d
Buipeay 1o} sonsnels
pspiwgns S3S

0coc
JaquwianopN ul Buiuren

113SI10/113d1D

020z 1snbny zz pue
TZ 103N Aq pauren

G9=9
apelo sisAjeue
Jo1ia sisusea

0 = abenbue
3WOH BUBMS]aS
uo siayoeal 139

slosinpe 103lgns SYET=€
[emoy syebuie | [emoy sjebire | [emoy sjebue |
T2/020¢ 1¢2/020¢ 0¢/6T0C 0¢/6T0C 6T/8T0C 6T/8T0C

pJepuels palisaq

pJepuels uand

48



NORTH WEST DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

*

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021

pa10e]]u0d Japiroid
92I1AI8s 8yl ‘I9d

10 }NSal e se alam
Teyl AJanijap uou pue
sabelnoys ‘passalppe
alam sabelroys ayl
se painoold J1abuo| ou
910J218Y}) a19M 18bIe)
e se 1nd alam Jeyl
syooqlom pabesinua
ayl -9|qissod

21aM Jayloue auo
paisisse os|e siousig
‘9|qe|ieAr sem

Teym ylim passaippe
alam sjooyas Aq
pauodal sabeloys
'SWI0013101S

lIsyy ul s|qe|rene
Apeale sy)00g3I0Mm

4O JipNe Ue Palonpuol
10L1SIp yoeg

‘leuonippe se
S)000XI0M 000 SET
apinoud 01 pauueld
sey aouinoid ayy
pue 6-Y sapelo

10} S)000I0M

yum asuinoud

ay1 Al ddns 01
anuRuol M 3dd

passalppe paloeuod
Japinoud adinies ayy
‘J9Q Jo })nsal e se alam
Tey] AJaAlj@p uou pue
sabenoys -passalppe
alom sabeloys

ay) se painooid 1abuo)
OU 810}848Y) 819M

106.ue) e se Ind alam Jeyl
syooqgyiom pabesinua
ayl ‘9|qissod

819M Jayloue auo
palsisse os[e S1o1IsIg
‘9|ge|leAe Ssem Jeym

UM passalppe alam
s|ooyos Aq pauodal
sabenoys "swooiaiols
JIay} ul a|gejrene Apealre

SY00Q3J0M JO Jipne ue
pa1onpuod J0uISIp yoeg

‘leuonippe se
S)000X10M 000 SET
apinoid 01 pauueld
sey asuinoid ayy
pue g-Y sapeio

10} S)000>I0M

yum aosuinoid

ay1 Aiddns 01
|SNuRUoI |im 3dd

‘s|jooyos
BU} JO Spaau |euonippe
Se 8T(0Z Ul SY00qI0M
0t€0Z [euonippe
painooid aosuinoud

ay} pue pajjddns 3ga

‘leuonippe

SE S)}000)I0M

000 8¢T

apinoid 01 pauueld
sey aouinoid ayy
pue 6-Y sapeio
10} S)00g10M
yum aouinoid

ay1 Aiddns 01
SNuRUoI |Im 3dd

(Td rejnaud

39Q) paloyuow pue
pawuawsa|dwi aq 01
3|qe] awi [euonelol
Japun Buipeay

1yBne) aq 0] aney

enoy

12/020¢

sjabue |

12/020¢

[enoy

02/670¢

syebue |

02/6T0C

[en1oy

6T/8T0Z

s1ebie |

6T/8T0C

pJepuels palisaq

pJepuels Wwalnd

49

1]
=
©
[

2 Ngwanalsejololaitlh



NORTH WEST DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

*

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021

9yl JO 9%0¢ pue 0c0c
18qUWan0N Ul pauels
s|ooyas ui sBunaasiy
[elausD) [enuuy

[enuuy :swa.ed
03 suodal ferpueul

ay1 buung 'sbunsaw
g9s Buunp yodal

[eroureul} anlb WODNIL
siseq Aauenb up

[enuuy :sjuared
01 suodal eloueulq

[eloueul) ayy podal
01 SINDV PI3y s|ooyds
[[e ‘reak olwapeoer
10 wiay 1se| ay1 Buung

fenuuy :sjuared 01
suodal feroueulq

Apanend
:sjuased 03 usaIb
suodal olwepedy

Apanen :swuased
0] uanib aq 01
suodal olLspeIY

Apauen( :swuased
01 spodal olwapeay

Apanend
:sjuated 01 panssi
suodal olwspedy

Ajarend :swared
01 spodal olwapeay

Apauend
:sjuased 01 uanIb
suodal olwapedy

Aouasedsuel |
pue ssauuadQ

(vod

pue d1v pawwin
Juejd A1an02al
‘abelanod wninaLINg
‘uonelapow
[elouinold pue
1011SIP/|00Y3s ‘s300q
3JIOM JO 8Sn apnjoul)
sjooyos Jo Bunoyuow
pue uoddns Jejnbay

alsgam
I[eq.lie uo salols
Buissasoe ‘ddysieynn
ybnoiyy uoneussaid
[ensia oipny

(o1pey ® AL Y109
uo S]0| [eUONRINPA)

(sreroyyo
wn|nauIng pue
1UBWSS3SSY /dIV1)

siousip

7 aylje ul 6 ® 8 sspeio
YlIM S|00Y9S Arepuodas
Buiwiopad mo|

Ul SHSIA Wea) 1oNpuo)

‘snyess [epuinoid wiogul
01 AjJauenb sjosig 01
paniwgns alam suodal

abelanod snqe|As

Sd1V uowwod ybnouyy

8T0¢ 13qUIBAON

Ag palsjdwod

Sem ‘sd]y uowuwoo
ybnouyl reak ay;
1noybnouyy aberanod
win|naLuNg pue
Buiyoeal Burionuo

"aseyd areipawliaiu] 1e
SORWAYIBIA Z6E pue
abenbue] gog os|v
‘aseyd uonepuno

1e SusIA sabenbuen
8G€E pue sonewsyle
621 S|reius gT10c
1200120 01 Areniga-

S10LISIP 7 3y}
[le ul6® 8 sapeio
YIm S|ooyos
Alepuooas
Buiwiopiad

MOJ Ul S)ISIA

wea} 19Npuo)

‘'snje;s [eloulnold
wioyui 0}

Ajjauenb spoulsig
0} papiwgns

aq suodal
abelanod snqe|lAs

Sd1V uowuwo?
ybnouy: abeianod
winjnaLINg pue
Buiyoeay JoyuoN

Jre uo sswwesboud Aauend abelan0d wNNJLLIND Apauend woJj pajonpuod Aauend
[euoireonpg SUSIA 139 pue Buiyoeal JONUON :SUSIA 139 | Woddns pue Bunoyuop SUSIA 139

‘wiay) passalppe ‘way}
[emoy syebie | [enioy s1ebire | [en1oy s)ebie ]
12/020¢ 12/020¢ 0¢/6T0C 02/6T0C 6T/8T0C 6T/8T0C

plepuels palisaq

pJepuels 1ualind

50



51

ay "A1.120s [IAID pue
slapjoyaxels ‘siuased 0}
LUbredwe) emjsueyey|L
Vv O oles euembn,,
apedsed 0] saydinyd 01
pako|dap alam s[eIdIO

ooyos Arepuodas
adneyop 1e

/TOZ 1800100 1sTC
3y} uo payoune|
sem ubredwe)
BUBMINION
eladasias|

Jojydwed panquisip Alorelqalao reuoneN's

pue sanuNwwoo
ay1 ul olwapued

6T AINOD ssaippe

01 s||s Buljesunod jo
Sa|npow { Uo Pasnoo}
Bulures) syl ews|on
LIPOIA BXebN pue
esnwe “euesofen

slaules|
ZT 9pelb |re o}
pIay aq 01 Jakeid

S)oLISIp pue
S1IN2JID Ul panunuod
ubredwe) eueminiopn
eladas)as] ‘g

"uoineuIwEXxa au o}

NORTH WEST DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

*

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021

‘Buaqipe
ul siabeue 1NaID

pue D170 ‘sainonis

293aiwwo)
pJepa Joj Buiuren

1oddns [e1o0soyosAsq

pa19npuod (1D3N)

slapjoyaxels
1ay1o pue yeis
YuM uonewoul
aleys 0) pasn
swione|d eipaw
[e100s pue alsgam
‘slana|smau

aledaid 01 saul@ping
ynm papinoid

d1aM Sslaules| gT apelo
ayL "6T0Z Jequardes
GO ay1 uo . ubredwe)d
empauedey|L v O

olas euembp, payoune|

siapjoyaxels
layio pue yeis
YUM uonewoul
areys 0] pasn
swione|d eipaw
[e100S pue a)ISgam
‘slana|smau

slap|oyaxels Jaylo pue
11e1s yum uonewiojul
aleys 0] pasn alam
swione|d eipaw [eloos
pue a)Isgam ‘s|rewa
reqo|B ‘sianajsmau

slapjoyayels
1ayio pue peis
YIM uonewoul
areys 0] pasn
swioneld eipaw
[e100S pue a)ISgam
‘slana|smau

uoljew.ojuj

1]
=
©
[

1Sni] uoneloge|jod ‘sdoysxiom elowasie|\ ojaydewn ‘sdoysxiom ‘sdoysxiom ‘sdoysyiom <
uoneonp3 [euonen ‘sBunasy ‘D3N UOH a3yl ‘sBunaay ‘sBunasy ‘T ‘sBunasy <
©
‘9ouewJ0Iad Jautea| uo uoissnasip 1oJ Juawiedag ayl Aq wiojie|d e Jo uoneald .n_oq
()
¢119pinoid am op MOy pue S89IAISS 1IN0 U0 apIA0Id am Op uollewdoiul Jeypn m
S
‘sasodind Bunipne 2
10} spJo2al |eloueUly S
‘020c¢ 10} J1|sy) paniwgns
s1ebpnq yeip paroidde S|00Y9S JO %66 '8TOZ
pue sjua.ed 0] S|ooyos JO pua ay) spJsemo |
JO snjels [eloueUl
ay) uodal 01 SNOV pay "6T0¢ 10} s196pnq 1ye.p
S|00Y9S JO 9486 ‘Ieak panoidde pue sjuased
‘paloluow Ssjooyos JlWapeIk JO WIa) 1S 0] S|00Y9S JO sniel1s
[en1oy s)ebue | [enioy sjebue | [enjoy s1ebue |
T12/020¢ 1¢2/020¢ 0¢/6T0C 0¢/6T0C 6T/8T0C 6T/8T0C
pJepuels palisag | plepuels uaiind




NORTH WEST DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

*

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021

suolne|al lap|oy axel1s anoidwi 01 syurejdwod pue salianb 01 puodsal am ued 1USIXS TeYyM 01

2110 [euoneN

pue DY13 ‘siebeue
9AIIN23XT YUMm
paJteys pue pasAfeue
uaag sey 1odal

3yl pue 0Z0¢/60/0€

—020¢/80/v¢
woJ} paloyuow

9J3M S|00YIS 52

H0IN1 v (e Jo

sawuwrelboid
diysbeyy 3gaa
pue D170 uo sanuold

uonensIuIwpy

419 3y} a1edoAnpe

0] sywwns Buluue|d
sredioulid 1naa)
qiwwing Buluue|d
1omsig pauoddns 9110

sausiuIW
s,uaJp|iyd ul Buipeal
ajowoud 01 saydinyd
0] payeuop alam
$300Q pue panqguisip
alam sya|ydwred
‘pajussald sem
ubredwes Buipeal pue
sawwrelboud diysbeyy

"JOLISIP BWSION HIPON
eebN Jo (SMmad)
siaxIop wwawdojanag
Alunwwo)

|y yum Bunssw e pey
10L11S1Q pue adulnoid
woJj sioreulploo)d
ubredwe)

Buiyoea | pue BulureaT
Awrend ays ‘8102

ReN gzayluo 2 'S

s1o|ydwed pue syoed
92In0Sal Jo sa1dod Yum
slapjoyaxels ‘s|jooyos
pajdwes papinoid 'y

sowuwelboud diysbeyy
39Q Jo Aoedonpe
JoJ wuope|d e pajeald

0110 ybnoliys shep

suole|al lapjoy
ayels anoidwil

01 surejdwod

pue sauanb

0] puodsal am ued
1UBIX8 Jeym o

omsia
-ans Buayiyen
ul ubredwed
peay puy

IV doiQ T pIeH

omsig-gns
3iqeypaT ul pidy
9I9M SUOISSaS
anboyelp juared

pue sgos v

1oumsig
-gns 9|a18J0N Ul
(abe||IA 3j91910N)

[enjoy

T2/020¢

s1abue |

T2/020¢

[enjoy

0¢/6T0Z

syebue |

0¢/6102

[enjoy

6T/8T0C

s1abue |

6T/8T0C

pJepuels palisad

plepuels ualind

52



NORTH WEST DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

*

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021

(uoisayo) [e120Ss pue
JUSWBA|OAUI [elualed
‘uonesBiw o3
‘Buipeay ) ‘6T AINOD
0] anp Inoj 01 paonpal
subredwes uanas

sbunssw 9110

odx3 J19a1e)d

pue yoeannQ uoneanp3
uawdojanaq s|INS
osyejobays1 ‘4ANVS
yum odx3 Jeale)d
[enuuy auefeqe

1sob6y 69 swiope|d
1UBJIBYIP T8 paredoApe
pue pajuasald D170

‘Hwwins ay)
Joy pue sayoune| 9110
1o} aredaud 03 pjay alem

sbunaaw wea) yse |

sbunaaw
[210103S NNW
pue siap|oyayelS.

sbunsaw
21710 10181
-gng pue JousiQe

sbBunssw wea)
yse] pue sbunasw
23aniwwo)
Bunsars 09110d

'8T0Z Ul @2e(d axe1 10U
pip sBunasw [elo1oas
nnw s Japjoyaxels

S[eIdlljo SSOI yum
sBunsaw pey s10LIsIq

6T0Z Arenuer €2
6T0¢ Arenuer ¢t
8T0Z I1snbny z0-T0

:Japunaiay pajos|jal
se play alam sbunsaw
wea} ysel O110d

Ajrenuuy
:sbunesN g9S
2170 sjooyss

Arenuuy
:sbunasy
2110 Pmsia-ans

Arenuuy
:sbBunasy
21710 1msia

Ajrenuuy
:sbBunasy
99nIwwod
Bulieals

0170 [epulnoid

sAep Bupjiom

sAep Bupjiom

sAep Burjiom
0€ :uonebnsanu|

sAep Bujiom
0€ :uonebnsanu|

sAep Buijiom
0€ :uonebnsanu|

shep
0€ :uonebnsanu|

o€ :uonebnsanu| 0€ :uonebnsanu| sAep Bupjiom sAep Bujiom / : sAep Bunjiom skep /s
/ :ssaiboid/esuodsay | ssaiboid/esuodsay | /. :sseiboidjosuodsey | S@iboid/asuodsay
sAep Bupjiom sAep Bupjiom / :

/ :ssalboidjesuodsay | ssalboidjesuodsay sAep Bupjiom G-T sAep Bupjiom G-T sAep Bujiom G- skepg-T :
1uaWabpajmou oy

sAep Bunjiom G- sAep Bunjiom G- JusWwabpamoundy | luawabpaimoudoy Juswabpamou oy

:90uapuodsalio) | uswabpamoundy :90uUapuodsalio) | :@ouapuodsalio) :90uUapuodsalio) | @ouspuodsaliod Ssalpay

[emoy s1ebue | [emoy sjebue | [emoy sjebie |
T2/0¢0¢ T2/020¢C 02/6T0C 0¢/6T0C 6T/8T0C 6T/8T0C

pJlepuels palisadg

pJepuels ualind

53

1]
=
©
[

2 Ngwanalsejololaitlh



NORTH WEST DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

*

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021

0202 1aqwiadad

0 ysiul 0} painpayos
pue 13qo100

9z uo pauels Buiuren
[enjoe pue ‘0z0z
1900100 6T UO pauels
Buiurel; uoneIUBLIO

piay sbunssw
sanIuwod bulleals ¢

“e|joqosuq pue
‘BuaqipeN ‘syren
ar (6 pue g apeih)
aue)oy| Sason]
Buiuren paradwod
aney S1oL1SIP-gNs
‘Buiuren

Jayoea) Loddns 01
paonpouid salou apijs
Aq apl|s pue aouIn0Id
MN 0} paydepe

Bunsa] Bnig pue
wawysiund jesodiod
01 9AIRUIB)|Y U0
paurel) a1am S1I\S /6

uonoales
pue juswnioal

uo pajeloeded

9J9M S|00YDS G WO}
S99S 90€¢ 1ses| ¥

awwelboid uononpul
papusie s1AS 6€T

paures) alam
sjooyas pawloyadiapun
JO S1INS 0€¢

pue juawysiund
[eiodio)d

0] 9AIRUIR)Y U0
S1INS 00T uren oL

uonoa|as
pue JUsWINI8I UO
sg9S Jo Buiuren uo

6T0Z 40 OT JejnoJio
0} asuodsal u|

S1NS
0GT Jo} swweiboid
uononpuj

Juswabeuen
wnnaLuInNg

uo pauren

aq 01 S|ooyds
Buiwlopad

100d JO S1INS 00€

sanljiqisuodsal

21oM SIayoea) 612

00°00'0.€Y
Te AInc ul sisyoeal 139
1o} Buluren ABojouyda |
olezuj |0zes

(8T0Z

aunr) 00°0ZE'STTH
e TvI| uo pauresn
91oM Slaydeal g7

"SHSIA J00ys ybnoays
vgs jo Buliojuojy.

‘|9A8] |00YIs Je vYgS
2ouUBYUS 0] SalIAlIOR

1UBWISSaSSe U0
sisifeloads Buiuies ] «

'sanIAioe
v4ds Jo uswabeuew
uo | AS Jo Buluiel .

"00°000
0084 punoJe jo 196pnq
uiyum pajuawajdwi

apelub 1ad zgz aq
[l 818y} ‘6 pue
9'c 9peIo yoeg °,
slayoea) Alewlld
00€ 40 Buturen
103N/dIFISd 9

sjooyos
ul uoneuawa|dwi
2110

1o} suoissas
Aljigelunoosoe
pue uondsyay'y

Buiuren 10y
pue saajuiodde
Amau Buipnjoul
slaqwiaw | NS

06TT jo Bulurel| "¢

sd9S
pa123[8 AiMau 000
T Jo Buiures] 'z

suono9Ie
g9S 10} sfenuew

Asuow
10} anfea

suonejuasald 103N sanijigisuodsal pue sa|0. J1aY) alam aouewiopad :sdoysxiom

020z 1snbny gz pue (LINS) | pue ssjol JIay) Uuo alam uo (SHQ) speaH | Jaures| Jo Juswanoidwi wawabeuew

T2 1D3N Aqg pauren ue|d juswdojanap doysxiom papuane [euswyredaq spremol pajeab | pue aduBUIBA0D

siosiApe 103[qns layoea | SHA GE6 oy 002ZT jo Buiures| | samanoe Buimojjoy ay L diysiopeaTT
aoueuIan0b poob ainsua am op MoH

[emoy s1ebue | [emoy syebue | [emoy s)ebue |

T¢/0202 T¢/020¢2 0¢/6T0C 0¢/6T0C 6T/8T0C 6T/8T0C

pJepuels palisag

pJepuels us.nd

54



NORTH WEST DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

*

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021

paniwgns jooyds jo bunipny papiwgns jooyas jo bunipny papiwgns jooyas o bunipny
(sjooyos awos)
'ssado.d ay) (renuue)
paJojuow SSSTeA9I suodal [eloueuly [enuue
pue sjeidyjo papinoid sjooyos pue Apauend
msIa (renuue) [enuuy [enuue
suodal [eloueuly [enuue [enuue

papinoid sjooyods

: suiodal [eloueulS

: s1iodal [eloueulH

: suodal eloueuld

: suiodal [eloueuld

s1iodal jeloueul

3dd Jo Buiseyaund
pue uone|nbal 6T
AINOD alepouwiwodde
o1 yiys 186png

Jo aoueolyiubis

ay1 pare|naie

‘020z 1eaqwianoN

ul plsy Nov

3yl :lenuuy :swaJted
Aq [enoidde 106png

Bunabpng

[enuuy :sjuared Aq
panoidde 196png

[enuue :sjuared
Aqg jenoidde 106png

Bunabpng

|enuuy :sjuased Aq
panoidde 106png

[enuuy :sjuated
Aqg jenoidde 186png

Bunabpng

s|jooyos
awos :swuased Aq
[enoidde 106png

Bunabpng

0202 J1aquianoN
ur Buluren 1D3N pue
dldSd uo sdoysiom

pa1oNpuod SIS

Bulures; Juswabeuew
[eloueUl} papuane
slaquisw g9S /66
pue wawdojanap Aaijod
uo Bulures papusne
laquisw 99S 6T.

Juswebeuew
[eloueul} U0 99S
00ST wwawdojansp
Aolj0d uo gos
000T Jo Butures |

Bunsa] Bnug

'00'064°¢Lcd Ye 8T0¢
1800100 pue aung

ul INS17 uo pauren

sIsAjeue lolia
uo paurel; aq o)

[enjoy

T¢2/0¢0¢

s1abue |

T2/0¢0¢

[enjoy

0¢/6T0C

syebue |

0¢/6T0C

[enjoy

6T/8T0C

s1abue |

6T/8T0C

prepuels palisag

pJepuels ua.lind

55

1]
=
©
[

2 Ngwanalsejololaitlh



NORTH WEST DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

*

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021

1INS/SAOH 3ayL
;]ona) jooyos 1e sue|d
uossa| jo Buloyuo

1e sue|d uoss9| Jo
Buoluo s|reiua
uoddns ajeiodio)

SAOH Aq Apanend
:|]aA9] [ooyos 1e sue(d
uossa| Jo BuliolNuoN

1e sue|d uoss9| Jo
Buloluo Ss|reiua
uoddns ajeiodio)

dOH Aq Apapend
:|]an8| jooyos 1e sueld
uossa| Jo Buuouuon

‘|]ong| j00Y2s
1e sue|d uosss|
Jo Bunonuon

'sIe|naJlo /saulppinb
349 ‘d.LV pswuwiy
‘sjuswialinbal

(syjuswaainbau
SdvD 01 buipiodoe

(syuawalinbai
SdvO 01

SdvD yim pa1onpuod) Buipiodoe aq 1snw) alenbapeu|
9oueldwod ainsua :(Bununod pue (syuswalinbai :(Bununod pue (syuswalinbai :(Bununoo
0] paJo)UoOW dIdM Bunum ‘Buipeal b SdvD 01 Buipiodoe Bunum ‘Buipeal b SdvD 01 Buipiodoe pue Bunum
Bunnunod pue Bunum | uipNjoUl) PAIdNPUOI aq 1snw) :(Bununod | uipn|ouIl) pPaIdNPUOD aq 1snw) :(Bununod | ‘Buipeal Buipnjour)
‘Buipeas papnjoul SanIAoe pue Bunum ‘Buipeas saniAnoe pue Bunum ‘Buipeas saniAioe
yolym sanianoe JUBWISSASSY Buipnjour) saninnoe JUBWISSASSY Buipnjour) saninnoe UBWSSASSY
JUBWISSASSY |ew.io- [ewuod JUBWISSASSY |ew.o4 fewo4 JUBWISSASSY |ew.o4 fewJlo-

slaules)

pue siayoes)

‘'suone|nbail 6T 0 @ouew.loyad
AINOD ‘dLlV pawuwiy ‘AlJeurenb sjooyos JO uoneIapowW pue sn
8y} Jo uoneluswajdw Joyuow Jayuny uoneyuswaldwi onunuo):(A1aniap
‘Alaniidp | srerdnyo 101s1qg pue wnnNaLINI UBO0D
1US1U0I 101eINPa3) W] [00Y9s yoea snonunuo):(A1aniap Buiyoayo snonunuo):(A1anigp 101e2Np3a) |9A9)
[9A8] OV e Xoeqgpas) | jo Buluadoas Buunp |  1USW0I 10TRINPS3) |9AJ) S|lejua eyl | 1ualuod 101ednpa) [9AI) OV e Xoeqpas)

pue uonuaAlaul
Buijrejus 1oddns

Te s|ooyos Jonuow
s|elo1yo arelodiod

OV 1e Xoeqpas) pue
uonuaiaul bulrelus

ssao0.d Bulloynuow
ybnouy) pauoddns

OV 1e Xoeqpas; pue
uonuaiaul Bulrejus

pue uonuaAlalul
Buijreius uoddns

awiL

pue Buloluon pueosig | woddns pue Bulio)uo alam sjooyds | uoddns pue Bulo)uo pue Bulio)uo
aouewJoyiad Jauses| Jo JuswaAoIdwi 8INSUS 01 PapPaau S| awil yonuw MoH
Ajrenuuy Ajrenuuy

Bunipne
10} SX00( [eloueul)

:$)00( [elourUl}

Bunipne
10} SY00( [eloueuly

:$)00(q [elourUl}

Bunipne
10} SY00( [eloueuly

Allenuuy
:S)00(Q [eloueUl}

[enjoy

12/020¢

s)ebue |

1¢2/020¢

[enjoy

0c/6T0C

sjebue |

0¢/610¢

[enjoy

6T/8T0C

s1eblie]

6T/8T0C

plepuels palsad

pJepuels uaund

56



NORTH WEST DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

*

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021

paureln sisifeloads
uoneonp3 109lgng

pawwil pue SdvD
‘ABojopoyraw

pue ABojopoylaw

Aimau jo Bulurel |

108lgns 139 |Iv

‘SpeaH _.mucmEtmwn_mh_ uo pauleln aq uo pauleln] aq Jeis | sioeonp3g 199 ||V
/S1INS ‘Siayoeal 0] sebenbue pue 0] sebenbue pue woddng euoissajoid 92Jn0say
uoneuaLo aji7 00T sonewayle 1o} paulel] alam siayoes) Sonewayle 1o} JUBAS|31 1810 ||V PUY 1uswabeurw uo uewnH
‘s1ayoea) Bununoosdy SloSIApY 193lgns abenbue] 089T pue SI0SIApY 193lgns paures; sjedioulid
Zb-:pauren siayoes | pue siayoea | slayoeal SYe\ 8G/.T pue siayoea | D170 ‘srenio adH pue sg9S zZ0oov
AAnoe yoes ul palinbal ajdoad jo Jaquinu ayy
0sg‘00gy 00
Te paureln) sisydes | 0SE£°00€d | 0‘0ved:uoneluslo
uoneluslo 8 00T le paulel) sisyoea | aln
uonelualo ajin 00T
€GT'/29¢Y e paurel | 00'08€y:Bulures |
(SHA)SLAS €56 €GT'L9€Y e paurel L 1NS
(SHQ)SLINS £56 810¢
G8G'9TCY ‘SyleiN 000'8TZY:SyreN | Ul 00°000 0084 punoJe
G8G'OTZY Syre Je P310NpuU0I 3laMm
ovL'€LTH 000°'0TeY saniAde vas 139 '¢ |inxauue
1e paurels siayodea ] Ov.‘€/TY e paulen :Bununoooy payoene
Bununooay zvy sJayoea ] Bununooddy Zy 00°'000°TLEH 9y} Uo pa1dasjjal
‘paures) 1e ABojouyoa] pue | sIBuluren Jayoeasl
‘paurel | ue|d Juswdojanap ‘paurel | aQ 01 sioyeonp3 SN OJezuj |0zes uo Jo} ainypuadxa
slo1eanp3 Jo JaquinN Jayoea] paso)d sloyeanp3 Jo JaquinN 10 JaquinN paureln siayoea] OTT pajrelap ayL 150D
‘S9ll S9l
slayoeay/siauies) slayoeay/siauies)
'siseq Alyuow 10 jo
/ Apj@am uo sued | uonesspow ybnoay uonelapow ybnoiyy
u0SSsa| 8y} palonuow [9A8] |00Y2S LINS/ [9A8] |00Y2S LINS/S Apauend
[enoy s1abie] [enoy s)ebre] [emoy s1ebre]
T¢/020¢ T¢/020¢ 0¢/6T0¢ 0¢/610¢ 6T/8T0C 6T/8T0¢

pJrepuels palisag

pJepuels uaund

57

1]
=
©
[

2 Ngwanalsejololaitlh



NORTH WEST DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

*

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021

91IS gam e|nAeAls

sdoys»Jiom sjooyods
pajdwes D110S

21710 uo sjediould

siabeuey
un2aD IV

S[eRO dONT IV

ay1 uo paiaisibal pue dlv 'SdVD pue sgos paldsle SI0SIAPY
[emoy syebue | [emoy sjebue | [emoy sjebie |
T2/020¢ T2/020¢ 02¢/6T0C 02¢/6T0C 6T/8T0C 6T/8T0C

pJepuels palisaq

pJepuels ualind

58



NORTH WEST DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

*

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021

sjure|dwoo Joj sauobared

uonebnsanul

wredwod Jo Bwo2IN0 U0  wio) Arewwns
21O peaH 1e siurejdwod oy Jaisibay

O pesH

Te sjurejdwod Joj s|qisuodsal uosiad pajesipap v
'S1oLISIQ pue YO pesH

y1oq 1e sjurejdwod Joj aull auoydajal paredipaq
"S1OLISIP

se [|om se juawuedaq 8yl pue Jalwaid ay) Jo
221JO Y10q BIA Ajjediuoydajal pabbo| siurejdwo)d

abes 1eip 1e Aa1j0d swureidwo)

suredwod o) sauobared Ot

uoinebnseAul

wreidwos Jo awo2IN0 U0 wilo)l Arewwns 6
‘swure|dwod 1oy Js1sibey g

ureldwod
© abpo| 01 Moj|0} 0] ssadoid ay1 uo suosiad
uoddns ; suaznio / Sjuald wioul 0} sI8lsod '/

saxoq uonsebbns ‘9
swurejdwod abpoj 01 SwIoq 'G

"S10LISIQ pUR 3210 PesH yiog e siurejdwod

lo] 9|qisuodsas  uosiad  paeIpep WV v
‘sjure|dwod 1oy SSaIppe [rewa pajedipapy ‘€

*S1011SI3 pue 921UO pesH Yy1oq
Te swreidwod Joj aul auoydsjel paredipag g

Aaijod syureldwo) panoiddy ‘T

swure|dwod Joj salobare) ‘9

uonebnseAul
reidwos Jo awo9N0 Uo wio} Alewwns G
90O peaH e sjureldwod 1oy 1aisibey v

9010 pesH e sjure|dwod

Jo] o|qisuodsal  uosiad payedpep V€

‘SpuISIag pue 82O pesH yloq
1e sureidwod Joj aul suoydsjel paledpad g
"S]OLISIP SE ||om
Sse Juaswedaq ay) pue Jaiwald ay) Jo 92O
yiog eIn Ajeoluoydajey pabbo) swuredwo) T

INSINVHO3IW SLNIVI1dNOD

59

x Ngwanalsejololaitlhakanelwa'y



60

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021 * NORTH WEST DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

2.3 Organisational environment

The North West Department of Education is mandated to provide quality teaching and
learning. To achieve this, the Department has a comprehensive organisational structure
designed and staffed to meet the professional, curriculum, institutional governance and
administrative support demands to deliver services; there are corporate services which

provide management services; educators; the school governing bodies and the learners.

The district support structure comprises of four districts, namely, Ngaka Modiri Molema, Dr
Kenneth Kaunda, Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati and Bojanala. Districts consist of Sub-District
Offices and Circuit Offices. All learner support prorammes including among others Life Skills
Programme, Inclusive Education, School Nutrition Programme, Learner transport, School
Governance and Independent Schools, were put under one directorate called Institutional
Governance Development and Learner Social Support Services (IGD&LSSS) reporting
directly to the Deputy Director General. Teacher Development was moved to Curriculum

Management and Delivery.

In terms of Priority 2 of the MTSF, Economic Transformation and Job creation, the
department needs to increase the pace of improving the socio-economic conditions of young
people, women and persons with disabilities. The Department must set targets that show

redress.

The Department strives to implement the Cabinet White Paper on rights of persons with
disabilities. However, the profile of the employees of the department reflects a low
percentage of persons with disabilities. The Department needs to review equity targets and
progressively increase to achieve 7% by 2030. Job access is also a priority and its
implementation will provide reasonable accommodation to persons with disabilities to ensure

SUcCcCess.

Special schools have been strengthened on a continuous basis. To date, the province has
rehabilitated infrastructure of special schools and full service schools. Infrastructure of
special schools has also been improved. All 32 Special Needs Schools were provided with
appropriate assistive devices such as squeeze pressure vests, talking calculators, textbooks
and workbooks with enlarged font and braille. The department has made strides in

addressing the safety and security concerns in Special Needs Schools. All the 32 special

cnN
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school have access to Social Workers assigned to them. Furthermore, two hundred and

fourteen (214) public ordinary schools have been developed to be full service schools.

The North West Province currently does not have a school for Autism. The learners
diagnosed with Autism are accommodated in special schools for SID learners and
mainstream schools, depending on the severity of the condition. This poses a serious
challenge in terms of the support provision and resources relevant for these learners. The
Department has established a task team that will be responsible for developing an
implementation plan of how to formalize and coordinate the support provided to these
learners. The following special schools have been earmarked to officially start autism units/
classes.
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2.4 Key policy developments and legislative changes

The Basic Education Laws Amendment Act, No 15 of 2011 amended section 60 which deals
with State liability in the South African Schools Act 84 of 1996. This implies, as things now
stand, that the Department will henceforth be liable for delictual, contractual damages or
losses caused as a result of any “act or omission” in connection with school activities. This
necessitates the Department to advise schools to refer all contracts that they intend to
conclude with service providers to the Department and schools should also consider taking
out “insurance” on school activities. The current wording of section 60 is as follows: “Subject
to paragraph (b), the State is liable for any delictual or contractual damage or loss caused as
a result of any act or omission in connection with any school activity conducted by a public
school and for which such public school would have been liable but for the provisions of this

section.”

In the matter of Public Servants Association obo Olufunmilayi Itunu Ubogu Head of
Department of Health, Gauteng and Others [2017] ZACC 45 the Constitutional Court has
declared that section 38 (2) (b) (i) of the Public Service Act 103 of 1994, which allows
employers to effect deductions, for overpayments that is wrongly granted as remuneration or
received as “other benefit not due ...” to employees as unconstitutional. It was held that the
deductions in terms of that provision constitute an unfettered self-help — the taking of the law
by the state into its own hands and enabling it to become the judge in its own cause. The
employer (Department) can only confine and act on overpayments in terms of Section 34 (1)
of the Basic Conditions of Employment Act 75 of 1997 (BCEA) which prohibits an employer
from making deductions from an employee’s remuneration unless by agreement or unless
the deductions are required or permitted in terms of a law or collective agreement or court
order or arbitration award. Any deductions that do not comply with the provisions of the

BCEA stated above may be regarded as unlawful.

In the Centre for Child Law and Others v Minister of Basic Education and Others
(2840/2017)[2019] ZAECGHC 126 (12 December 2019) case, Clauses 15 and 21 of the
admission Policy for Ordinary Public Schools published in Government Gazette 19377 (19
October 1998) under Government Notice 2432 were declared to be inconsistent with the

Constitution, and, therefore invalid.

The Court held that all undocumented children, including children of illegal foreigners, are

entitled to receive basic education and all learners not in possession of an official birth

R4
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certificate must be admitted into public schools. Alternative proof of identity, such as an
affidavit or sworn statement deposed to by the parent, care-giver or guardian of the learner

wherein the learner is fully identified must be accepted.

The department will therefore in future be obliged to provide and fund basic education for all

undocumented children, including children of illegal foreigners.

The Court held MECs accountable for ensuring that NSNP is implemented, that daily
provision of meals happens whether the learners are attending schools or studying away

from school as a result of the COVID 19 pandemic.

The National Schools Nutrition Programme (NSNP) Court order (Case Number 22588/2020.
Date of judgement: 17 July 2020:-

Section 103.9 states that the minister is ordered within 10 days to file at this court under oath
and provide to the applicants, a plan and programme which she will implement without delay

so as to ensure that the MECs carry out without delay their duties referred to in the order

Section 103.11 states that the MECs are each ordered within 10 days to file at this Court
under oath, and provide a copy to the applicants, a plan and programme which they will

implement without delay so as to comply with their duties referred to in the order:

e MEC’s must ensure that eligible learners receive meals whether schools are closed or
not during COVID 19.
e MEC's to report progress every 10 days until the court order is discharged.

e Department of Basic Education will further provide dates for provinces to report.
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3. ACHIEVEMENT OF INSTITUTIONAL IMPACTS AND OUTCOMES

PROGRAMME 1: OUTCOMES, OUTPUTS, PERFORMANCE INDICATORS, PLANNED
ANNUAL TARGET AND ACTUAL ACHIEVEMENT

transferred to

youth participating in internship,

Outcome Outputs Output Indicators Planned Annual | Actual
Target: 2020/21 | Achievement202
0/21
Sound Reliable data PPI 1.1: Number of public schools 1482 1476
governance that use the South African School
practices Administration and Management
System (SA-SAMS) or any
alternative electronic solution to
provide data
PPl 1.2: Percentage of learner data | 98% 98.86%
confirmed by Department of Home
Affairs
PPI 1.3: Percentage alignment of 97% 92%
school data on SASAMS and
PERSAL 1474/160*100
Control PPI 1.4: Percentage of education 10% 9.7%
_ expenditure going towards non-
environment personnel items
PPI 1.5: Percentage of Corporate 50% 0%
Governance of ICT Programs
implemented
PPI 1.6: Percentage of grievances 80% 41.2%
finalised within 30 days
PPI 1.7: Percentage of SGBs in 80% 81%
sampled schools that meet the
minimum criteria in terms of
functionality
PPI 1.8: Percentage of invoices paid | 100% 92%
within 30 days
PPI 1.9: Percentage of bids 100% 0%
processed within 60 days
Strengthened PPI 1.10: Number of advocacy 4 8
partnership campaigns coordinated by QLTC
PPI 1.11: Percentage of functional 40% 10
QLTC structures at four levels
Skilled PPI 1.12: Number of office based 300 321
employees employees trained
Skills PPI 1.13: Number of unemployed 50 50
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Outcome Outputs Output Indicators Planned Annual | Actual
Target: 2020/21 | Achievement202
0/21
unemployed learnerships and /or skills
youth programme
Improved Schools have PPI 1.14: Number of public schools 1482 1476
learning access to that can be contacted electronically
and internet (e-mail)
teaching
PPI 1.15: Percentage of schools 30% 28%
having access to information through
408/1476*100
(a) Connectivity (other than
broadband); and
(b) Broadband
Schools PPI 1.16: Percentage of schools 100% 87%
supported and visited at least twice a year by district
provided with officials for monitoring and support
required purposes
resources
PPl 1.17: Number of qualified Grade | 950 1026
R-12 teachers aged 30 and below,
entering the public service as
teachers for the first time during the
financial year.
PPI 1.18: Number of schools 70 39

monitored on the integration of ICT in
teaching and learning

4. PROGRAMME 2: OUTCOMES, OUTPUTS, PERFORMANCE INDICATORS, PLANNED
ANNUAL TARGET AND ACTUAL ACHIEVEMENT

Outcome Outputs Output Indicators Planned *Actual
Annual Achievement
Target
2020/21
2020/21
Improved Schools supported PPI 2.1: Number of schools provided 25 25
learning and provided with with multi-media resources
and required resources
teaching PPI 2.2: Percentage of Funza Lushaka 100% 197
bursary holders placed in schools within
six months upon completion of studies or
upon confirmation that the bursar has
completed studies.
PPI 2.3: Percentage of schools where 100% 78%
allocated teaching posts are all filled
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educators are more
conscious of the
things they have in

monitored for the programme of
“Incremental introduction of An African

Outcome Outputs Output Indicators Planned *Actual
Annual Achievement
Target
2020/21
2020/21
PPI 2.4: Percentage of learners provided | 100% EFAL=90%
with English First Additional Language '
(EFAL) and Mathematics textbooks in Mathematics=94
Grades 3, 6, 9 and 12 %
PPI 2.5: Percentage of public ordinary 100% 98.19%
schools that received their stationery by
January
PPI 2.6: Percentage of targeted public 100% 97.4%
ordinary schools that received their
textbooks by January
PPI 2.7: Number of workbooks procured | 43 000 0
for top up
PPI 2.8: Number of sampled Grade 3 28 28
schools where learners are tracked
through EGRA tool for Home Language
Skilled Educators PPI 2.9: Number of educators trained in | 340 350
Literacy/ Language content and
methodology
PPI1 2.10: Number of educators trained in | 800 805
Numeracy/ Mathematics content and
methodology
PPI 2.11: Number of educators trained 400 429
on inclusion
PPI1 2.12: Number of school based 2312 1467
educators trained on other interventions
excluding Mathematics and Languages
Pro-poor PPI 2.13: Number of learners in public 715 826 725 252
programmes ordinary schools benefiting from the No-
implemented Fee School Policy
PPI 2.14: Percentage of learners in 100% 100%
schools that are funded at a minimum
level (excluding 2.9 and 2.10)
PPI 2.15: Number of learners provided 85441 116 979
with sanitary towels
PPI 2.16: Number of learners benefiting | 64 574 64 574
from learner transport
Learners and PPI 2.17: Number of sampled schools 3 3
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standard.

Outcome Outputs Output Indicators Planned *Actual
Annual Achievement
Target
2020/21
2020/21
common than their Language”(IIAL)
differences
PPI 2.18: Number of advocacy 2 0
campaigns coordinated by school
enrichment programme
Three stream model | PPI 2.19: Percentage of learners who 40% 10.2
implemented offer at least one subject in the technical,
agricultural, vocational fields
PPI 2.20: Number of learners enrolled in | 1200 1882
technical occupational subjects
PPl 2.21: Number of Agricultural focus 13 13
schools that meet minimum
requirements for conducting Practical
Assessment Tasks
Safe and secure PPI 2.22: Number of schools provided 80 80
learning and with extra support for the achievement of
teaching safety measures
environment
PPI 2.23: Number of reported 80 118
transgressions of school based violence
Sound Control environment | PPI 2.24: Percentage of schools 100% 100%
governance producing a minimum set of
practices management documents at a required

PROGRAMME 3: OUTCOMES, OUTPUTS, PERFORMANCE INDICATORS, PLANNED
ANNUAL TARGET AND ACTUAL ACHIEVEMENT

Outcome | Outputs Output Indicators Planned | *Actual
Annual Achievement
Target
2020/21
2020/21
Improved | Learners | PPI 3.1: Percentage of registered independent 39% 39%
learning | have schools receiving subsidies
and access to
teaching | alternative | PPI 3.2 Number of learners at subsidised 10 100 9997
education | registered independent schools
PPI 3.3 (a): Percentage of registered 100% 100%
independent schools visited for monitoring and
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Outcome | Outputs Output Indicators Planned | *Actual
Annual Achievement
Target
2020/21
2020/21
support (subsidised)
PPI 3.3 (b): Percentage of registered 50% 50%
independent schools visited for monitoring and
support (non-subsidised)
PROGRAMME 4: OUTCOMES, OUTPUTS, PERFORMANCE INDICATORS, PLANNED
ANNUAL TARGET AND ACTUAL ACHIEVEMENT
Outcome | Outputs Output Indicators Planned *Actual
Annual Achievement
Target
2020/21
2020/21
Improved Learners with | PPI 4.1: Percentage of public special 13% 13%
learning special schools serving as resource centres
and needs have
teaching access to PPI 4.2: Number of learners in public 7445 7469
specialised special schools
education .
PPI 4.3: Number of therapists/ 35 29
specialist staff in public special schools
PPl 4.4: Number of Special schools 32 32
provided with assistive devices

PROGRAMME 5: OUTCOMES, OUTPUTS, PERFORMANCE INDICATORS, PLANNED

ANNUAL TARGET AND ACTUAL ACHIEVEMENT

Outcome | Outputs | Output Indicators Planned *Actual
Annual Target | Achievement
2020/21 2020/21
Improved | Grade R | PPI 5.1: Number of public schools that 998 998
learning and pre | offer Grade R
and Grade R
teaching Universal | PPl 5.2: Number of Grade R schools 300 0
ised provided with resources ( include
animated toys )
PPI1 5.3: Number of Grade R educators 100 0
trained
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Outcome

Outputs

Output Indicators

Planned

2020/21

Annual Target

*Actual
Achievement

2020/21

PPI 5.4: Number of practitioners trained | 0
on NQF 4 or above

0

PROGRAMME 6: OUTCOMES, OUTPUTS, PERFORMANCE INDICATORS, PLANNED
ANNUAL TARGET AND ACTUAL ACHIEVEMENT

Outcome Outputs Output Indicators Planned | *Actual
Annual | Achievement
Target
2020/21
2020/21
School School PPI 6.1: Number of public ordinary schools | 130 222
environment | infrastructure | provided with water infrastructure
that inspires | comply with
learners to norms and PPI1 6.2: Number of public ordinary schools | N/A N/A
learn and standards provided with electricity infrastructure
teachers to _ _
teach PPI 6.3: Number of public ordinary schools | 34 58
supplied with sanitation facilities
PPI1 6.4: Number of additional classrooms 300 307
built in, or provided for, existing public
ordinary schools (includes replacement
schools)
PPI1 6.5: Number of additional specialised 11 7
rooms built in public ordinary schools
(includes specialised rooms built in
replacement schools).
PPI1 6.6: Number of new schools that have 7 4
reached completion and are ready for
occupation (includes replacement schools)
PPI1 6.7: Number of new schools under 4 3
construction and unoccupied (includes
replacement schools)
PPI1 6.8: Number of new Grade R 13 9
classrooms built or provided (includes those
in new, existing and replacement schools)
PPI1 6.9: Number of schools provided with 1 0
new or additional boarding facilities
PPI1 6.10: Number of schools where 129 172

x Ngwanalsejololaitlhakanelwa'y

71



ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021 * NORTH WEST DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

upgraded

Outcome Outputs Output Indicators Planned | *Actual
Annual | Achievement
Target
2020/21
2020/21
scheduled maintenance projects were
completed
PPI 6.11: Number of schools provided with | 10 71
high security perimeter fencing
PPI 6.12: Number of full service schools 0 0

PROGRAMME 7: OUTCOMES, OUTPUTS, PERFORMANCE INDICATORS, PLANNED
ANNUAL TARGET AND ACTUAL ACHIEVEMENT

achieving 50% or more in Mathematics

Outcome | Outputs Output Indicators Planned | *Actual
Annual | Achievement
Target
2020/21
2020/21
Improved | Learners PPI 7.1: Percentage of learners in Grade 3 75% 88%
learning | attain attaining acceptable outcomes in Language
and acceptable | (SBA)
teaching | outcomes
PPI1 7.2: Percentage of learners in Grade 3 75% 84%
attaining acceptable outcomes in Mathematics
(SBA)
PPI 7.3: Percentage of learners in Grade 6 75% 91%
attaining acceptable outcomes in Language
PPI 7.4: Percentage of learners in Grade 6 55% 69%
attaining acceptable outcomes in Mathematics
PPI1 7.5: Percentage of learners in Grade 9 65% 81%
attaining acceptable outcomes in Language
PPl 7.6: Percentage of learners in Grade 9 10% 24%
attaining acceptable outcomes in Mathematics
Grade 12 | PPI 7.7: Percentage of learners who passed the | 80% 76.2%
Learners NSC examination
with NSC
passes PPl 7.8: Percentage of Grade 12 learners 30% 32.1%
passing at the Bachelor pass level
PPI 7.9: Percentage of Grade 12 learners 20% 25.8%
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Outcome | Outputs Output Indicators Planned | *Actual
Annual | Achievement
Target
2020/21
2020/21
PPI 7.10: Percentage of Grade 12 learners 22% 25.5%
achieving 50% or more in Physical Sciences
PPI1 7.11: Number of secondary schools with 300 366
National Senior Certificate (NSC) pass rate of
60% and above

Departmental contribution to gender (Women, Youth and disabled) parity

The Department has annually submitted its plans to respond to the Gender Equality
Strategic Framework [GESF] and Job-Access Strategic Framework [JASF]. The Department
has approved a Sexual Harassment Policy for all employees, furthermore, the policy has

been popularised in Districts

Women Empowerment initiatives have gained momentum; not only provincially but also at
District levels, e.g. Women in and Into Management and Leadership. The majority of women
employees avail themselves and patrticipate in Trainings organised through HRU & D, with

high recorded completion rates as well

In terms of women in School Leadership, there is a negligible increase of Women School
Leaders, albeit at lower levels, mostly at Deputy Principal Levels and Principal Level 1 for
Small schools. At PL 4 the status has been 61% Males and 39% Females. In terms of Public
Service Leadership, the last Five years saw women advancing into SL 14, 15 and 16 [HOD
at Superintendent General Level] The Department registered a Yo — yo movement with
appointments, now at 66,% for Males and 33% for females. Many Women are clustered at

SL 9 and lower.

Disability is still not represented at Decision making Levels. Out of 4 Districts, 2 were led by
Women, with a change in 1 year, but recently Bojanala has a Female Acting as District

Manager.

Women are profusely disadvantaged when it relates to Supply Chain Issues. Procurement

still systematically excludes Women, Youth and Persons with Disabilities.
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Learner Information on SAMS; e.g. Learner Pregnancy and Learner Dropout rate can be
used to benefit planning & interventions if it is Gender& Disability disaggregated. During the
previous Academic Year, Learner dropout rate was recorded at 2, 4% not disaggregated.
Total enrolment was 832 512 which means that the system bled almost Twenty thousand
learners. This figure also doesn't disaggregate M/F, and it further trivialises the existing

problem. Twenty thousand is a very worrying number.

GLIP: Over the 5 Year period, girl learners were afforded enriched Mathematics and Science
lessons in order to open their doors for equal opportunities. This programme was consistent
in the last five years. GEM/BEM, Peer Education Programme, GBV Response in Schools, in
partnership with MSF [Doctors without Borders] Girls and Boys Empowerment Jamborees

were also done in some years.

Boys Manhood Camps; 400 Boys were taken through a programme that aims to curb anti —
Social behaviour among adolescent boys in Secondary Schools. This is one programme that

can yield positive results if more boys can be reached.

Disability- Over and above improvement of Infrastructure Delivery in Special Schools, the
Department is continuously retro —fitting existing schools to be of Full Service Standard. This
however, is not resonated through enrolments in those schools. Rural/Urban/Township/Non
— Citizen Mix: Farm and Rural School Education continue to open doors of learning to the
most disadvantaged Communities, on an incremental basis. Provision of Sanitary Dignity
Packs [Towels] has indeed gained traction as a campaign to ensure that even during their

menstrual cycle, girl children attend school [Keeping girls in schools (KGIS)].

Cross cutting priorities

In terms of Priority 2 of the MTSF, Economic Transformation and Job creation, the
department needs to increase the pace of improving the socio-economic conditions of young
people, women and persons with disabilities. The Department must set targets that show
redress.

The Department strives to implement the Cabinet White Paper on rights of persons with
disabilities. However, the profile of the employees of the department reflects a low
percentage of persons with disabilities. The Department needs to review equity targets and

progressively increase to achieve 7% by 2030. Job access is also a priority and its
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implementation will provide reasonable accommodation to persons with disabilities to ensure

Success.

Special schools have been strengthened on a continuous basis. To date, the province has
rehabilitated infrastructure of special schools and full service schools. Infrastructure of
special schools has also been improved. All 32 Special Needs Schools were provided with
appropriate assistive devices such as squeeze pressure vests, talking calculators, textbooks
and workbooks with enlarged font and braille. The department has made strides in
addressing the safety and security concerns in Special Needs Schools. All the 32 special
school have access to Social Workers assigned to them. Furthermore, two hundred and

fourteen (214) public ordinary schools have been developed to be full service schools.

The North West Province currently does not have a school for Autism. The learners
diagnosed with Autism are accommodated in special schools for SID learners and
mainstream schools, depending on the severity of the condition. This poses a serious
challenge in terms of the support provision and resources relevant for these learners. The
Department has established a task team that will be responsible for developing an
implementation plan of how to formalize and coordinate the support provided to these
learners. The following special schools have been earmarked to officially start autism units/
classes.

Amendments to strategic plan

None
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5. INSTITUTIONAL PROGRAMME PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

5.1 Programme 1: ADMINISTRATION

Purpose:

To provide overall management of the education system in accordance with

the National Education Policy Act, the Public Finance Management Act and

other relevant policies

o List the sub-programmes

Sub-programme

Description

Objective

Sub-programme 1.1

Office of the MEC

To provide for the functioning of the
office of the Member of the Executive
Council (MEC) for education in line
with the ministerial handbook

Sub-programme 1.2

Corporate Services

To provide management services
which are not education specific for the

education system

Sub-programme 1.3

Education Management

To provide education management

services for the education system

Sub-programme 1.4

Human Resource

Development

To provide human resource

development for office-based staff

Sub-programme 1.5

Education Management
Information System
(EMIS)

To provide Education Management
Information System in accordance with
the National Education Information
Policy

Sub-programme 1.6

Conditional grant

To provide for projects under
programme 1 specifies by the
Department of Basic Education and
funded by conditional grants
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Institutional outcomes that the programme contributes towards according to the

Annual Performance Plan.

Electronic access to schools, Non-personnel expenditure, Functional SGBs, Schools
have access to information, skilled employees, Skills transferred to unemployed youth,

Schools integrate ICT in teaching and learning, Schools monitored.
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1.1. PROGRAMME 1: Administration

Purpose: To provide overall management of the education system in accordance

with the National Education Policy Act, the Public Finance Management

Act and other relevant policies

Sub-Programme:

Sub-programme

Description

Objective

Sub-programme
11

Office of the MEC

To provide for the functioning of the office
of the Member of the Executive Council
(MEC) for education in line with the

ministerial handbook

Sub-programme
1.2

Corporate Services

To provide management services which
are not education specific for the education

system

Sub-programme
1.3

Education

Management

To provide education management

services for the education system

Sub-programme
14

Human Resource

Development

To provide human resource development

for office-based staff

Sub-programme
15

Education
Management
Information System
(EMIS)

To provide Education Management
Information System in accordance with the

National Education Information Policy

Sub-programme
1.6

Conditional grant

To provide for projects under programme 1
specifies by the Department of Basic
Education and funded by conditional

grants
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Purpose: To provide public ordinary education from Grades 1 to 12, in accordance with the

South African Schools Act and White Paper 6 on Inclusive Education (e-learning is

also included)

The sub-programmes

Sub-programme Description

Objective

Sub-programme 2.1: Public primary level

To provide specific public primary ordinary
schools (including inclusive education)
with resources required for the Grade 1 to

7 levels.

Sub-programme 2.2: Public secondary level

To provide specific public secondary
ordinary schools (including inclusive
education) with resources required for the

Grades 8 to 12 levels.

Sub-programme 2.3: Human resource

development

To provide departmental services for the
development of educators and non-
educators in public ordinary schools

(including inclusive education).

Sub-programme 2.4: School sport, culture and

media services

To provide additional and departmentally
managed sporting, cultural and reading
activities in public ordinary schools

(including inclusive education).

Sub-programme 2.5: Conditional grants

To provide for projects under (including
inclusive education) under programme 2
specified by the Department of Basic
Education and funded by conditional

grants
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° Institutional outcomes that programme 2 contributes towards according to the Annual

Performance Plan.

Schools resourced with multi-media, Learners benefit from no-fee school policy, Young educators
placed, Learners are funded at minimum level, Reduction of female learners absenteeism, Learners
benefit from learner transport, Human resource capacity ensured, Grades 3,6,9 and 12 Learners
have EFAL textbooks, Grades 3,6,9 and 12 Learners have Mathematics textbooks, Adequate
stationery provided, Adequate textbooks provided, Schools are implementing EGRA, Skilled
educators in Language, Skilled educators in Mathematics, Skilled educators on inclusion, Skilled
educators on other interventions, African languages introduced, Social cohesion improved, Three
stream model implemented, Economically relevant learners, Improved performance of Agricultural

focus schools, Safe schools, Reduced violence in schools.

Outcomes, outputs, output indicators, targets and actual achievements

The achievement of targets in training of teachers in Maths and Maths literacy as well as Languages are
very significant in addressing the governmental needs. Both Training in languages and Mathematics have
women in the majority. Women trained in Maths and maths literacy are 471 as opposed to 396 Men. In

languages 297 women were trained as opposed to 120 men.

In accord with Action Plan to 2019 Towards the realisation of Schooling 2030 Taking forward South
Africa’s National Development Plan 2030 the minister of basic education says “We are working with
the Department of Higher Education and Training (DHET) to better influence the quality and
preparation of our teachers and ultimately, our learners, in critical subjects including mathematics,
science and technology, and the African languages. The achievements in the above subjects is
something to pride ourselves of in heading for the minister dream according to the above mentioned

policy document.

In 10 ordinary public schools province is successfully piloting occupational subjects towards improving the
career pathing of leaners. In 126 schools teachers have been identified and training is in progress to
implement Coding and Robotics in response to the fourth industrial revolution. There are challenges
experienced such as the unavailability of properly qualified teachers and resources required. As
corrective steps, the province arranged localised training sessions for teachers. An audit was conducted
and business plan compiled for the essential equipment. Provisioning availed from the conditional grant

for prioritised needs.

With regard to training of educators trained on inclusion,
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A target of 2400 teachers to be trained was reduced to 400 in order to adhere to COVID 19 regulations.
The revised target was exceeded due to funding by Autism SA to train 20 participants. (17 teachers and 3
officials)The department through collaboration with ETDP SETA and the North West University managed
to conduct virtual trainings on Support for Learning Barriers. The trainings are aimed at capacitating
teachers in mainstream and special schools to support learners experiencing barriers to learning. The
department has also through the collaboration with AUTISM SA and ESKOM continued to train teachers

from special schools on Autism in order for the teachers to be able to support the learners.

Life Skills HIV and AIDS Programme networked with stakeholders to increase capacity of
Psychosocial Support Services in schools to address psychological problems and provide care and

support to learners, educators.

Trainings, awareness campaigns for safety were not fully implemented due to covid restrictions

such as reduction of contact activities.
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Programmes that could not run due to the Covid 19 challenges are prioritised for the new financial year.
That is 2021/22. Noting that Covid is still with us and the possibility of resurgence of other waves, virtual

training is strengthened. District teacher Development Centres are strengthened to assist with virtual

training and learning
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Purpose: To support Independent schools in accordance with the South African School Act

Sub-Programme

Sub-programme Description Objective
Sub-programme 3.1: | Primary Phase To support independent schools in Grades 1
to7

Sub-programme 3.2: | Secondary Phase | To support independent schools in Grades 8
to 12

o Institutional outcome for Programme 3

Improved learning and teaching.

108



NORTH WEST DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

*

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021

MBIAB] JBpUN JeaA [eioueul) aU) Ul Uejd 8oUeWIOuSd [enuuy ue pajgel-al sey juswiedap e aiaym aoueisul ayl uj) Buljger-al

JO 31Bp [UN Ue|d 8oURWIOUSd [enuuy pajgel AjreulbLio ay) Ul pa1odajias uoirewlojul souewlouad ay1 01 uonejal ul pauodal 8 ISNW JUSWBASIYIR [BNIOVx

(pasipisans
UON)
uoddns pue
Burionuow Joy
Pa1ISIA S|00Y2S uolreonps
Juspuadapu) | @AIewd)e | Bulyoes)
—Um._muw_mw._ 0] SSadde pue
"olwspued j0 abejuadiad aney | DBuiures)
6T PINOD Vv/N VIN VIN %00T %00T %00T ()es 1dd slaulea | paroiduw
s1ebie] T2/020¢ 0c0¢/6T0C 6T0¢Z/8T0C
[enuuy / sioreaipui JUBWIBASIYIY 9 AInp 99 29
indino / sindino | suoneinsp [en1oy o} [nun T¢/020e 12/020C | uewioped | uewlopiad
3y} 0] SUOISIASI 10} 196.1e1 pauue|d JUBWIAABIYIY 1961e] renuuy [enoy [en1oy
10} suoseay suoseay woJy uoneireg [en1ovy pauue|d paypny paupny loyeaipu| Indino indino awWo2IN0

;awuwrelboid-gns / swwesbold

Ue|d 90UBWIoyISd [enuuy pajgel-al ay) 1surebe 1oday g0 (WMalAal JIopun 1eak [eroueur oyj Ul uejd souewlionad

[enuuy aUl 9|ge1-al 10U pip uswedap e aloym aoueisul oy U[) Ue|d aJuelliolad [enuuy pajgel Ajjeulblio o) 1surebe 1i0dal e 10J pash oq 01

Tvvealgel

SIUSWBaAaIYOB [enjoe pue s1ebie] 's1ojedlpul JNdIno 'sindino 'sewodIn0

109

x Ngwanalsejololaitlhakanelwa'y



NORTH WEST DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

*

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021

Burionuow Joy
palSIA S|00YIS

juapuadapul
paiaisibal
Jo abriuadliad
SUON %0 %00T %00T %00T %00T (e)ee Idd
‘s|ooyos
1wapuadapu]
Buualua
slaules)
JO Jaquinu
dweaud jouued
wawedap S|00Y9S
oy pue Juspuadapul
QUCQE‘_O.._LGQ UO‘_mu—m_@Oh
s.Jeak snoinaud pasipisgns
8y} uo paseq e siaules| Jo
SRETEET €0T- /66 6 00T OT 9296 TOC OT | JjaqwinN :Z°€ Idd
salpisqns
Buinigoal
s|jooyos
wapuadapul uolyeonps
pasaysifol | @AIEUISIE 0) Buiyoea)
j0 abejuadIag | SS999e dney | pue Bulures
SUON %0 %6¢€ %6E %Sy %St T°S 1dd Slaulean panoidu|
12/0202
JUBWIBA3IYIY T¢/0c0¢
[en1oy w 1¢/0c0e 0202/6T0Z 6102/8T02
suoneinap 01186161 pauue|d | awanalyoy | 1861e] enuuy aoueWIOIad aouewWIOlIad
10} suoseay wouj uolrelnaq [eN1OV xx pauue|d [en1oy palpny [en1oy pallpny Jo1e901pU| IndINO 1ndino awo921n0

Ue|d eoueWIollad [enuly pa|gel-al ayl 1surebe 1oday g0 (MalAal lopun TeaA [eloueul] oyl Ul Ue|d eoUewlollad [enuuy ay]

3|0er-al

J0U pIp 1UaWliedap e alaym aouelsul ay] U]) ue|d aouewWlollad [enuuy pajqel A[euiblio ay) jsurebe 1iodal e 10J pasn aq oL

$Cv've slqel

110



NORTH WEST DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

*

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021

[UN UB|d 9ouUBWIOLIBd [enuuy pajgel AjjeulbLio ayl ul palosjjal uoiewoul asurwlouad ayl 0] uone|al ul pauodal ag 1SNW JUSWSASIYIR [eN1OYx

MBIABI Japun Jeak [elourul) 8Y] Ul Ue|d 8dUBWIOLSd [enuuy ue pajgel-al sey juswyuedap e aiaym asurisul ayl uj) Bulgel-al jo arep

(pasipisans
UON)

uoddns pue
Burioyuow Joy
PalSIA S|00YIS

juspuadapul
paiaisibal
Jo abejuadiad
SUON %0 %09 %05 %00T %00T (q)ee 1dd
(pasipisqns)
uoddns pue
12/0202
JUSWAASIYIY T¢/0¢0ce
[en1oy w Te/ocoe 0202/6T02 6102/8T0Z
suoneinap 031 106.Je] pauue|d | awaAsIydy | 186Ie] [enuuy aouewWIoiad aouewlioliad
10} suoseay wolj uoneinaqg [eN10V xx pauue|d [en1oy palpny [en1oy palpny J01e2Ipu| Ind1nO indino awo21nQ0

111

x Ngwanalsejololaitlhakanelwa'y



NORTH WEST DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

*

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021

670 €€ 87T €€ 040007 g TL0G¢ 90G¢ - 9.0 G¢
1206 866 8 %0°00T - 6¢L9 6¢L9 - 66L9 aselq Arpuo3ss 7
o 09T 72 %0°00T g £e8e 1£S 87 - LE8 8T aseyd Aewiid T
awwesboid gng
000d 000d % 000d 0004 000d 000d 0004 000d
uoneudoJdde

amipuady3 | uorerdosddy | jeuly oo aimipuadx3 | uonendolddy spun uonerdoiddy

[enay [eUl4  [seaimipuady3| JueLeA | [EMdY [eul Juawallp | Jo Bumiys paisnipy

0¢/670¢ Tel0e0e

$3101S3NS 100HIS LNIANIIANI € JNINYHOOYd

JUNLIONIdX3 :€ INNYYO04d

112



ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021 * NORTH WEST DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Purpose: To provide compulsory public education in Special Schools in accordance with the South
African Schools Act and white paper 6 on Inclusive Education (including e-learning and inclusive

education)

Sub-programme

Description

Objective

Sub-programme 4.1

Schools

To provide specific public special
schools with resources. (Including E-

learning and inclusive education)

Sub-programme 4.2

Human resource

development

To provide departmental services for
the development of educators and
non-educators in public special
schools (including inclusive

education).

Sub-programme 4.3

School sport, culture

and media services

To provide additional and
departmentally managed sporting,
cultural and reading activities in public
special schools (including inclusive

education).

Sub-programme 4.4

Conditional grants

To provide for projects under
programme 4 specified by the
Department of Basic Education and
funded by conditional grants

(including inclusive education).
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Qutcomes, outputs, output indicators, targets and actual achievements

Care givers and special schools’ teachers were trained to provide care and education for
learners with severe to profound intellectual disability. Various trainings took place as

indicated below:

1. 250 caregivers and special schools teachers were trained

2. Training of 68 principals and officials was successfully conducted on the 8th February 2021,
training of 98 teachers was conducted on the 9 — 10 February 2021 and training of 78
caregivers was successfully conducted on the 11 — 12 February 2021. The budget, thereof,
was R736, 550.00, the expenditure was R728, 405.00 and the balance was R8, 145.00.

3. Improved access in special schools, Therapists/ specialist staff are appointed in Special
schools, Public special schools serve as resource centres, Special schools have assistive

devices.

114
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6.1 Programme5

Purpose: To provide Early Childhood Development (ECD) at the Grade R and Pre-Grade R in

accordance with White Paper 5 (E-learning included)

The sub-programmes

Sub-programme Description

Objective

Sub-programme 5.1: Grade R in public schools

To provide specific public ordinary schools

with resources required for Grade R.

Sub-programme 5.2: Grade R in early
childhood development

centres

To support Grade R at early childhood

development centres.

Sub-programme 5.3: Pre-Grade R Training

To provide training and payment of

stipends of Pre-Grade R Practitioners.

Sub-programme 5.4: Human resource

development

To provide departmental services for the
development of educators and Grade R
classroom assistants in public schools and
practitioners in community based ECD

centres.

Sub-programme 5.5: Conditional grants

To provide for projects under programme
5 specified by the Department of Basic
Education and funded by conditional

grants.

o Institutional outcome for Programme 5

Improved learning and teaching.

Qutcomes, outputs, output indicators, targets and actual achievements

The department managed to extend curriculum in 10 public ordinary schools towards realisation of

universalisation of grade R.
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Programme 6

Purpose: To provide and maintain infrastructure facilities for schools and non-schools

The sub-programmes

Sub-programme Description

Objective

Sub-programme Administration

To provide and maintain infrastructure

6.1: facilities for administration.
Sub-programme Public Ordinary | To provide and maintain infrastructure
6.2: Schools facilities for public ordinary schools

Sub-programme Special Schools

To provide and maintain infrastructure

6.3: facilities for public special schools
Sub-programme Early Childhood | To provide and maintain infrastructure
6.4 Development facilities for early childhood

development

Institutional outcomes for Programme 6

School infrastructure comply with norms and standards
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Strateqy to overcome areas of under performance

e Stringed monitoring of Implementing Agent through execution of Service Level Agreement
e SLA to be monitored per projects

Linking performance with budgets
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10. INSTITUTIONAL PROGRAMME PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

10.1 Programme 7

Purpose: To provide the Educational Institutions with examination and education related

services

The sub-programmes

Sub-programme

Description

Objective

Sub-programme 7.1

Payments to SETA

To provide employee HRD in accordance with
the Skills Development Act.

Sub-programme 7.2

Professional
Services

To provide educators and learners in schools
with  departmentally = managed  support

services.

Sub-programme 7.3

Special projects

To provide for special departmentally
managed intervention projects in the

education system as a whole.

Sub-programme 7.4

External

examinations

To provide for departmentally managed

examination services.

Sub-programme 7.5

Conditional grant

To provide for projects specified by the
Department of Education that is applicable to
more than one programme and funded with
conditional grants.

° Institutional outcomes for programme 7

Improved learning and teaching. Nm

Outcomes, outputs, output indicators, targets and actual achievements

The reduction in the notional time had a positive impact as learners did not have to attend to the

subjects, at home and at school.
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Teachers had enough time especially that they were not called now and then for meetings and
workshops as Covid-19 protocols did not allow, they spent time at schools, focusing on teaching

and doing curriculum administration.

The Gr 6 and 9 papers were sampled for moderation, as a means of ensuring that learners were

tested correctly and appropriately.
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11. The table below reflects the transfer payments which were budgeted for in the period 1 April 2020 to

31 March 2021, but no transfer payments were made.

Name of | Type of | Purpose for which the funds | Did the | Amount | Amount | Reasons
transferee organisatio | were used dept. transferr | spent by | for the
n comply ed the funds
with s 38 | (R'000) entity unspent
1) () of by the
the PFMA entity
Nat  School To provide nutritious meals | YES 479 479 None
Nutrition Prog to targeted learners. 120 120
Grant
Farm Schools To provide quality education | YES 59 59 None
to Grade 1 — Grade 12 258 258
learners in accordance with
SASA and Payment of
rental to farm owners of
farm schools
Public ordinary To provide public ordinary | YES 165 165 None
Schools education from Grade 983 983
Section21
Independent To support independent | YES 35 35 None
Schools schools in accordance with 071 071
SASA.
Public Special To support special schools | YES 548 548 None
Schools in accordance with SASA. 533 533
Early To provide Early Childhood | YES 50 50 None
Childhood Education at Grade R and 838 838
Development earlier levels in accordance
with the white paper5
Maths, To provide and support | YES 2 2 None
Science and schools in mathematics, 500 500
Technology science and technology.
Grant.
Education To provide for once off | YES 8 8 None
Infrastructure cleaning at schools. 615 615
grant
Special To provide for Presidential | YES 430 430 None
projects Employment initiative. 531 531

5.1. Transfer payments to public entities

None
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5.2. Transfer payments to all organisations other than public entities

The table below reflects the transfer payments which were budgeted for in the period 1 April 2020 to 31

March 2021, but no transfer payments were made.

Name of Type of Purpose for which the funds Did the Amount | Amount | Reasons
transferee organisation | were used dept. transferr | spent by | for the
comply ed the funds
withs 38 | (R'000) entity unspent
(1) () of by the
the PFMA entity
Nat  School To provide nutritious | YES 479 479 None
Nutrition Prog meals to targeted 120 120
Grant learners.
Farm Schools To  provide  quality | YES 59 59 None
education to Grade 1 — 258 258
Grade 12 learners in
accordance with SASA
and Payment of rental to
farm owners of farm
schools
Public ordinary To provide public ordinary | YES 165 165 None
Schools education from Grade 983 983
Section21
Independent To support independent | YES 35 35 None
Schools schools in accordance 071 071
with SASA.
Public Special To  support  special | YES 548 548 None
Schools schools in accordance 533 533
with SASA.
Early To provide Early | YES 50 50 None
Childhood Childhood Education at 838 838
Development Grade R and earlier levels
in accordance with the
white paper5
Maths, To provide and support | YES 2 2 None
Science and schools in mathematics, 500 500
Technology science and technology.
Grant.
Education To provide for once off | YES 8 8 None
Infrastructure cleaning at schools. 615 615
grant
Special To provide for Presidential | YES 430 430 None
projects Employment initiative. 531 531
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12. CONDITIONAL GRANTS

6.1. Conditional grants and earmarked funds paid

The table below describes each of the conditional grants and earmarked funds paid by the

department.

Conditional Grant 1; NSNP

Department/ Municipality to

whom the grant has been

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Purpose of the grant

TO PROVIDE NUTRIOUS MEALS TO TARGETED
SCHOOLS

Expected outputs of the grant

NUMBER OF LEARNWERS BENEFITING TO NSNP

Actual outputs achieved

677 913

Amount per amended DORA

N/A

Amount transferred (R’000)

R516 114 000

Reasons if amount as per
DORA not transferred

N/A

Amount spent by the

department/ municipality

R488 137 077,62

Reasons for the funds

unspent by the entity

NONE TRANSFER OF FUNDS TO SCHOOLS FOR THE
MONTH OF MAY AND JUNE DUE TO COVID-19

Monitoring mechanism by the

transferring department

THE SUB -DIRECTORATE HAS 36 MONITORS IN THE
DISTRICT AND SUB-DISTRICTS
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Conditional Grant 2: Learners with Profound Intellectual Disability Grant

Department/ Municipality to
whom the grant has been

Department of Basic Education

Purpose of the grant

To provide the necessary support, resources and equipment to

identified care centres and schools for the provision of education

Expected outputs of the grant

Human resources specific to inclusive education through the

recruitment of key staff in permanent posts, including:

Actual outputs achieved

Human resources specific to inclusive education through the

recruitment of key staff in permanent posts, including:

Amount per amended DORA

R18, 414,000.00

Amount transferred (R’000)

R18, 414,000.00

Reasons if amount as per

DORA not transferred

None

Amount  spent by the

department/ municipality

R15, 634, 029.00

Reasons for the funds

unspent by the entity

Orders generated but service providers delayed the deliveries

due to numerous reasons

Monitoring mechanism by the

transferring department

Intervention plan developed

Conditional Grant 3: EPWP INCENTIVE GRANT

Department/ Municipality to

whom the grant has been

Department of Education

Purpose of the grant

Job Creation

Expected outputs of the grant

Poverty alleviation

Actual outputs achieved

100%

Amount per amended DORA

R 7 505 000,00
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Amount transferred (R’000)

R 7 505 000,00

Reasons if amount as per n/a
DORA not transferred

Amount  spent by the n/a
department/ municipality

Reasons for the funds n/a

unspent by the entity

Monitoring mechanism by the

transferring department

Annual Report, Quarterly Reports and I'YM submitted

Conditional Grant 4: MST

Department/ Municipality to

whom the grant has been

Department of Basic Education

Purpose of the grant

To provide support and resources to schools, teachers and
the Curriculum Assessment
the

line with
Statements (CAPS) for

Science and Technology (MST) teaching and learning at selected

learners in Policy

improvement of Mathematics,

public schools.

Expected outputs of the grant

A. Information, Communication and Technology (ICT)

resources with subject specific content
B. Workshop, Equipment, Machinery and tools

C. Laboratory and workshop equipment, apparatus and

consumables
D. Learner support
E. Teacher Support

F. 1% Administration, Monitoring and support
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Actual outputs achieved

A.
PROVISION OF ICT

Each of the 83 MST schools supplied with a laptop

Each of the 83 MST schools supplies with a data

projectors

1 266 tablets supplied to 38 MST schools in Bojanala
730 tablets supplied to 22 MST schools in DR KK
563 tablets supplied to 19 MST schools in DR RSM
76 routers supplied to 38 MST schools in Bojanala
44 routers supplied to 22 MST schools in DR KK

38 routers supplied to 19 MST schools in DR RSM

42 routers supplied to 21 schools in NMM

Supply of tablets to qrade 12 learners due to re-
purposed funds due to the effects of COVID-19

Grade 12 learners in DR RSM supplied with 5 272 tablets
Grade 12 learners in DR KK supplied with 4 870

B.
WORKSHOP, EQUIPMENT, MACHINERY AND TOOLS

19 Technical schools supplied with consumables for Civil

Technology by two service providers

19 Technical schools supplied with consumables for

Mechanical Technology by two Service providers

19 Technical schools supplied with consumables for

Electrical Technology by one service provider

19 Technical schools supplied with models for
Engineering and Graphics Design (EGD)
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Amount per amended DORA R35 702 000.00

Amount transferred (R’000) R35 702 000.00

Reasons if amount as per N/A

DORA not transferred

Amount spent by the R32 679 282.30
department/ municipality

e An amount of R1 070 610.00 committed for procurement
of tablets for MST schools in NMM schools was not spent
due to the fact that the service provider could not deliver

Reasons for the funds
. on time as tablets were out of stock since manufacturers
unspent by the entity
could not meet the demands as a result of COVID-19
restrictions. Roll-over to that effect was applied on the

15™ of April 2021.

Monitoring mechanism by the Performance of the grant was monitored quarterly by DBE

transferring department officials accompanied by Provincial MST officials.

Conditional Grant 5: INFRASTRUCTURE

Department/ Department of Education
Municipality to whom

the grant has been

transferred
To help accelerate construction, maintenance, upgrading and
rehabilitation of new and existing infrastructure in education including
Purpose of the grant district and circuit accommodation, to enhance capacity to deliver

infrastructure in education and to address damage to infrastructure

caused by natural disasters.

INDICATOR EXPECTED
OUTPUTS OF THE

Expected outputs of the GRANT

grant

PPl 6.1: Number of public ordinary schools | 130
provided with water supply
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Department/ Department of Education
Municipality to whom
the grant has been

transferred

PPl 6.2: Number of public ordinary schools | n/A
provided with electricity supply

PPl 6.3: Number of public ordinary schools | 34
supplied with sanitation facilities

PPl 6.4: Number of additional classrooms | 300
built in, or provided for, existing public
ordinary schools (includes replacement

schools)

PPl 6.5: Number of additional specialised | 11
rooms built in public ordinary schools
(includes  specialised rooms built in

replacement schools).

PPl 6.6: Number of new schools that have | 7
reached completion and are ready for

occupation (includes replacement schools)

PPl 6.7: Number of new schools under | 4
construction and unoccupied (includes

replacement schools)

PPI 6.8: Number of new Grade R classrooms | 13
built or provided (includes those in new,

existing and replacement schools).

PPl 6.9: Number of schools provided with | 1

new or additional boarding facilities

PPl 6.10: Number of schools where | 129
scheduled maintenance projects were

completed

PPl 6.11: Number of schools provided with | 19

high security perimeter fencing

_ 155
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Department/ Department of Education
Municipality to whom
the grant has been

transferred

PPl 6.1: Number of public ordinary schools | 222

provided with water supply

PPl 6.2: Number of public ordinary schools | n/A
provided with electricity supply

PPl 6.3: Number of public ordinary schools | 5g

supplied with sanitation facilities

PPl 6.4: Number of additional classrooms | 307
built in, or provided for, existing public
ordinary schools (includes replacement

schools)

PPl 6.5: Number of additional specialised | 7
rooms built in public ordinary schools
(includes  specialised rooms  built in

replacement schools).

PPl 6.6: Number of new schools that have | 4
reached completion and are ready for

occupation (includes replacement schools)

PPl 6.7: Number of new schools under | 4
construction and unoccupied (includes

replacement schools)

PPl 6.8: Number of new Grade R classrooms | g
built or provided (includes those in new,

existing and replacement schools).

PPl 6.9: Number of schools provided with | g

new or additional boarding facilities

PPl 6.10: Number of schools where | 172
scheduled maintenance projects were

completed
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Department/
Municipality to whom
the grant has been

transferred

Department of Education

PPl 6.11: Number of schools provided with
high security perimeter fencing

45

Amount per amended
DORA

894 785

Amount transferred
(R’000)

894 785

Reasons if amount as
per DORA not
transferred

Amount spent by the
department/

municipality (R’000)

862 463

Reasons for the funds
unspent by the entity

Late submission of Invoices

Monitoring mechanism
by the transferring

department

IRM
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Conditional Grant 6: HIV and AIDS

Department/ Municipality to | Department of Education

whom the grant has been

Purpose of the grant

To support South Africa’'s HIV prevention strategy by
providing comprehensive sexuality education and access to
sexual and reproductive health services to learners

To mitigate the impact of HIV and TB by providing a caring,

supportive and enabling environment for learners and

educators

Expected outputs of the grant

Number of learners benefiting from care and support activities

Number of educators trained to provide care and support for

vulnerable learners.

Number of schools visits to monitor the implementation of the
care and support within life skills HIV and AIDS programmes.

Actual outputs achieved

Learners (28 726) participated in the awareness campaigns
and

education sessions on prevention of HIV, Teenage
Pregnancy (Let's Talk), Sexual and Gender Based Violence,
TB, Covid-19

Learners (9 634) reached through psychosocial support

Material Support - 10 012 learners reached (food parcels,

spectacles, uniform sanitary towels from solicited donors)
Identification & Support of vulnerable learners

Educators (500) on response on Sexual and gender Based
Violence workshop

Amount per amended DORA

R 12 734 000,00

Amount transferred (R’000)

R 12 734 000,00
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Department/ Municipality to

whom the grant has been

Department of Education

Reasons if amount as per
DORA not transferred

None

Amount spent by the

department/ municipality

R 12 723 275,39

Reasons for the funds
unspent by the entity

None

Monitoring mechanism by the

transferring department

Conduct schools visits to monitor and support the

implementation of the programme

Conduct District support meeting to assess the progress

of the implementation

Include auditor general, internal audit, evaluation finding
the agenda in order to ensure that the findings are

addressed

Employ intervention strategies to address findings of the

auditors/ evaluation

Conditional Grant 7: EXPANDED PUBLIC WORKS PROGRAMME INTEGRATED GRANT

Department/ Municipality to

whom the grant has been

Department of Education from Department of Public
Works

Purpose of the grant

Poverty alleviation and job creation.

Expected outputs of the grant

Number of jobs created

Actual outputs achieved

Number of beneficiaries whom jobs has been created for

or benefited from the program

Amount per amended DORA

R2.002 million

Amount transferred (R’000)

The first Tranche R501 000

Reasons if amount as per
DORA not transferred

N/A
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13. DONOR FUNDS
14. Donor Funds Received
None

8.1. CAPITAL INVESTMENT
8.2. Capital investment, maintenance and asset management plan

A. MOVABLE ASSETS

Physical Asset Verification process for the 2020/21 financial year started in February 2021, and just
like in the previous financial year the verification could not be done in full due to COVID-19
restrictions. The Asset Register was updated with reports from the verified assets. No serious

movement of assets was experienced during the financial year.

58% of our assets fall within the category of “fair and poor” conditions, and 42% of the assets fall

under “new and good” conditions.

214 assets with the value of R642 709.97 were retired (disposals) from the Asset Register. 563
Assets acquired prior 1st April 2000 which stood in the Asset Register at R1 value each, were
subjected to a valuation process and their values increased the Asset Register insignificantly by
R202 921.49

New assets worth R111 264 974.00 were procured, and these assets included major assets
namely; vehicles, computers and furniture. 65 vehicles worth R23 189 400.00, and IT equipment
worth R69 230 907.00 were procured.

The distribution of vehicles was as follows: Head Office (08 vehicles), Bojanala (17), Ngaka Modiri
Molema (16), Dr KK (11) and Dr RSM (13).

Regarding distribution of IT Equipment, 120 Laptops worth R5 078 975.00 was shared amongst
offices, and 118 Laptops and 30 292 Tablets worth R64 151 932.00 were provided to schools.
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B. Immovable assets

2019/2020 2019/2020 2019/2020
Final
Infrastructure Final Appropriation Final Actual( (Over)/Under
projects Appropriation(Original) (Repurpose - Appropriation Expenditure) Expenditure
COVID 19)
R’000 R’000 R’'000 R’000 R’000
New and R163 942 166 373 229992 | - 63619
replacement assets R601 047
- Upgrades and 166
additions R344 258 R257 020 173255 726 6529
- Rehabilitation, 5
renovations and R17 688 1630 371 - 741
refurbishments R43 705
- Maintenance and 145
repairs R48 000 R74 000 173 917 849 28 068
29
-Non Infrustructure R55 035 R32135 21575 000 ) 1425
284
-COVID 19 ) R350 000 R350 000 973
Infrastructure
transfer
- Current
- Capital
Total R1 092 045 R894 785 R892 750 R858 911 -R31 188

Capital investment, maintenance and asset management plan

Major repairs and renovation of Onkgopotse Tiro Combined School Hostel for boys was planned for year
under review and is at practical completion. The remaining girl’s hostel renovation is planned for 2021/22

Maintenance for 2020/21 was adjusted from R 48million to R174 million (32%) of repurposed R542million
for Infrastructure for 129 school. Maintenance intervention was made in 172 schools addressing the
maintenance backlog during the period under review. This has resulted in reduced maintenance backlog,

o Infrastructure projects that are currently completed and in progress (list projects)
NO|SCHOOL NAME |DISTRICT SCOPE STATUS
Syfersbult
1 [Primary Bojanala Erection of Fencing 100%
Tshirologang
2 [Primary Bojanala Construction of Wall Fencing 100%
Moremogolo
3 |Primary Bojanala Erection of Fencing 100%
Dikeledi
Makapan
4 Primary Bojanala Construction of Guard House 100%
5 |Dimapo Primary |Bojanala Construction of Guard House 100%
6 |Lorato Primary |Bojanala Minor Renovations 100%
Moemise
7 [Primary Bojanala Repair Dyfunctional Toilets Construction 76-99%
8 [Ofentse Primary |Bojanala Repair Dyfunctional Toilets 100%
9 Borite Primary |Bojanala Construction of Precast Toilets Construction 51-76%
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NO|SCHOOL NAME |DISTRICT SCOPE STATUS
10 |[Nkukise Primary |Bojanala Drilling of Borehole 100%
Molotlegi
11 |Malebye Bojanala Drilling of Borehole Construction 51-76%
Dithoteng
12 |Primary Bojanala Drilling of Borehole 100%
Mochudi
13 [Secondary Bojanala Drilling of Borehole 100%
14 |Basadi Primary |Bojanala Construction of Pre Cast Flush Type 16 seats |Construction 76-99%
Kgwanyape
15 |Primary Bojanala Construction of Pre Cast Flush Type 20 seats [100%
Maretlwane
16 |Primary Bojanala Construction of Pre Cast Flush Type 16 seats [100%
Thaba Morule
17 [High Bojanala Repair of leaking roof 100%
Langa La Sembo
18 [Secondary Bojanala Repair Dysfunctional Toilets Construction 76-99%
Sefutswelo
19 [Secondary Bojanala Repair of Dysfunctional Toilets 100%
Maotwe Middle
20 |School Bojanala Minor renovations 100%
21 [Fapha Primary [Bojanala Repairs of dysfunctional toilets-33 seats Construction 76-99%
Repair Dyfunctional Toilets and Convention
22 |Lobang High Bojanala of Pit to Flush Toilets Construction 76-99%
Mmankala
Secondary
23 [School Bojanala Maintanance of toilets 34 seats 100%
Nchaupe
24 [Secondary Bojanala Construction of Precast VIP Toilets 24 seats [100%
Nkogoloe
25 |Primary Bojanala Construction of Precast VIP Toilets 10 seats [100%
Lot Phalatse
26 |Primary Bojanala Construction of Precast VIP Toilets 24 seats |Construction 76-99%
Ramoshie
27 [Primary Bojanala Construction of Precast VIP Toilets 16 seats |Construction 76-99%
Modimokoane Construction of Precast Flush Toilets 24 seats
28 |Primary Bojanala and Demolishing of Pits Construction 76-99%
New Mphebana
29 [Secondary Bojanala Construction of Precast Toilets 30 seats Contractor Appointed
Maintanance of toilets/Supply of pre cast
30 [Senteng Primary |Bojanala concrete flush toilets 10 seats Construction 76-99%
Segwetlhane
31 Primary Bojanala Pre cast toilets flush type 24 seats Construction 51-76%
Pre cast flush toilets 20 seats and
32 [Machama Prim |Bojanala maintenance of dysfunctional toilets Construction 51-76%
Mmamitlwa
33 |Primary Bojanala Drilling of Borehole Construction 76-99%
Modimong
34 |Primary Bojanala Drilling of Borehole Construction 76-99%
35 [Keoagile Primary|Bojanala Drilling of Borehole Construction 26-50%
Naledi ya Masa
36 Primary Bojanala Drilling of Borehole 100%
37 Makgatlhanong |Bojanala Drilling of Borehole 100%
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NOSCHOOL NAME |DISTRICT SCOPE STATUS
Primary

38 [Nonceba PrimaryBojanala Drilling of Borehole Construction 51-76%
Mohajane

39 |Primary Bojanala Drilling of Borehole 100%
Tlhaloganyo

40 |Primary Bojanala Drilling of Borehole 100%
Ennis Thabong

41 |Primary Bojanala Equiping of Borehole and Supplying ofTank (100%
Lobang

42 Secondary Bojanala Drilling of borehole Construction 76-99%
Sewagodimo
Tech and

43 [Commercial Bojanala Drilling of borehole and water connection  (100%
Keorapetse

44 |Primary Bojanala Drilling of borehole 100%
New Mphebana

45 [Secondary Bojanala Drilling of borehole Contractor Appointed
Thaba-Morula Minor Roof Renovations and Installation of

46 |Secondary Bojanala Ceiling 100%
Geelhoutpark

47 |Primary Bojanala Repairs of blown off roof Construction 76-99%

48 Rantlaka Middle [Bojanala Minor renovations Construction 76-99%
Glenwood

49 Primary Bojanala Minor renovations Construction 76-99%

50 [Lorato Primary [Bojanala Minor Renovations Construction 76-99%
New Mphebana Supply and connection of stand by diesel

51 [Secondary Bojanala generator Construction 76-99%
New Mphebana

52 [Secondary Bojanala Supply and construction of new paving Construction 76-99%
New Mphebana

53 [Secondary Bojanala Dismantling and erection of Mobiles-Floors |Construction 76-99%
New Mphebana

54 [Secondary Bojanala Dismantling and erection of Mobiles-Jerks  [Construction 76-99%

55 [Reipuseng High [Bojanala Erection of Diamond Mesh Fence Construction 76-99%

56 [Thari Primary  [Bojanala Erection of Diamond Mesh Fence Construction 76-99%
Manamakgothe

57 [Secondary Bojanala Burnt school Construction 76-99%

58 |Ofentse Primary [Bojanala Burnt school Construction 76-99%
New Mphebana

59 [Secondary Bojanala Fence Construction 76-99%
Makweleng

60 [primary school [Bojanala Renovations of dysfunctional toilets Construction 1-25%
Mogwase

61 [Technical High [Bojanala Minor renovations 100%

62 [Dikweipi Primary|Bojanala Burnt school Construction 1-25%

Supply and construction of pre cast flush

63 Batleng High Bojanala toilets Construction 1-25%

64 |Machama Prim [Bojanala Demolition of burnt admin block Construction 1-25%
Mmammudu

65 |Primary Bojanala Minor Renovations Construction 1-25%
Mokgaotsi

66 |Primary Bojanala Repairs of dysfunctional toilets Construction 1-25%
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NOSCHOOL NAME |DISTRICT SCOPE STATUS

67 [Senteng Primary [Bojanala Drilling of borehole and water supply Construction 1-25%
Neo Mathabe

68 [Special Bojanala Drilling of borehole and water supply Construction 1-25%
Tirelong

69 [Secondary Bojanala Repairs of damaged toilets Construction 1-25%

70 Maotwe Primary [Bojanala Drilling of borehole and water supply Construction 1-25%

71

Molehabangwe
Primary School

Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati

Minor Repairs & Renovations

Construction 51-76%

72

Pinagare
Secondary
School

Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati

Supply & Erection of Pre-cast Toilets

Construction 51-76%

Loselong Primary

73 |School Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati [Supply & Erection of Pre-cast Toilets Construction 51-76%
Sebetwane
Secondary Minor ren+C8:C12ovation of school building

74 School Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati |& maintenace of ablutions Construction 51-76%
Seichokelo Maintenace of water channels, Mobile

75 |Primary School |Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati |classrooms & painting Construction 51-76%
Labojang

76 [Primary School |Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati [Maintenace Construction 51-76%

Keipatile Primary

77 |School Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati [Conversion of toilets Construction 51-76%
Modisadinku Minoir renovations & repairs of electrical

78 |Primary School [Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati components Construction 51-76%
Sinai Farm

79 [School Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati [Conversion of pit toilets Construction 51-76%
Kebinelang
Secondary

80 [School Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati [Supply & Erection of Pre-cast Toilets Construction 51-76%

81

Ganoke Primary
School

Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati

Supply & Erection of security Fence

Construction 51-76%

82

Keipatile Primary|
School

Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati

Drilling of Borehole

Construction 51-76%

83

Nthapelang
Primary School

Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati

Supply & Erection of security fence

Construction 51-76%

84

Kgosietsile
Lothola
Secondary
School

Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati

Supply & Erection of security fence

Construction 51-76%

85

Mapitiki Primary
School

Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati

Drilling of Borehole

Construction 51-76%

Tong Secondary

Minor renovation of building structure &

86 [School Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati |maintenace of roof Construction 51-76%
Kgosithebe

87 |Primary school [Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati [Maintenance Construction 51-76%
Tshwarangthata

88

Primary school

Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati

Drilling of Borehole

Construction 51-76%

89

Thate Molatlhwa
Secondary
school

Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati

Maintenance of roof

Construction 51-76%

90

Kibitwe Primary

School

Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati

Maintenance of roof

Construction 51-76%
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91

Tshwaraganelo
Primary School

Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati

Drilling of Borehole

Construction 51-76%

Berts Bricks

92 |Primary School [Dr Kenneth Kaunda De-Bushing of trees Planning
Dirang Ka Natla
Secondary

93 [School Dr Kenneth Kaunda De-Bushing of trees Planning
Boitshoko
Secondary

94 School Dr Kenneth Kaunda De-Bushing of trees Planning

95 [Khuma Primary |Dr Kenneth Kaunda De-Bushing of trees Planning
Matlosana
Secondary Completion for supply & Installation of

96 (School Dr Kenneth Kaunda Security Fence Planning
Berts Bricks

97 [Primary School |Dr Kenneth Kaunda Replacement of damaged invisible fence Planning
ITiang Primary

98 |School Dr Kenneth Kaunda Supply Mobile classrooms with electricity ~ |Planning
Excelsior Primary|

99 School Dr Kenneth Kaunda Supply Mobile classrooms with electricity  [Planning
New Maquassie
Secondary Supply Mobile classrooms with electricity

100School Dr Kenneth Kaunda and Main Supply Planning
New Maquassie

101|Primary School |Dr Kenneth Kaunda Supply Mobile classrooms with electricity  [Planning
Mohadin

102[Primary School |Dr Kenneth Kaunda Supply Mobile classrooms with electricity ~ |Planning
Buffelsvlei

103|Primary School |Dr Kenneth Kaunda Supply Mobile classrooms with electricity  [Planning
Kabelo Mashi
Secondary Supply Mobile classrooms with electricity

104{School Dr Kenneth Kaunda and Main Supply Planning
New
Boikhutsong

105|Primary Dr Kenneth Kaunda Paving and Canopy Planning
Phaladi Primary

106/School Dr Kenneth Kaunda Minor maintenance and repairs Planning

Rellocations of mobile classrooms and

107|Greylingsrus Dr Kenneth Kaunda erection of concrete slap Planning
Diphetogo

108Primary School |Dr Kenneth Kaunda Minor maintenance and repairs Planning
Matlhaleng
Secondary

109School Dr Kenneth Kaunda Re-Electrifications of Classrooms Planning
Toevlug Primary

110School Dr Kenneth Kaunda Minor maintenance and repairs Planning
Sentlhaga

111|Primary School |Dr Kenneth Kaunda Supply and erection of Security Fence Planning
Fikadibeng

112Primary School |Dr Kenneth Kaunda Minor maintenance and repairs Planning
Atamela Primary

113(School Dr Kenneth Kaunda Drilling of Borehole & supply of water pump |Planning
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Kgabalatsane
114Primary Bojanala Replacement Construction 76-99%
115|Noto Secondary [Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati [Replacement 100%
Tsoseletso
116/Primary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati |Replacement 100%
117|Reagile PS Dr Kenneth Kaunda Replacement Construction 76-99%
118|Phiri SS Dr Kenneth Kaunda Replacement 100%
119|Lerome PS Bojanala New Construction 76-99%
120Marikana SS Bojanala New 100%
121|Lykso Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati [Hostel 100%
Krommellenboog
122|CS Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati |Full Service 100%
125Retlakgona PS  [Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati [additions Construction 76-99%
126[Trotsville ps Dr Kenneth Kaunda renovations Construction 76-99%
127|Botshelo PS Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati [New 100%

Fencing projects

NOSCHOOL NAME DISTRICT SCOPE STATUS
FM Ramaboa Secondary
1 [School Ngaka Modiri Molema Installation of Security Fence 100%
Supply and erectiong of security
2 |Magong Primary School [Bojanala fence 100%
Supply and erectiong of security
3 |Matlaba Primary School |Ngaka Modiri Molema fence 100%
Dr Ruth Mogomotsi Supply and erectiong of security
4 |Loselong Primary School |Mompati fence 100%
Dr Ruth Mogomotsi Supply and erectiong of security
5 |INtokwe Primary School |Mompati fence 100%
Supply and erectiong of security
6 |Gerdau Laerskool Ngaka Modiri Molema fence 100%
Ponelopele Primary Supply and erectiong of security
7 School Ngaka Modiri Molema fence 100%
Ntlatsang Secondary
8 [School Ngaka Modiri Molema Erection of security fence 100%
Supply and erectiong of security
9 [Pudulogo Primary School |Dr Kenneth Kaunda fence 100%
Skeerpoort Primary Supply and erectiong of security
10 [School Bojanala fence 100%
Morokoa Ditlou Primary Supply and erectiong of security
11 School Bojanala fence 100%
Makoba Secondary Supply and erectiong of security
12 [School Bojanala fence 100%
Tshidisano Secondary Supply and erectiong of security
13 [School Dr Kenneth Kaunda fence 100%
Matlosane Secondary Supply and erectiong of security
14 |School Dr Kenneth Kaunda fence 100%
Nkang Mahlale Secondary Supply and erectiong of security
15 [School Dr Kenneth Kaunda fence 100%
16 [Setilo Secondary School |Ngaka Modiri Molema Erection of security fence 100%
17 |Legaga Primary School  |[Ngaka Modiri Molema Supply and erectiong of security 100%
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fence
Mafatlhosi Secondary Supply and erectiong of security
18 [School Dr Kenneth Kaunda fence 100%
Supply and erectiong of security
19 |Hata Butle Primary School|Dr Kenneth Kaunda fence 100%
Supply and erectiong of security
20 [Masedi Primary School  |Dr Kenneth Kaunda fence 100%
Are Bokeng Primary Supply and erectiong of security
21 [School Dr Kenneth Kaunda fence 100%
Thapama Secondary Dr Ruth Mogomotsi Supply and erectiong of security
22 |School Mompati fence 100%
Dr Ruth Mogomotsi Supply and erectiong of security
23 [ST Paul's Prim ary School |Mompati fence 100%
Supply and erectiong of security
24 |Atamela Primary School |Dr Kenneth Kaunda fence 100%
Joseph Saku Secondary  |Dr Ruth Mogomotsi Supply and erectiong of security
25 [Schjool Mompati fence 100%
Dr Ruth Mogomotsi Supply and erectiong of security
26 [Oketsang Primary School |[Mompati fence 100%
Dr Ruth Mogomotsi Supply and erectiong of security
27 |Gaotote Primary School |Mompati fence 100%
Dr Ruth Mogomotsi Supply and erectiong of security
28 Vryburg High School Mompati fence 100%
Keikanamang Primary Dr Ruth Mogomotsi Supply and erectiong of security
29 [School Mompati fence 100%
Tshwaraganang Primary |Dr Ruth Mogomotsi Supply and erectiong of security
30 [School Mompati fence 100%
Maphoitsile/Bogosing Dr Ruth Mogomotsi Supply and erectiong of security
31 [Secondary School Mompati fence 100%
32 Dipati Ngaka Modiri Molema Supply and Erection of Fence 100%
Supply and Erection of security
33 (Gaopalelwe SS Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompatiffence 100%
34 [Kgosishope SS Ngaka Modiri Molema Supply and Erection of fence 100%
Supply and Erection of security
35 [Kgosithebe CS Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompatiffence 100%
Supply and Erection of security
36 [Kromellenboog CS Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompatiffence 100%
Supply and Erection of security
37 Modiko PS Ngaka Modiri Molema fence 100%
Supply and Erection of security
38 [Modiredi PS Ngaka Modiri Molema fence 100%
Supply and Erection of security
39 [Moefi HS Bojanala fence 100%
Supply and Erection of security
40 [Mofatlhosi SS Ngaka Modiri Molema fence 100%
Supply and Erection of security
41 |Mogosane PS Ngaka Modiri Molema fence 100%
Supply and Erection of security
42 Motlhana PS Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompatilfence 100%
43 [Ratsela PS Ngaka Modiri Molema Supply and Erection of Fence 100%
44 Thuto Tsebo SS Dr Kenneth Kaunda Supply and Erection of security 100%
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fence

Renovations and Maintenance

NO [SCHOOL NAME DISTRICT SCOPE STATUS
Setumo Sephete

1 |Primary School Bojanala Walkways/paving and toilet repairs 100%

2 [Bore Secondary School [Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati  |Maintenance of ablutions 100%
Thibogang Primary

3 [School Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati  [Maintenance 100%
Phetogo Primary

4 |School Ngaka Modiri Molema Repairs and maintenance of toilets 100%
Gontse Monnapula

5  [Primary School Ngaka Modiri Molema Repairs and maintenance of toilets 100%
Ramosadi Primary

6 [School Ngaka Modiri Molema Repairs and maintenance of toilets 100%

7  |Iltekeng Primary School [Ngaka Modiri Molema Repairs and maintenance of toilets 100%
FM Ramaboa Technical

8 [School Ngaka Modiri Molema Maintenance of toilets 100%
Tswelelopele High

9 |School Ngaka Modiri Molema Supply and Repair electricity 100%

Minor renovations and maintenance of

10 |Baisitse Primary School |Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati  [ablution 100%
Phatlhanyane Primary

11 [School Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati  [Maintenance and borehole 100%
Gobopamang Primary

12 |School Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati  [Maintenance of walkway and painting 100%
ITshipomongwegape

13 |Primary School Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati  [Maintenance of roof 100%
Sekate boijane

14 |Secondary School Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati  |Minor repairs and renovations 100%
Roshunville Primary

15 [School Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati  [Renovations 100%
Molehabangwe Middle

16 [School Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati  [Repairs and Renovations 100%
Uerry Mahura

17 Secondary School Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati  [Supply and install ceilling 100%
Batlhaping Secondary

18 [School Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati  [Renovations and Maintenance 100%
Bray Intermidiate Maintenance and repair of toilets and

19 [School Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati  |blockage 100%
Keikanamang Primary

20 (School Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati  [Maintenance of borehole 100%
Botshelo Primary

21 |(School Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati  |Additions and renovations 100%

Maintenance of ablutions and driling of

22 |Nhole Primary School [Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati  |borehole 100%
Dan Tloome Primary

23 [School Dr Kenneth Kaunda Minor repairs to dysfunctional toilets 100%

24 |Modiko Primary School [Ngaka Modiri Molema Repairs and maintenance of toilets 100%
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Maselwanyane High
25 [School Ngaka Modiri Molema Installation of submersible pump 100%

Maintenance and repairs of dysfunctional

26 |Masedi Primary Dr Kenneth Kaunda toilets 100%
27 |Lorato Primary Bojanala Minor Renovations 100%
28 |St Michael Primary Bojanala Minor Renovations dysfunctional toilets 100%
Renovations Construction of Covered
29 |Motshegoa High school [Bojanala Walkways and Demolition of Pit Toiles 100%
Refurbishment and demolishing of old
30 |Gaseitsiwe Secondary |Bojanala structure at Gaseitsiwi Sec 100%
Minor Renovation & Repairs -
31 |Modisakoma IS Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati  |RP(maintenance of ablutions) 100%
Repair and renovate both blocks of the
existing water borne ablution facilities
(Boys, girls, paraplegic and staff toilets)
including plumbing works. Attend to all
the defects noticed on the sewer
reticulation works. Construct new septic
tank in accordance with the engineer's
details. Check the condition of all the
existing boreholes and repair/service
where applicable in accordance with the
32 |Kopanelo SS Ngaka Modiri Molema engineer's instuctions. 100%
Construction of septic tank and
33 |Ontlametse Phalatse PS|Bojanala maintenance of dysfuctional toilets 100%
34 |Nyakale PS Bojanala Refurbishment of toilets at Nyakale PS 100%
35 |Unie PS Dr Kenneth Kaunda Repairs and renovations 100%
36 [Ramabesa PS Ngaka Modiri Molema Repairs and renovations 100%
37 |[Tlokwe SS Dr Kenneth Kaunda Plumbing and drainage 100%
38 |Pinagare SS Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati  [De-bushing and demolishing 100%
39 [Thibogang PS Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati  |[Maintenance of leaking roof ,doors etc 100%
40 [Realeboga PS Ngaka Modiri Molema Repairs and maintenance of toilets 100%
Sanitation projects
NO[SCHOOL NAME DISTRICT SCOPE STATUS
Mailakgang Primary [Ngaka Modiri
1 [School Molema Conversion of pit toilets to flushing water borne 100%
Shudintle Ngaka Modiri
2 [Intermediate School |Molema Conversion of pit toilets to flushing water borne 100%
Hakboslaagte Primary[Ngaka Modiri
3 School Molema conversion of pit toilets 100%
Atlarelang Primary  |Dr Kenneth
4 School Kaunda Sanitation Projects 100%
ST TheresaSecondary
5 School Bojanala Sanitation Projects 100%
Dikgatlhong Primary [Ngaka Modiri
6 (School Molema Erection of Pre-cast 100%
Mamodimokwane  [Ngaka Modiri
7 |Primary School Molema Pre-cast toilets 100%
8 |Ramokgethwa Ngaka Modiri  [Supply & Erection of pre-cast toilets 100%
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Primary School Molema
Mosita Primary Ngaka Modiri
9 [School Molema Sanitation Projects 100%
Dr Ruth
Selekeng Primary Segomotsi
10 [School Mompati Supply & Erection of pre-cast concrete sanitation toilets 100%
Dr Ruth
Dipodi Primary Segomotsi
11 |School Mompati Supply & Erection of pre-cast concrete sanitation toilets 100%
Gakhunwana Ngaka Modiri
12 [Secondary School Molema Supply & Erection of pre-cast toilets 100%
Khunotswane Ngaka Modiri
13 |Primary School Molema Supply & Erection of pre-cast toilets 100%
Ngaka Modiri
14 Peme Primary School [Molema Supply & Erection of pre-cast toilets 100%
Molebatsi Secondary
15 [School Bojanala Sanitation Projects 100%
Dikhudu Primary Ngaka Modiri
16 [School Molema Supply & Erection of pre-cast toilets 100%
Dr Ruth
keememang Primary [Segomotsi
17 |School Mompati Supply & Erection of pre-cast concrete sanitation toilets 100%
Letlapa Secondary
18 [School Bojanala Sanitation Projects 100%
Mmasutlhe Primary |Ngaka Modiri
19 [School Molema Conversion of pit toilets to flushing water borne 100%
Lelokwane Primary |[Ngaka Modiri
20 [School Molema Erection of Pre-cast sanitation facilities 100%
Koi Koi Primary Ngaka Modiri
21 (School Molema Erection of Pre-cast sanitation facilities 100%
Dr Ruth
Thuso aparimary Segomotsi
22 (School Mompati Supply & Erection of pre-cast concrete sanitation toilets 100%
Dr Ruth
Kgosietsile Lethola  [Segomotsi
23 |Primary School Mompati Supply & Erection of pre-cast concrete sanitation toilets 100%
Thusano Middle Ngaka Modiri
24 |School Molema Supply & Erection of pre-cast toilets 100%
Kwena Thakadu Ngaka Modiri
25 [Primary School Molema Supply & Erection of pre-cast toilets 100%
Khubamelo Primary
26 (School Bojanala Sanitation Projects 100%
Dr Ruth
Segomotsi
27 [Saku Primary School [Mompati Supply & Erection of pre-cast toilets 100%
Dr Ruth
Ipelafatseng Middle [Segomotsi
28 (School Mompati Supply & Erection of pre-cast toilets 100%
Dr Ruth
Kebinelang Segomotsi
29 [Secondary School Mompati Supply & Erection of pre-cast toilets 100%
30 |Moeti Primary School |Dr Ruth Supply & Erection of pre-cast toilets 100%
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Segomotsi
Mompati
Dr Ruth
Labojang Primary Segomotsi
31 [School Mompati Supply & Erection of pre-cast toilets 100%
Dr Ruth
Kamogelo Primary  [Segomotsi
32 [School Mompati Supply & Erection of pre-cast toilets 100%
Dr Ruth
Reemekathata Segomotsi
33 |Primary School Mompati Supply & Erection of pre-cast toilets 100%
Dr Ruth
Olebile Primary Segomotsi
34 School Mompati Supply & Erection of pre-cast toilets 100%
Motsitlane Primary [Ngaka Modiri
35 [School Molema Supply & Erection of pre-cast concrete sanitation toilets 100%
Moshoette Primary [Ngaka Modiri
36 [School Molema Supply & Erection of pre-cast concrete sanitation toilets 100%
Dingateng Primary  [Ngaka Modiri
37 [School Molema Supply & Erection of pre-cast concrete sanitation toilets 100%
Dr Ruth
Keikanamang Primary|{Segomotsi
38 [School Mompati Pre-cast toilets 100%
Tiragalo Secondary |Dr Kenneth
39 [School Kaunda Supply and erection of flushing precast flushing toilets 100%
Mahube Primary Ngaka Modiri
40 School Molema Supply and installation of precast toilets 100%
Melorane Primary  [Ngaka Modiri
41 |School Molema Conversion of pit toilets to flushing waterborne 100%
Reaithuta Primary Ngaka Modiri
42 School Molema Supply and erection of flushing precast concrete toilets 100%
Signal Hill Primary Ngaka Modiri
43 |School Molema Supply and erection of precast concrete toilets 100%
Dr Ruth
Segomotsi Girls WC: 2, Girls whb: 1, Boys WC: 1, Boys whb: 2, Boys
44 |Banabotlhe P/S Mompati Urinals; 1, Unisex Disabled (WC & whb): 1, 100%
Dr Ruth
Segomotsi
45 |Phatlhanyane PS Mompati Pre-cast concrete toilets 100%
Ngaka Modiri
46 |Renonofile PS Molema Pre-cast concrete toilets 100%
Girls toilets: 2x WC cubcles & 1x WHBs.Boys toilets: 1x WC, 1x
urinal and 1x WHB.Disabled toilets: 1x paraplegic toilet fitted
with all the necessary accessories.Female staff toilets: 1x WC
cubicles and 1x WHB.Male staff toilets: 1x WC cubicle, 1x
Ngaka Modiri urinal and 1x WHB.A new septic tank with a soak- aways
47 [Sakalengwe H/S Molema drain. 100%
48 [Ennis Thabong PS Bojanala Pre-cast concrete toilets 100%
Ngaka Modiri
49 (Gopane PS Molema Pre-cast concrete toilets 100%
Dr Ruth
50 [Seichokelo PS Segomotsi Pre-cast concrete toilets 100%
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Mompati
Ngaka Modiri
51 Jangjo SS Molema Pre-cast concrete toilets 100%
Grade R :2 x WC cubicles, 3x WHB, 1x urinal and 1x paraplegic
toilets fitted with all the necessary accessories.Girls toilets: 4x
WC cubcles & 3x WHB. Boys toilets: 2x WC, 2 x urinal and 1x
WHB.Disabled toilets: 1x paraplegic toilet fitted with all the
necessary accessories. Female staff toilets: 2x WC cubicles and
Ngaka Modiri 1x WHB.Male staff toilets: 1x WC cubicle, 1x urinal and 1x
52 [Kagisano Primary Molema WHB.A new septic tank with a soak- aways drain. 100%
53 |St Theresa PS Bojanala Sanitation 100%
Dr Ruth
Segomotsi
54 Kromellenboog CS  |[Mompati Flushing Precast concrete toilets 100%
4 x WC cubicles, 6x WHBs, 2x urinal and 2 x paraplegic toilets
fitted with all the necessary accessories.Girls toilets: 6x WC
cubcles & 4x WHBs. Boys toilets: 2x WC, 2 x urinal and 2x
WHB.Disabled toilets: 1x paraplegic toilet fitted with all the
necessary accessories.Female staff toilets: 1x WC cubicles and
Ngaka Modiri  |1x WHB.Male staff toilets: 1x WC cubicle, 1x urinal and 1x
55 |Lobatla P/S Molema WHB.A new septic tank with a soak- aways drain. 100%
4 x WC cubicles, 6x WHBs, 2x urinal and 2 x paraplegic toilets
fitted with all the necessary accessories.Girls toilets: 10x WC
cubcles & 6x WHB. Boys toilets: 4x WC, 4 x urinal and 3x
WHB.Disabled toilets: 2x paraplegic toilet fitted with all the
necessary accessories. Female staff toilets: 3x WC cubicles and
Ngaka Modiri  |2x WHB.Male staff toilets: 1x WC cubicle, 2x urinal and 1x
56 [Tsholofelo Primary  [Molema WHB.A new septic tank with a soak- aways drain. 100%
Grade R: 4 x WC cubicles, 6x WHBs, 2x urinal and 2 x
paraplegic toilets fitted with all the necessary accessories.
Girls toilets: 6x wc cubcles & 4x WHBs. Boys toilets: 2x WCs,
2x urinals and 2x WHBs.Disabled toilets: 1x paraplegic toilet
fitted with all the necessary accessories. Female staff toilets:
2x WC cubicles and 1x WHB. Male staff toilets: 1x WC cubicle,
Ngaka Modiri  |1x urinal and 1x WHB.A new septic tank with a soak- aways
57 Mokgola P Molema drain. 100%
Ngaka Modiri
58 [Moreotsile PS Molema Pre-cast concrete toilets 100%
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1.

INTRODUCTION

The department pledges to maintain the highest standards of governance is fundamental to the

management of public finances and resources. Users want assurance that the department has

good governance structures in place to effectively, efficiently and economically utilize the state

resources, which is funded by the tax payer.

2.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The North West Department of Education has an approved Risk Management Policy and
Risk Management Strategy which outlines how the Accounting Officer will ensure effective
implementation of risk management in the Department. The Risk Management Strategy
illustrates the period and officials responsible to drive risk management processes. The
Accounting Officer is also responsible to create enabling environment where risk
management processes will operate. The Risk Management policy outlines the approach
that the Department will take to ensure effective risk management. Risk management policy
and Strategy are developed in consultation with Public Sector Risk Management
Framework. The policies are adopted by Risk Management Committee and approved by the

Accounting Officer.

Risk assessments are conducted annually at a Strategic level, Operational level and AOPO
(Performance Information). The assessment are done per the dates on the Departmental
calendar. Risk methodologies (Risk management policy, Risk management Strategy, Risk
management Implementation plan, and Department’s risk appetite) are complied with when

doing Risk assessment.

Risk Management unit is responsible for facilitation of risk assessments and Departmental
managers are the risk owners. Risk owners are responsible to implement action
plans/treatment plans on risk registers within the agreed dates. Continuous monitoring is
done to ensure implementation of action plans and elimination/reduction of the risk. The

Departmental risk register includes emerging risks and their treatment plans.

The Accounting Officer has formally appointed a Risk Management Committee which

comprise of:

v" Independent Chairperson
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3.

v 7 Chief Directors

v' Chief Financial Officer

v Internal Audit (Invitee)

v' Anti-Fraud and Corruption (Invitee)
v" Provincial Treasury (Invitee)

Schedule of Risk management committee for the financial year 2021/22 is in place. Risk
Committee meetings sits quarterly to discuss progress on Risk Management Implementation
plan and progress in implementation of agreed action/treatment plans on Strategic risk

register.

Risk management unit reports to the Audit Committee on implementation of Risk
Management in the Department. Audit Committee. Audit committee as an independent
oversight provides an independent and objective view of the Department’s risk management

effectiveness.
The committee also ensures that relevant risks identified and treatment plans are adequate.

Risk management unit reports to different stakeholders (Risk management Committee, Audit
Committee, and Audit Steering Committee). When monitoring risk registers, the unit ensures
that management implement the agreed action plans in order to minimise the risk and
enhance Department’s performance. Monitoring of Strategic risk register for the financial year
2021/22 will commence from 17 May 2021.

FRAUD AND CORRUPTION

A brief description of:

The department’s fraud prevention plan and the progress made in implementing the

fraud prevention plan

The prevention controls include the existing financial and other controls and checking
mechanisms as prescribed in the systems, policies, procedures, rules and regulations of the
department. In terms of the Public Service Regulations of 2016 (PSR 16), it is the
responsibility of all officials to report allegations or incidents of fraud and corruption to their
Superiors, Managers, SMS or the Accounting Officer. Furthermore, in terms of the Amended
Protected Disclosure Act, 05, of 2017, it provides protection of both former and current
employees and workers who blow the whistle from occupational detriment by employers when

making certain protected disclosures.
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The fraud Prevention Plan has been referred to Provincial Risk Management Unit for inputs,
and same was audited by Internal Audit Services. Both inputs of the two units will be
incorporated during the review of the Plan in June 2021. Fraud awareness campaigns is a key
preventative measure, however, regulations of Covi-19 have affected the campaigns even

though the Unit have now put plans in place for the current financial year.

Mechanisms in place to report fraud and corruption and how these operate.eg: Whistle
blowing - The need for officials to make confidential disclosure about suspect fraud

and corruption

The Fraud and Corruption Whistle blowing policy was developed and approved by the Head of
Department as the departmental policy in September 2018. The policy is reviewed annually or
when the need arises. Fraud and Anti-Corruption Services is in the process of reviewing the

policy together with other fraud Policies in June 2021.

The current policy was referred to Provincial Treasury Risk Management for inputs, and an
audit on same document/ Policy was done by the Provincial Internal Audit. Fraud and Anti-
Corruption will review the whistle-blowing policy and include inputs made by Risk

Management and Internal Audit Services.

Cases are reported and or received through offices of the Administrator and Superintendent
General, Department of Basic Education, Senior Management Team members, Internal Audit
Services reports, Walk-Inns, District Directors offices, Public Service Commission Hotline,

Office of the Premier or through Anonymous telephone calls and letters/ memos.

During review of the policy, FACS will include means/ measures to keep details of whistle
blowers confidential as in terms of the Protected Disclosure Amendment Act 17 of 2017. It has
been the policy of the department that each confidential disclosure received, the protection of

the whistle-blower is maintained at all instances
How these cases are reported and what action is taken

Reports are received as per explanation of the above paragraph. Upon receipt, all
allegations are screened and tested to determine the authenticity before preliminary
investigation resumes. An operational methodology on how the investigation is conducted

within set time frames exist.

Upon completion of each case, depending on the findings, the matter is referred to Labour

Relations to institute disciplinary enquiries, or if criminal elements have been established,
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4.

the matter is referred to the South African Police Services. If allegations are found to be

baseless, the matter is closed on the case management database.

The Department of Education fosters a zero tolerance culture to fraud and corruption in all its
manifestations. The most predominant manifestations of corruption in the department are
fraud, bribery, extortion, nepotism, conflict of interest, cronyism, favouritism, theft,

embezzlement, and abuse of power.

The core function of the Fraud and Anti-Corruption Services (Unit) in the department is two-

fold, to investigate and prevent incidents and of fraud and corruption through advocacy

programmes and investigations (Pro-active and Re-active). Upon conclusion of the
investigations, if a prima facie case can be proven, disciplinary processes and/ or criminal

investigations are recommended.

Reporting of cases under investigation and those outsourced to private firms is a standard
agenda item on the Audit Committee meetings where progress is tabled and advice is

sought from the independent members of the Audit Committee.

MINIMISING CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Brief description on the processes implemented to minimise conflict of interest.

1.

2.

3.

4.

Completion of SBD4 forms as an administrative requirement for all service providers where
they indicate whether they are government employees or have any relation to government

employees.
Usage of full CSD Report of all service providers
Declaration of Interest forms completed by officials

Financial Disclosures performed by all SMS members annually.

Discuss the process followed where conflict of interest has been identified.

Names and all the relevant information of identified employees with conflict of interest are submitted

to the labour relations director to make further investigations and make recommendations that are

implemented as and when received.

Service providers are disqualified immediately from the procurement process when conflict of

interest is identied.
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5.  CODE OF CONDUCT

The Department is utilising the Code of Conduct as outlined in Chapter 2 of the Public Service

Regulations, 2001 in order to promote a high standard of professional ethics in the workplace.

When Public Service Act Employees breach any of the provisions of the Code of Conduct, the
Disciplinary Code and Procedures in accordance with PSCBC Resolution 1 of 2003 and Chapter 7
of the SMS handbook is utilised.

When CS Educators breach any of the provisions of section 17 and 18 of the Employment of
Educators Act 76 of 1998, the Disciplinary Code and Procedures in accordance with Schedule 2 of
Act 76 of 1998 is utilised.

6. HEALTH SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES

A brief description and nature of Health Safety and Environmental issues and the effect it has on the

department.

SHERQ Manager post is vacant for seven (7) years now
- 1ODs — delay of payment of service providers

- Occupational Hygiene — toilets not working/unsatisfactory status; cleaning should be done

twice according to the covid regulations and this is not done;
- No feedback on submitted HIRA reports, no action on recommendations

- Non-compliant buildings, not well-maintained

7. PORTFOLIO COMMITTEES

10 September 2020 Presentation of the Re-tabled APP

e The APP 2020/21 was tabled in March 2020 but had

to be re-tabled because targets were reviewed.

15 September 2020 15T Quarter report of the Annual Performance Plan

e |t was noted that the targets were not achieved

because of Covid-19.
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9. PRIOR MODIFICATIONS TO AUDIT REPORTS
Annual Financial Statements- Not | Material misstatements of current assets,
prepared in accordance with the | expenditure and disclosure items identified by

prescribed financial reporting framework
and not supported by full and proper

records.

auditors in the submitted financial statements were
corrected and the supporting documents were
subsequently submitted resulting in the financial

statements receiving an unqualified audit opinion.

Irregular Expenditure: The majority of
irregular expenditure was caused by
non- compliance to Supply Chain
Management regulations and Contract

Management.

SCM
procedures were communicated to officials through

regulations, reviewed processes and

circulars and workshops.

The investigations of 63% of prior years’ Irregular
expenditure have been finalised, reports and
supporting documents have already been submitted
The

investigation of the balance started in April 2021

to Provincial Treasury for condonement.

anticipating to be finalised by June 2021.

Contract workers appointed to assist with contract
management whilst the process of capacitating SCM
Directorate is unfolding.

No
that

Consequence Management:

appropriate  audit  evidence

disciplinary steps were taken against

officials who incurred irregular and

Fruitless and Wasteful expenditure, and
evidence that

investigations  were

conducted.

Investigations of R170 000 of fruitless and wasteful
expenditure have been finalised and letters have
been sent to identified officials to submit reasons and
proof of evidence. The disciplinary process will be

the next step.
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10. INTERNAL CONTROL UNIT

The Internal Control Unit maintains effective, efficient and transparent systems of financial

management and internal control practices which includes the following:

The quality assurance of the collection, safekeeping, depositing and payment of state money or
property, conducting inspections and ensuring compliance with Supply Chain procedures before

and after the processing of transactions (orders).

11. INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDIT COMMITTEES

The Internal Audit Unit operates under the control and guidance of the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee played an important role in ensuring that the Unit functions according to good
governance, Internal Audit standards as set by the Institute of Internal Auditors. Audit Committee
also approved and monitored conformance and implementation of the Internal Audit Charter and

Risk based Internal Audit Plan.

Key activities and objectives of the Internal Audit:

Internal Audit provides management with independent, objective assurance and consulting services
designed to add value and to continuously improve the operations of the Department. It should
assist the Department to accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to
evaluate and improve the effectiveness of Governance, Risk Management and Control processes.

The controls subject to evaluation encompassed the following:

= The Information systems environment;

= The reliability and integrity of financial and operational information;
= Effectiveness of operations;

= Safeguarding of assets; and

= Compliance with laws, regulations and controls.
The Internal audit function is further charged with the responsibility of assisting the Accounting
Officer in achieving the objectives of the Department by evaluating and developing

recommendations for the enhancement or improvement of the processes through which:

= Objectives and values are established and communicated;

= The accomplishment of objectives is monitored,;
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= Accountability is ensured; and

= Corporate values are preserved.

For the financial year under review internal audit issued over 30 reports comprising of both

assurance and consulting engagements. The reports issued included Pre audit of tenders above

R10 million, Special audit on procurement of COVID 19 PPE; Ordering and Delivery of Learner

Teacher Support Material; Occupational Health and Safety, Supply Chain Management processes,

Infrastructure Audit; ICT Governance status; Corporate Governance Status in the Department; Risk

Management Audit Consulting (Development of COVID 19 Risk register); review of draft Financial

statements and Annual Report; Performance Information; Transfer payments; Follow up on

significant findings including monthly follow up on the Post Audit Action Plan, etc.

The table below illustrates the implementation status on the follow-up audits performed in 2020/21:

Number of | Number of | Number of | Number of | Number of action findings not
follow-up audits | findings followed | findings findings in | implemented

performed up implemented progress

7 122 15 67 40

2020/21 INTERNALAUDIT FINDINGS-
STATUS OF IMPLEMENTATION

12%

IMPLEMENTED

x Ngwanalsejololaitlhakanelwa'y

55%

IN'PROGRESS

= NOT IMPLEMENTED
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The table below discloses relevant information on the audit committee members:
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2021.
Audit Committee Responsibility

The Audit Committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from
Section 38 (1)(a)(ii) of the PFMA and National Treasury Regulations 3.1 The Audit
Committee also has adopted an appropriate formal Terms of Reference, has
regulated its affairs in compliance with these Terms and has discharged all its
responsibilities as contained therein.

The Effectiveness of Internal Control

The system of internal control is designed to provide assurance that assets are
safeguarded and that liabilities and working capital are effectively managed. In line
with the PFMA requirements, Internal Audit and the Auditor-General South Africa
(AGSA) provide the Audit Committee and Management with assurance that the
internal controls are adequate and effective.

This is achieved by means of evaluating the adequacy and effectiveness of the
controls implemented by Management to mitigate the identified risks to acceptable
levels, as well as the identification of corrective actions and suggested
enhancements to the controls and processes.

Through analysis of audit reports from different assurance providers, it was identified
that the system of internal control was not entirely adequate and effective during the
year under review, requiring improvement, as several instances of non-compliance
with internal controls were reported to the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has evaluated Internal Audit function and is satisfied that
Internal Audit has properly discharged its functions and responsibilities during the
year under review. They continue to maintain an effective internal quality assurance
programme that covers all aspects of internal audit activity as required by the
International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing.

The following remains areas of concern for the Audit Committee:

= |nvestigation of the outstanding irregular expenditure;

= Transfer of immovable assets;

= Effective implementation of Risk Management;

= Effective implementation of ICT governance and the overall improvement of
the ICT control environment.

aNgwanalsejololaitihakanelwayg
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Slow implementation of corrective measures to address both Internal and
External audit findings specifically relating to the quality of financial
statements and performance information as well as record keeping, supply
chain management, asset management and compliance monitoring; and

Internal Audit not sufficiently capacitated relative to the size of the Department;

In-Year Management and Monthly/Quarterly Reports

The Department has submitted monthly and quarterly reports to Treasury as
required by PFMA. The monitoring of performance information was periodically
reviewed.

Evaluation and Review of Financial Statements and the Annual Report

The Audit Committee has:

Reviewed the unaudited financial statements with due consideration of the
independent assurance provided by Internal Audit as well as the assurance
provided by Management;

Reviewed changes to accounting policies and practices as reported in the
Annual Financial Statements;

Reviewed the Department’s compliance with legal and regulatory provisions;
Reviewed the basis for the going concern assumption, including any financial
sustainability risks and issues;

Reviewed the unaudited information on predetermined objectives with due
consideration of the independent assurance provided by IA as well as the
assurance provided by Management;

Reviewed the Auditor-General South Africa (AGSA) audit and management
reports, with due consideration of the responses provided by Management;
and

Reviewed the audited financial statements as well as the information on
predetermined objectives to be included in the annual report for any

significant adjustments resulting from the audit.

AGSA Report

The Committee concurs with and accepts the conclusion of the AGSA on the Annual
Financial Statements and is of the view that the Annual Financial Statements be
accepted and read together with report of the AGSA.
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Appreciation

The Committee would like to thank the Executive Authority, the Accounting Officer/
Administrator, Head of the Department and Management for their support throughout
the year. We urge the Department to accept the audit outcome of the Auditor
General during this difficult time of COVID 19 pandemic. The Committee is confident
that through the guidance it provides as well as the Leadership of the Department
and implementation of assurance providers’ recommendations by Management, the
internal control system and good governance practices will improve and translate to
the positive audit outcome.

Ms Mathebe Annah Faith Moja
Chairperson of the Audit Committee
Department of Education

31 August 2021

aNgwanalsejololaitihakanelwayg

201



202

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021 * NORTH WEST DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

13. B-BBEE COMPLIANCE PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

REPORT ON THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE PRESIDENTIAL EMPLOYMENT STIMULUS
PROGRAMME (PESP) IN THE BASIC EDUCATION SECTOR: MARCH 2021

In April 2020, The State President, Mr Cyril Matamela Ramaphosa announced a R500 billion fiscal
stimulus package which seeks to confront the devastating economic impact caused by the COVID-
19 pandemic. As part of the government’'s broader economic recovery agenda, the aim of the

package was to address the high unemployment rate caused by this pandemic.

The Basic Education Sector implemented the Basic Education Employment Initiative (BEEI) as part
of the Presidential Youth Employment Initiative (PYEI). R6 998 billion was disbursed to provinces,
of which North West Department of Education (NWDE) received R445 251 000 as an add-on to the
Equitable Share in the 2020/21 Financial Year. A total amount of R329 317 192 was allocated to
employ 14 194 Education Assistants (EAs) and 9 665 General School Assistants (GSA) in public

schools across the province.

NWDE was required to set aside R1.2 million of their allocations towards project management, and
monitoring and support. An additional R3 293 172 was allocated to provide training for the
Assistants. Five key training programmes were identified to equip them with portable skills, to fulfil

their duties and improve their employability.

A total of 23 523 job opportunities for youth who are 18 to 35 years old were created. The
department confirmed appointments of 21 833 posts which accounted for 93% of the allocated
posts by DBE. A total of 13 080 (59.90%) were appointed as EAs and 8 753 (40.09%) as GSAs, of
which 13 434 (61.53%) were females and a further 8 399 (38.46%) were males. 48% appointees
ranged between 23 to 28 years of age, accounting for 48% and only 137 were above 35 years old.
It is important to highlight that 77.3% Africans, 1.5% Whites, 1.2% Coloureds and 0.1% Indians
were appointed.

The department appointed 208 people with disability which accounted for 1%. Dr Kenneth Kaunda

appointed more people with disability at 1.2% whilst Bojanala was the lowest with 0.1%.

62.3% of EAs and GAs appointed, had only matric as their highest qualification. They were
followed by those with short courses and various certificates at 26.5%, 1 409 diplomas, 936 junior

degrees, 95 Honours 7 Masters and 1 female with PhD in Micro Biology.
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The BEEI framework required employees to submit police clearance certificates. 10 520 (48%)
complied, whilst 5 446 (25%) were awaiting responses from police stations and 5 867 (27%) did not
apply at all.

An amount of R 108 147 464 million was set aside towards saving School Governing Body (SGB)
funded posts in public ordinary schools, public special schools and posts in Government Subsidised
Independent Schools. These were posts that became threatened due to schools experiencing
financial distress as a result of parents not being able to pay school fees, because of the economic
devastation of COVID-19. A total of 176 schools applied and were all approved, which includes 134
Public Ordinary Schools, 14 Special Schools and 28 Government Subsidised Independent Schools
with a total of 4 307 posts received relief fund and 4 300 posts received the relief fund.

The project was successfully implemented and addressed the scourge of unemployment and
alleviated poverty in the most disadvantaged communities especially during the COVID-19
pandemic. NWDE was the best performing province with an expenditure of 97% and the second
best in Saving of Posts with 88% after Northern Cape as per the DBE Report. The project was
extended for only one month in April catering for 3 855 schools from Full Service schools, special
schools, hostel schools, farm and rural schools. A total amount of R13 288 275, 00 was transferred
to schools for the stipends. The final expenditure was recorded as 99.9% including the extension of

transfer payments.

The in-house Entle Web App was also rated the best Data Management System and the
Department was requested to present and share this best practice nationally. The system was
acknowledged independently by Harambee as error-free, credible, reliable and authentic.
Teamwork and intra-departmental collaboration proved to be very effective and paid dividends to
the project success.
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PART D: HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT
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- PERSONNEL RELATED EXPENDITURE
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Report of the auditor-general to the North West Provincial Legislature
on vote no. 8: Department of Education

’ Report on the audit of the financial statements

Qualified opinion

1. | have audited the financial statements of the Department of Education set out on pages 254 to
290, which comprise the appropriation statement, statement of financial position as at
31 March 2021, statement of financial performance and cash flow statement for the year then
ended, as well as notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

2. In my opinion, except for the effects of the matters described in the basis for qualified opinion
section of this auditor’s report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Department of Education as at 31 March 2021, and its financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Modified Cash
Standard (MCS) prescribed by the National Treasury and the requirements of the Public
Finance Management Act 1 of 1999 (PFMA) and the Division of Revenue Act 4 of 2020
(Dora).

Basis for qualified opinion

Immovable assets

3. | was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that management had
appropriately accounted for capital work in progress and completed projects due to the status
of the accounting records and the non-submission of information in support of these assets. |
was unable to confirm the capital work in progress and completed projects by alternative
means. Consequently, | was unable to determine whether any adjustments were necessary to
capital work in progress of R2 175 534 000 (2020: R2 853 493 000) and immovable tangible
capital assets of R3 165 357 000 (2020: R2 538 130 000) disclosed in notes 28.4 and 28 to
the financial statements respectively.

4. The department did not correctly account for immovable assets as required by MCS chapter
11: Capital assets in the current and previous years. The current year completed assets were
duplicated resulting in immovable tangible capital assets in note 28 to the financial statements
being overtstated by R191 136 865. Consequently capital work in progress was understated
by same amount in note 28.4 to the financial statements. In addition, mobile classes were not
included in the department’s asset register as immovable assets and the age analysis for
ongoing projects were incorrectly aged as disclosed in note 28.4 to the financial statements. |
could not determine the full extent of these misstatements and the impact on the disclosed
projects age analysis and the immovable assets for the current and previous years as it was
impracticable to do so.
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Commitments

5. | was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for commitments due to the status
of the accounting records and | was unable to confirm these commitments by alternative
means. In addition, the department did not record all commitments as required by MCS
chapter 14: Provisions and contingencies as some commitments for capital projects in
progress were not disclosed. | was unable to determine the full extent of the misstatement as it
was impracticable to do so due to the status of the accounting records. Consequently, | was
unable to determine whether any further was necessary adjustment to commitments of
R708 581 000 (2020: R565 676 000) as disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements.

Provisions

6. The department did not recognise all provisions in current year and prior year as required by
MCS chapter 14: Provisions and contingencies as amounts withheld as retention from
progress payments on construction contracts were not disclosed in note 34 to the financial
statements . | was unable to determine the full extent of the understatement of provisions as it
was impracticable to do so due to the status of the accounting records.

Context for the opinion

7. | conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). My
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor-general’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of this auditor’s report.

8. | am independent of the department in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ International code of ethics for professional accountants (including
International Independence Standards) (IESBA code) as well as other ethical requirements
that are relevant to my audit in South Africa. | have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the IESBA code.

9. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for my qualified opinion.
Emphasis of matters

10. | draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Unauthorised, irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure

11. Asdisclosed in note 8 to the financial statements, unauthorised expenditure of R8 705 000 in
respect of prior years had not yet been resolved.

12. Asdisclosed in note 23 to the financial statements, irregular expenditure of R9 235 000 was
incurred in the current year and irregular expenditure of R1 695 000 000 from prior years was
still under investigation.

13. As disclosed in note 24 to the financial statements, fruitless and wasteful expenditure of
R244 000 was incurred in the current year and fruitless and wasteful expenditure of
R3 773 000 from prior years had not yet been resolved.

Restatement of corresponding figures

14. As disclosed in note 28 to the financial statements, the corresponding figures for 31 March
2020 were restated as a result of an error in the financial statements of the department at, and
for the year ended, 31 March 2021.

Other matter

15. | draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

)
‘Q : .
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Unaudited supplementary schedules

16. The supplementary information set out on pages 291 to 298 does not form part of the financial
statements and is presented as additional information. | have not audited these schedules
and, accordingly, | do not express an opinion on them.

Responsibilities of the accounting officer for the financial statements

17. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the MCS prescribed by National Treasury and the requirements
of the PFMA and Dora and for such internal control as the accounting officer determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

18. In preparing the financial statements, the accounting officer is responsible for assessing the
department’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the appropriate
governance structure either intends to liquidate the department or to cease operations, or
there is no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

19. My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the ISAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

20. A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is included
in the annexure to this auditor’s report.

Report on the audit of the annual performance report

Introduction and scope

21. In accordance with the Public Audit Act 25 of 2004 (PAA) and the general notice issued in
terms thereof, | have a responsibility to report on the usefulness and reliability of the reported
performance information against predetermined objectives for selected programmes presented
in the annual performance report. | was engaged to perform procedures to identify findings but
not to gather evidence to express assurance.

22. | was engaged to evaluate the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance
information in accordance with the criteria developed from the performance management and
reporting framework, as defined in the general notice, for the following selected programme
presented in the annual performance report of the department for the year ended 31 March

2021:
Programmes Pages in the annual
performance report
Programme 2 — public ordinary schools 92 — 107

23. | performed procedures to determine whether the reported performance information was
properly presented and whether performance was consistent with the approved performance
planning documents. | performed further procedures to determine whether the indicators and
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related targets were measurable and relevant, and assessed the reliability of the reported
performance information to determine whether it was valid, accurate and complete.

24. The material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the performance information of the
selected programme are as follows:

Programme 2 — Public ordinary schools

PPI1 2.2: Percentage of Funza Lushaka bursary holders placed in schools within six months
upon completion of studies or upon confirmation that the bursar has completed studies

25. An achievement of 57% was reported against the target of 100% for this indicator in the
annual performance report. The supporting evidence provided materially differed from the
reported achievement. In addition, | was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to support the reason for the variance between the planned target and the achievement
reported in the annual performance report. | was unable to confirm the reported reason for the
variance by alternative means. Consequently, | was unable to determine whether any
adjustment was required to the reason for the variance.

PPI 2.9: Number of educators trained in Literacy/ Language content and methodology

26. The target of 300 for this indicator per the approved annual performance plan was changed to
340 in the annual performance report without the necessary approval. In addition, | was unable
to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to support the reason for the variance between
the planned target and the achievement reported in the annual performance report. | was
unable to confirm the reported reason for the variance by alternative means. Consequently, |
was unable to determine whether any adjustment was required to the reported reason for the
variance.

Various indicators

27. For the indicators listed below, | was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
support the reasons for the variance between the planned target and the reported
achievement in the annual performance report due to a lack of underlying information. | was
unable to confirm the reported reasons for the variances by alternative means. Consequently, |
was unable to determine whether any adjustments were required to the reported reasons for
the variances.

Indicator description Planned Reported Comment on deviation

target achievement
PPI 2.3: Percentage of 100% 81% The delayed start of the academic
schools where allocated year as well as the availability of
teaching posts are all filled Educators in some critical posts.

The closing date for the circular was
extended to accommodate the late
opening of schools.

PPl 2.10: Number of 800 805 Due to the continuous nature of the
educators trained in training programme. Additional
Numeracy/ Mathematics educators were identified beyond
content and methodology the targets.

PPI 2.13: Number of learners | 715826 733584 More learners were enrolled than
in public ordinary schools anticipated.

benefiting from the No-Fee

School Policy

Various indicators

28. For the indicators listed below, | was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for
the reported achievements and reasons for variances between the planned target and the
reported achievement, due to a lack of accurate and complete records. | was unable to confirm
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the reported achievements and reasons for variances by alternative means. Consequently, |
was unable to determine whether any adjustments were required to the reported
achievements and reasons for variances.

Indicator description Planned Reported Comment on deviation

target achievement
PPI 2.4: Percentage of learners 100% EFAL = 90% Retention and retrieval of textbooks
provided with English first Mathematics = | not well implemented in some
additional language (EFAL) and 94% schools which result in loss of
mathematics textbooks in books.
grades 3, 6, 9 and 12
PPI 2.11: Number of educators 400 256 Face to face training was not
trained on inclusion possible for the major part of the

year.

Other matters
29. | draw attention to the matters below.

Achievement of planned targets

30. Refer to the annual performance report on pages 76 to 136 for information on the achievement
of planned targets for the year and management’s explanations provided for the under and
over achievement of targets. This information should be considered in the context of the
material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information in
paragraphs 21 to 30 of this report.

Report on audit of compliance with legislation

Introduction and scope

31. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, | have a
responsibility to report material findings on the department’s compliance with specific matters
in key legislation. | performed procedures to identify findings but not to gather evidence to
express assurance.

32. The material findings on compliance with specific matters in key legislation are as follows:

Financial statements

33. The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in accordance with the
prescribed financial reporting framework and supported by full and proper records as required
by section 40(1)(a) and (b) of the PFMA. Material misstatements identified by the auditors in
the submitted financial statements were not adequately corrected and the supporting records
could not be provided subsequently, which resulted in the financial statements receiving a
qualified of opinion.

Strategic planning and performance management

34. Specific information systems were not implemented to enable the monitoring of progress made
towards achieving targets, core objectives and service delivery as required by public service
regulations 25(1)(e)(i) and (iii).

Expenditure management

35. Effective and appropriate steps were not taken to prevent irregular expenditure of R9 235 000,
as disclosed in note 23 to the financial statements as required by section 38(1)(c)(ii) of the
PFMA and treasury regulation 9.1.1. The majority of the irregular expenditure disclosed in the
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financial statements was caused by non-compliance with supply chain management
regulations.

36. Payments were not made within 30 days or an agreed period after receipt of an invoice, as
required by treasury regulation 8.2.3

Consequence management

37. 1 was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that disciplinary steps were taken
against officials who had incurred irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure as as
required by section 38(1)(h)(iii) of the PFMA. This was due to proper and complete records
that were not maintained as evidence to support the investigations into irregular expenditure
and no investigation performed on fruitless and wasteful expenditure.

38. | was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that investigations were conducted
into all allegations of financial misconduct committed by officials, as required by treasury
regulation 4.1.1.

Procurement and contract management

39. | was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that all contracts and quotations
were awarded in accordance with the legislative requirements as the requested bid documents
and the payment vouchers were not submitted for audit.

40. | was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that the COVID 19 Personal
Protective Equipment items procured through the quotations complied with local content
requirements as required by paragraph 4.6 of National Treasury Instruction note No 5 of
2020/21.

Transfer of funds

41. | was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that appropriate measures were
maintained to ensure that transfers and subsidies to schools were applied for their intended
purposes, as required by treasury regulation 8.4.1.

Other information

42. The accounting officer is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the annual report which includes the audit committee’s
report. The other information does not include the financial statements, the auditor’s report
and those selected programmes presented in the annual performance report that have been
specifically reported in this auditor’s report.

43. My opinion on the financial statements and findings on the reported performance information
and compliance with legislation do not cover the other information and | do not express an
audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion on it.

44. In connection with my audit, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements
and the selected programmes presented in the annual performance report, or my knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

45. 1 did not receive the other information prior to the date of this auditor’s report. After | receive
and read this information, and if | conclude that there is a material misstatement, | am required
to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and request that the other
information be corrected. If the other information is not corrected, | may have to retract this
auditor’s report and re-issue an amended report as appropriate. However, if it is corrected this
will not be necessary.
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Internal control deficiencies

46.

47.

48.

49.

| considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, reported
performance information and compliance with applicable legislation; however, my objective
was not to express any form of assurance on it. The matters reported below are limited to the
significant internal control deficiencies that resulted in the basis for qualified opinion, the
findings on the annual performance report and the findings on compliance with legislation
included in this report.

Leadership did not adequately exercise oversight responsibility regarding financial and
performance reporting and compliance with legislation. The department did not have sufficient
monitoring and reviewing controls to ensure that financial and performance reports submitted
for auditing were accurate and complete and that action plans developed were adequately and
timeously implemented.

Management did not adequately monitor the outputs of risk management activities to ensure
that control deficiencies were addressed. Non-compliance with laws and regulations could
have been prevented had compliance been properly reviewed and monitored and had control
measures been implemented.

Although the internal audit unit fulfilled their functions, they had limited impact due to the lack
of adequate implementation of their recommendations by the department.

Place of signing

Date of signing

s“,s‘
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A UDITOR-GENERAL

SOUTH A FRICA

Auditing to build public confidence




ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021 * NORTH WEST DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Annexure — Auditor-general’s responsibility for the
audit

1. As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, | exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional scepticism throughout my audit of the financial statements, and the
procedures performed on reported performance information for selected programmes and on
the department’'s compliance with respect to the selected subject matters.

Financial statements

2. In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the financial statements as described in the
auditor’s report, | also:

e identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the department’s internal control.

e evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the accounting officer.

e conclude on the appropriateness of the accounting officer’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements. | also conclude, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Department of Education to
continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am required
to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements about the material uncertainty or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
the opinion on the financial statements. My conclusions are based on the information
available to me at the date of the auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause a department to cease to continue as a going concern.

e evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Communication with those charged with governance

3. | communicate with the accounting officer regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that | identify during my audit.

4. | also provide the accounting officer with a statement that | have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

W
0o,
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR THE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
FOR THE YEAR-ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

PART A: ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Summary of significant accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the following policies, which
have been applied consistently in all material aspects, unless otherwise indicated.
Management has concluded that the financial statements present fairly the department’s
primary and secondary information.

The historical cost convention has been used, except where otherwise indicated. Management
has used assessments and estimates in preparing the annual financial statements. These are
based on the best information available at the time of preparation.

Where appropriate and meaningful, additional information has been disclosed to enhance the
usefulness of the financial statements and to comply with the statutory requirements of the
Public Finance Management Act (PFMA), Act 1 of 1999 (as amended by Act 29 of 1999), and
the Treasury Regulations issued in terms of the PFMA and the annual Division of Revenue Act.

1 Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Modified Cash
Standard.

2 Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

3 Presentation currency

Amounts have been presented in the currency of the South African Rand (R) which is
also the functional currency of the department.

4 Rounding

Unless otherwise stated financial figures have been rounded to the nearest one
thousand Rand (R’000).

5 Foreign currency translation

Cash flows arising from foreign currency transactions are translated into South African
Rands using the spot exchange rates prevailing at the date of payment / receipt.

6 Comparative information

6.1 Prior period comparative information

Prior period comparative information has been presented in the current year’s financial
statements. Where necessary figures included in the prior period financial statements
have been reclassified to ensure that the format in which the information is presented is
consistent with the format of the current year’s financial statements.

6.2 Current year comparison with budget

A comparison between the approved, final budget and actual amounts for each
programme and economic classification is included in the appropriation statement.

7 Revenue

7.1 Appropriated funds

Appropriated funds comprises of departmental allocations as well as direct charges
against the revenue fund (i.e. statutory appropriation).

Appropriated funds are recognised in the statement of financial performance on the
date the appropriation becomes effective. Adjustments made in terms of the
adjustments budget process are recognised in the statement of financial performance
on the date the adjustments become effective.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR THE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

FOR THE YEAR-ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

The net amount of any appropriated funds due to / from the relevant revenue fund at
the reporting date is recognised as a payable / receivable in the statement of financial
position.

7.2 Departmental revenue
Departmental revenue is recognised in the statement of financial performance when
received and is subsequently paid into the relevant revenue fund, unless stated
otherwise.
Any amount owing to the relevant revenue fund at the reporting date is recognised as a
payable in the statement of financial position.

7.3 Accrued departmental revenue
Accruals in respect of departmental revenue (excluding tax revenue) are recorded in
the notes to the financial statements when:
e it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the

transaction will flow to the department; and

e the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.
The accrued revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable.
Accrued tax revenue (and related interest and / penalties) is measured at amounts
receivable from collecting agents.
Write-offs are made according to the department’s debt write-off policy

8 Expenditure

8.1 Compensation of employees

8.1.1 | Salaries and wages
Salaries and wages are recognised in the statement of financial performance on the
date of payment.

8.1.2 | Social contributions
Social contributions made by the department in respect of current employees are
recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment.
Social contributions made by the department in respect of ex-employees are classified
as transfers to households in the statement of financial performance on the date of
payment.

8.2 Other expenditure
Other expenditure (such as goods and services, transfers and subsidies and payments
for capital assets) is recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date of
payment. The expense is classified as a capital expense if the total consideration paid
is more than the capitalisation threshold.

8.3 Accruals and payables not recognised
Accruals and payables not recognised are recorded in the notes to the financial
statements at cost at the reporting date.

8.4 Leases

8.4.1 | Operating leases
Operating lease payments made during the reporting period are recognised as current
expenditure in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment.
The operating lease commitments are recorded in the notes to the financial statements.

8.4.2 | Finance leases

x Ngwanalsejololaitlhakanelwa'y
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Finance lease payments made during the reporting period are recognised as capital
expenditure in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment.

The finance lease commitments are recorded in the notes to the financial statements
and are not apportioned between the capital and interest portions.

Finance lease assets acquired at the end of the lease term are recorded and measured
at the lower of:

e cost, being the fair value of the asset; or

e the sum of the minimum lease payments made, including any payments made to
acquire ownership at the end of the lease term, excluding interest.

Aid Assistance

Aid assistance received

Aid assistance received in cash is recognised in the statement of financial performance
when received. In-kind aid assistance is recorded in the notes to the financial
statements on the date of receipt and is measured at fair value.

Aid assistance not spent for the intended purpose and any unutilised funds from aid
assistance that are required to be refunded to the donor are recognised as a payable
in the statement of financial position.

9.2

Aid assistance paid

Aid assistance paid is recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date
of payment. Aid assistance payments made prior to the receipt of funds are recognised
as a receivable in the statement of financial position.

10

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost in the statement of financial position.

Bank overdrafts are shown separately on the face of the statement of financial position
as a current liability.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand, deposits held, other short-term highly liquid investments and bank overdrafts.

11

Prepayments and advances

Prepayments and advances are recognised in the statement of financial position when
the department receives or disburses the cash.

Prepayments and advances are initially and subsequently measured at cost.
<Indicate when prepayments are expensed and under what circumstances.>

12

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are recognised in the statement of financial position at cost plus
accrued interest, where interest is charged, less amounts already settled or written-off.
Write-offs are made according to the department’s write-off policy.

13

Investments
Investments are recognised in the statement of financial position at cost.

14

Financial assets

141

Financial assets (not covered elsewhere)
A financial asset is recognised initially at its cost plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset.

At the reporting date, a department shall measure its financial assets at cost, less
amounts already settled or written-off, except for recognised loans and receivables,
which are measured at cost plus accrued interest, where interest is charged, less
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amounts already settled or written-off.

14.2 | Impairment of financial assets
Where there is an indication of impairment of a financial asset, an estimation of the
reduction in the recorded carrying value, to reflect the best estimate of the amount of
the future economic benefits expected to be received from that asset, is recorded in the
notes to the financial statements.

15 Payables
Payables recognised in the statement of financial position are recognised at cost.

16 Capital Assets

16.1 | Immovable capital assets
Immovable assets reflected in the asset register of the department are recorded in the
notes to the financial statements at cost or fair value where the cost cannot be
determined reliably. Immovable assets acquired in a non-exchange transaction are
recorded at fair value at the date of acquisition. Immovable assets are subsequently
carried in the asset register at cost and are not currently subject to depreciation or
impairment.
Subsequent expenditure of a capital nature forms part of the cost of the existing asset
when ready for use.
Additional information on immovable assets not reflected in the assets register is
provided in the notes to financial statements.

16.2 | Movable capital assets
Movable capital assets are initially recorded in the notes to the financial statements at
cost. Movable capital assets acquired through a non-exchange transaction is
measured at fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Where the cost of movable capital assets cannot be determined reliably, the movable
capital assets are measured at fair value and where fair value cannot be determined;
the movable assets are measured at R1.
All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 (or a later date as approved by the OAG) may
be recorded at R1.
Movable capital assets are subsequently carried at cost and are not subject to
depreciation or impairment.
Biological assets are subsequently carried at fair value.
Subsequent expenditure that is of a capital nature forms part of the cost of the existing
asset when ready for use.

16.3 | Intangible assets

Intangible assets are initially recorded in the notes to the financial statements at cost.
Intangible assets acquired through a non-exchange transaction are measured at fair
value as at the date of acquisition.

Internally generated intangible assets are recorded in the notes to the financial
statements when the department commences the development phase of the project.

Where the cost of intangible assets cannot be determined reliably, the intangible capital
assets are measured at fair value and where fair value cannot be determined; the
intangible assets are measured at R1.

All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 (or a later date as approved by the OAG) may
be recorded at R1.

Intangible assets are subsequently carried at cost and are not subject to depreciation or
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impairment.

Subsequent expenditure of a capital nature forms part of the cost of the existing asset
when ready for use.

16.4

Project Costs: Work-in-progress

Expenditure of a capital nature is initially recognised in the statement of financial
performance at cost when paid.

Amounts paid towards capital projects are separated from the amounts recognised and
accumulated in work-in-progress until the underlying asset is ready for use. Once
ready for use, the total accumulated payments are recorded in an asset register.
Subsequent payments to complete the project are added to the capital asset in the
asset register.

Where the department is not the custodian of the completed project asset, the asset is
transferred to the custodian subsequent to completion.

17

Provisions and Contingents

171

Provisions

Provisions are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when there is a present
legal or constructive obligation to forfeit economic benefits as a result of events in the
past and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or
service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made. The provision is measured as the best estimate of the funds
required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date.

17.2

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when there is
a possible obligation that arises from past events, and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not within the control of the department or when there is a present obligation
that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured
reliably.

17.3

Contingent assets

Contingent assets are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when a possible
asset arises from past events, and whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not within the
control of the department.

17.4

Commitments

Commitments (other than for transfers and subsidies) are recorded at cost in the notes
to the financial statements when there is a contractual arrangement or an approval by
management in a manner that raises a valid expectation that the department will
discharge its responsibilities thereby incurring future expenditure that will result in the
outflow of cash.

18

Unauthorised expenditure

Unauthorised expenditure is recognised in the statement of financial position until such

time as the expenditure is either:

e approved by Parliament or the Provincial Legislature with funding and the related
funds are received; or

e approved by Parliament or the Provincial Legislature without funding and is written
off against the appropriation in the statement of financial performance; or
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e transferred to receivables for recovery.

Unauthorised expenditure is measured at the amount of the confirmed unauthorised
expenditure.

19 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recorded in the notes to the financial statements
when confirmed. The amount recorded is equal to the total value of the fruitless and or
wasteful expenditure incurred.

Fruittess and wasteful expenditure is removed from the notes to the financial
statements when it is resolved or transferred to receivables for recovery.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure receivables are measured at the amount that is
expected to be recoverable and are de-recognised when settled or subsequently
written-off as irrecoverable.

20 Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure is recorded in the notes to the financial statements when
confirmed. The amount recorded is equal to the value of the irregular expenditure
incurred unless it is impracticable to determine, in which case reasons therefor are
provided in the note.

Irregular expenditure is removed from the note when it is either condoned by the
relevant authority, transferred to receivables for recovery or not condoned and is not
recoverable.

Irregular expenditure receivables are measured at the amount that is expected to be
recoverable and are de-recognised when settled or subsequently written-off as
irrecoverable.

21 Changes in accounting policies, accounting estimates and errors

Changes in accounting policies that are effected by management have been applied
retrospectively in accordance with MCS requirements, except to the extent that it is
impracticable to determine the period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the
change in policy. In such instances the department shall restate the opening balances
of assets, liabilities and net assets for the earliest period for which retrospective
restatement is practicable.

Changes in accounting estimates are applied prospectively in accordance with MCS
requirements.

Correction of errors is applied retrospectively in the period in which the error has
occurred in accordance with MCS requirements, except to the extent that it is
impracticable to determine the period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the
error. In such cases the department shall restate the opening balances of assets,
liabilities and net assets for the earliest period for which retrospective restatement is
practicable.

22 Events after the reporting date

Events after the reporting date that are classified as adjusting events have been
accounted for in the financial statements. The events after the reporting date that are
classified as non-adjusting events after the reporting date have been disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements.

23 Principal-Agent arrangements

The department is party to a principal-agent arrangement for [IDT, Public Works and
SITA]. In terms of the arrangement the department is the agent and is responsible for
the construction and maintenance of the schools. All related revenues, expenditures,
assets and liabilities have been recognised or recorded in terms of the relevant policies
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listed herein. Additional disclosures have been provided in the notes to the financial
statements where appropriate.

24

Departures from the MCS requirements

The Department of Education and Sports Development’'s management has concluded
that the financial statements present fairly the department’s primary and secondary
information; that the department complied with the Standard except that it has departed
from a particular requirement to achieve fair presentation; and the requirement from
which the department has departed, the nature of the departure and the reason for
departure.

25

Capitalisation reserve

The capitalisation reserve comprises of financial assets and/or liabilities originating in a
prior reporting period but which are recognised in the statement of financial position for
the first time in the current reporting period. Amounts are recognised in the
capitalisation reserves when identified in the current period and are transferred to the
National/Provincial Revenue Fund when the underlying asset is disposed and the
related funds are received.

26

Recoverable revenue

Amounts are recognised as recoverable revenue when a payment made in a previous
financial year becomes recoverable from a debtor in the current financial year.
Amounts are either transferred to the National/Provincial Revenue Fund when
recovered or are transferred to the statement of financial performance when written-off.

27

Related party transactions

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between
the reporting entity and a related party. Related party transactions within the
Minister/MEC'’s portfolio are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when the
transaction is not at arm’s length.

Key management personnel are those persons having the authority and responsibility
for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the department. The number of
individuals and their full compensation is recorded in the notes to the financial
statements.

28

Inventories

At the date of acquisition, inventories are recognised at cost in the statement of
financial performance.

Where inventories are acquired as part of a non-exchange transaction, the inventories
are measured at fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Inventories are subsequently measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value or
where intended for distribution (or consumed in the production of goods for distribution)
at no or a nominal charge, the lower of cost and current replacement value.

The cost of inventories is assigned by using the weighted average cost basis.

29

Public-Private Partnerships

Public Private Partnerships are accounted for based on the nature and or the
substance of the partnership. The transaction is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policies.

A summary of the significant terms of the PPP agreement, the parties to the agreement,
and the date of commencement thereof together with the description and nature of the
concession fees received, the unitary fees paid, rights and obligations of the
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department are recorded in the notes to the financial statements.

30

Employee benefits

The value of each major class of employee benefit obligation (accruals, payables not
recognised and provisions) is disclosed in the Employee benefits note.
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2020/21 2019/20
Adjusted Shifting of | Virement Final Actual Variance Final Actual
Appropriation Funds Appropriation | Expenditure Expenditure | appropriation | Expenditure
as % of final
appropriation
R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 % R'000 R'000
Sub programme
1. PRIMARY PHASE 28 337 - - 28 337 28332 5 100,0% 24 150 24 022
2. SECONDARY PHASE 6 739 - - 6 739 6 739 - 100,0% 8998 9027
35076 = = 35076 35071 5 100,0% 33 148 33 049
Economic classification
Current payments - - - - - - - 73
Compensation of employees - - - - - - - - 73
Salaries and wages - - - - - - - - 73
Transfers and subsidies 35076 - - 35076 35071 5 100,0% 33148 32976
Non-profit institutions 35076 - - 35076 35071 5 100,0% 33148 32976
35076 - - 35076 35071 5 100,0% 33148 33049

2020/21 2019/20
Adjusted Shifting of | Virement Final Actual Variance Final Actual
Appropriation Funds Appropriation | Expenditure Expenditure | appropriation | Expenditure
as % of final
appropriation
R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 % R'000 R'000
Sub programme
1. SCHOOLS 721 905 - (7 000) 714 905 706 345 8 560 98,8% 691 777 679 245
2. HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT 718 - - 718 667 51 92,9% 3067 2789
3. LEARNER WITH PROFOUND INTELLECTUAL DISABILITIH 19 079 - - 19 079 15129 3950 79,3% 16 835 15921
741 702 - (7 000) 734 702 722 141 12 561 98,3% 711679 697 955
Economic classification
Current payments 567 649 - (7 000) 560 649 550 106 10 543 98,1% 547 622 538 177
Compensation of employees 547 192 - (7 000) 540 192 537 074 3118 99,4% 528 644 525413
Salaries and wages 474 977 - (7 000) 467 977 452 164 15813 96,6% 449 004 445 852
Social contributions 72215 - - 72 215 84910 (12 695) 117,6% 79 640 79 561
Goods and services 20 457 - - 20 457 13 032 7425 63,7% 18 978 12 764
Advertising 300 (115) - 185 87 98 47,0% 259 246
Minor assets 3315 (717) - 2598 2191 407 84,3% 3211 2468
Catering: Departmental activities 30 8 - 38 14 24 36,8% 97 94
Communication (G&S) - - - - - - - 25 23
Computer services - - - - (981) 981 - 982 980
Contractors - 27 - 27 22 5 81,5% - -
Fleet services (including government motor transport) - - - - - - - 2587 -
Inventory: Clothing material and accessories - - - - - - - 47 47
Inventory: Learner and teacher support material 3245 (476) - 2769 767 2002 27,7% 2345 1080
Inventory: Other supplies 8 030 (489) - 7541 5881 1660 78,0% - -
Consumable supplies 1623 1162 - 2785 1328 1457 47,7% 178 130
Consumable: Stationery, printing and office supplies 160 974 - 1134 1011 123 89,2% 702 664
Operating leases 200 - - 200 121 79 60,5% 159 135
Travel and subsistence 2515 (1 146) - 1369 870 499 63,6% 4189 3062
Training and development 119 (85) - 34 - 34 - 47 47
Operating payments - 344 - 344 333 11 96,8% 1331 971
Venues and facilities 920 513 - 1433 1388 45 96,9% 2789 2788
Rental and hiring - - - - - - - 30 29
Transfers and subsidies 168 863 - - 168 863 167 733 1130 99,3% 157 470 153 506
Non-profit institutions 166 663 - - 166 663 165 981 682 99,6% 155 270 152 381
Households 2 200 - - 2 200 1752 448 79,6% 2200 1125
Social benefits 2200 - - 2200 1752 448 79,6% 2200 1125
Payments for capital assets 5190 - - 5190 4302 888 82,9% 6 587 6272
Machinery and equipment 5190 - - 5190 4 302 888 82,9% 6 587 6272
Transport equipment 3406 - - 3406 2850 556 83,7% 5840 5536
Other machinery and equipment 1784 - - 1784 1452 332 81,4% 747 736
741 702 - (7 000) 734 702 722 141 12 561 98,3% 711679 697 955
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NORTH WEST: EDUCATION

Notes to the Appropriation Statement
1 Detail of transfers and subsidies as per Appropriation Act (after Virement):
Detail of these transactions can be viewed in the note on Transfers and subsidies and Annexure 1 (A-H) to the
Annual Financial Statements.
2 Detail of specifically and exclusively appropriated amounts voted (after Virement):
Detail of these transactions can be viewed in note 1 (Annual Appropriation) to the Annual Financial Statements.
3 Detail on payments for financial assets
Detail of these transactions per programme can be viewed in the note to Payments for financial assets to the
Annual Financial Statements.
4 Explanations of material variances from Amounts Voted (after virement):
Variance as a
: . %
F|nal1l . Actuql Variance of Final
41 Per economic classification: Appropriation | Expenditure Anpron
R’000 R’000 R’000 %
Current expenditure
Compensation of employees 13 832 756 13 809 788 22 968 0,2%
Goods and services 1545 186 1 346 204 198 982 12,9%
Interest and rent on land - 244 (244) #DIV/O!
Transfers and subsidies
Departmental agencies and accounts 17 302 17 302 - -
Non-profit institutions 1823873 1780 448 43 425 2,4%
Households 73 346 92 928 (19 582) -26,7%
Payments for capital assets
Buildings and other fixed structures 341 258 397 017 (55 759) -16%
Machinery and equipment 55 076 37 409 17 667 32%

270

Goods and services under spent due to some of the invoices being submitted close to year-end
and could not be processed, camps for grade 12 learners and face to face training not being

held as planned due to covid 19.
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4,2 Per conditional grant

Education Infrastructure Grant
HIV and Aids (Life Skills Education)
Grant

Learners with Profound Intellectual
Disabilities Grant

Maths, Science and Technology Grant
National School Nutrition Programme
Grant

Expanded Public Works Programme
Integrated Grant for Provinces -
Education And Sports Development
Social Sector Expanded Public Works
Programme Incentive Grant for
Provinces - Education And Sports
Development

Final Actual Variance Variance as a

Appropriation | Expenditure %
R’000 R’000 R’000 %

892750 856429 36321 4%

12734 12723 11 0%

19079 15634 3445 18%

35702 32679 3023 8%

516114 488139 27975 5%

2035 2035 0 0%

7505 7445 60 1%
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NORTH WEST: EDUCATION

[ ] . .
Statement of Financial Performance
2020/21 2019/20
Note R'000 R'000
REVENUE
Annual appropriation 1 17 688 797 17 092 809
Departmental revenue 2 - 355
TOTAL REVENUE 17 688 797 17 093 164
EXPENDITURE
Current expenditure
Compensation of employees 3 13 809 788 13 439 496
Goods and services 4 1 346 203 1303 079
Interest and rent on land 5 244 160
Total current expenditure 15 156 235 14 742 735
Transfers and subsidies
Transfers and subsidies 6 1 890 679 1 394 245
Total transfers and subsidies 1 890 679 1394 245
Expenditure for capital assets
Tangible assets 7 434 426 540 005
Total expenditure for capital
assets 434 426 540 005
TOTAL EXPENDITURE 17 481 340 16 676 985
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE
YEAR 207 457 416 179
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NORTH WEST: EDUCATION

[= =] - - ..
Statement of Financial Position
2020/21 2019/20
Note R'000 R'000
ASSETS
Current Assets 303 431 486 521
Unauthorised expenditure 8 8 705 8 705
Cash an cash equivalents 9 - 125574
Prepayments and advances 10 205 164 269 988
Receivables 11 89 562 82 254
TOTAL ASSETS 303 431 486 521
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities 303 431 486 521
Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund 12 207 457 470 389
Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts to be surrendered to the
Revenue Fund 13 1710 2710
Bank overdraft 14 82 624 -
Payables 15 11 640 13 422
TOTAL LIABILITIES 303 431 486 521

_ 273
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NORTH WEST: EDUCATION
Cash Flow Statement

2020/21 2019/20
Note R'000 R'000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts 17 707 239 17 050 382

Annual appropriated funds received 11 17 688 797 17 028 476

Departmental revenue received 2 18 442 21 906
Net (increase)/ decrease in working capital 55734 -283 536
Surrendered to Revenue Fund -489 831 -20 836
Current payments -15 155 991 -14 742 575
Interest paid 5 -244 -160
Transfers and subsidies paid -1 890 679 -1 394 245
Net cash flow available from operating activities 16 226 228 609 030
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for capital assets 7 -434 426 -540 005
Net cash flows from investing activities -434 426 -540 005
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents -208 198 69 025
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 125574 56 549
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 14 -82 624 125574
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1,1

NoorwDhE

12

Annual Appropriation

Programmes
ADMINISTRATION

PUB ORDINARY SCHOOL EDUCATION
INDEPENDENT SCHOOL SUBSIDIES
PUBLIC SPECIAL SCHOOL EDUCATION
EARLY CHILDHOOD DEVELOPMENT
INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT

SERVICES
Total

Conditional grants**

Total grants received

Departmental Revenue

Sales of goods and services other than capital assets
Transactions in financial assets and liabilities

Total revenue collected

Less: Own revenue included in appropriation
Departmental revenue collected

2,1

2,2

NORTH WEST: EDUCATION
Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Sales of goods and services other than capital assets
Sales of goods and services produced by the department

Other sales

Sales of scrap, waste and other used current goods

Total

Transactions in financial assets and liabilities

Receivables

Stale cheques written back
Other Receipts including Recoverable Revenue

Total

2020/21
Funds not
Final Actual Funds requested/
Appropriation Received not received
R'000 R'000 R'000
861 710 861 710 -
13 356 953 13 356 953 -
35076 35076 -
734702 734702 -
634 356 634 356 -
894 785 894 785 -
1171215 1171215 -
17 688 797 17 688 797 -
2020/21
Note R'000
29 1485919
2020/21
Note R'000
21 14732
22 3710
18 442
13 18 442
2020/21
Note R'000
2
14 721
11
14 732
2020/21
Note R'000
2
2
3708
3710

x Ngwanalsejololaitlhakanelwa'y

Final
Appropriation
R'000

872 956
13126 917
33148
711679
645 115
870 922
832072

2019/20

Appropriation
Received
R'000

863 302
13072 238
33148
711 679
645 115
870922
832072

Funds not
requested/
not received
R'000
9 654
54 679

17 092 809

17 028 476

2019/20
R'000

1433 201

2019/20
R'000

15083
6823
21906
21551
355

2019/20
R'000

15082

15082

1
15 083

2019/20
R'000
2339

4484
6 823
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2020/21 2019/20
Note R'000 R'000
3 Compensation of Employees
3,1 Salaries and wages
Basic salary 10 071 900 9 986 839
Performance award 12 057 20 674
Service Based 17 508 17 574
Compensative/circumstantial 429 517 247 115
Periodic payments 26 988 25 760
Other non-pensionable allowances 1311871 1277 308
Total 11 869 841 11 575 270
2020/21 2019/20
Note R'000 R'000
3,2 Social Contributions
Employer contributions
Pension 1274 237 1266 834
Medical 662 098 594 000
UIF 145 7
Bargaining council 963 912
Official unions and associations 2 486 2471
Insurance 18 2
Total 1939 947 1864 226
Total compensation of employees 13 809 788 13 439 496
Average number of employees 38 015 32 766
2020/21 2019/20
Note R'000 R'000
4 Goods and services
Administrative fees 472 1601
Advertising 3 306 8 788
Minor assets 4,1 74 189 16 539
Bursaries (employees) 6724 8274
Catering 15 107 30 068
Communication 15271 16 869
Computer services 4.2 9 240 9 597
Consultants: Business and advisory services 24 317 29 375
Legal services 11 047 9592
Contractors 1800 2760
Agency and support / outsourced services 263 1524
Audit cost — external 43 20 236 13013
Fleet services 30 886 29 906
Inventory 4.4 656 461 568 346
Consumables 45 86 596 35537
Operating leases 8770 14 741
Property payments 4,6 245 806 216 956
Rental and hiring - 1003
Transport provided as part of the departmental activities 7677 27 750
Travel and subsistence 4.7 48 442 102 971
Venues and facilities 9410 40 169
Training and development 2578 7941
Other operating expenditure 4.8 67 605 109 759

Total 1346 203 1303 079
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4,1

4,2

4,3

4,4

441

4,5

4,6

4,7

Minor assets

Tangible assets
Machinery and equipment
Total

Computer services

SITA computer services

External computer service providers
Total

Audit cost — external
Regularity audits
Total

Inventory

Clothing material and accessories
Learning and teaching support material
Materials and supplies

Medical supplies

Other supplies

Total

Other Supplies
Assets for distribution

School furniture
Total

Consumables
Consumable supplies
Household supplies
Building material and supplies
IT consumables
Stationery, printing and office supplies
Total

Property payments

Municipal services

Property maintenance and repairs
Other

Total

Travel and subsistence
Local

Foreign
Total

Note

Note

Note

Note

Note

Note

Note

2020/21
R'000

74 189

74 189

2020/21
R'000

3328
5912
9 240

2020/21
R'000

20 236
20 236

2020/21
R'000

250
550 051
7801
47 788
50571
656 461

50 571

50571

50 571

2020/21
R'000

49 502
49 098
31

373

37 094
86 596

2020/21
R'000

7321
155 285
83 200
245 806

2020/21
R'000

48 442

48 442

x Ngwanalsejololaitlhakanelwa'y

2019/20
R'000

16 539

16 539

16 539

2019/20
R'000

5705
3892
9 597

2019/20
R'000

13013
13013

2019/20
R'000

467
533 210
2004

32 665
568 346

32 665

32 665

32 665

2019/20
R'000

2916
2091
71
754
32 621
35537

2019/20
R'000

9 303
127 020
80 633
216 956

2019/20
R'000

102 888
83
102 971
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4,8

Other operating expenditure

Professional bodies, membership and subscription fees
Resettlement costs

Other

Total

Interest and Rent on Land
Interest paid

Total

Transfers and Subsidies
Departmental agencies and accounts
Non-profit institutions

Households

Total

Expenditure for capital assets
Tangible assets
Buildings and other fixed structures
Machinery and equipment

Total

7,1

7,2

Analysis of funds utilised to acquire capital assets - 2020/21

Tangible assets
Buildings and other fixed structures
Machinery and equipment

Total

Analysis of funds utilised to acquire capital assets - 2019/20

Tangible assets
Buildings and other fixed structures
Machinery and equipment

Total

Note

Note

Note
ANNEXURE 1A

ANNEXURE 1B
ANNEXURE 1C

Note

I8
(21 [e))

Voted Funds
R'000
434 426

2020/21
R'000

39

463

67 103
67 605

2020/21
R'000

244
244

2020/21
R'000

17 302
1780 449
92 928
1890679

2020/21
R'000

434 426

397 016
37 410

2019/20
R'000

40
1785
107 934

109 759

2019/20
R'000

160
160

2019/20
R'000

16 400
1280930
96 915

1394 245

2019/20
R'000

540 005

434 426

Aid assistance
R'000

474 675
65 330

397 016
37 410

540 005

TOTAL
R'000
434 426

397 016
37 410

434 426

Voted Funds
R'000
540 005

Aid assistance
R'000

474 675
65 330

434 426

TOTAL
R'000
540 005

474 675
65 330

540 005

540 005
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8

10

Unauthorised Expenditure

8,1

8,2

8,3

Reconciliation of unauthorised expenditure
Opening balance

As restated

Closing balance

Analysis of closing balance
Unauthorised expenditure awaiting authorisation
Total

Analysis of unauthorised expenditure awaiting authorisation per economic
classification

Current

Total

Analysis of unauthorised expenditure awaiting authorisation per type

Unauthorised expenditure relating to overspending of the vote or a main division within the

vote
Total

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Consolidated Paymaster General Account

Total

Prepayments and Advances
Prepayments (Not expensed)
Advances paid (Not expensed)

Total

10,1

Advances paid (Not expensed)

Balance as Less: Amount

Note

Note

Add/Less: Other

R’000

2020/21
R'000

8 705
8 705
8 705

2020/21
R'000
8 705
8 705

2020/21

R'000
8 705
8 705

2020/21
R'000

8 705
8 705

2020/21
R'000

2020/21
R'000

49771
155 393
205 164

Add: Current
Year advances

R’000

Note at 1 April expensed in
2020 current year
10 R’000 R’000
Public entities 189 988 -34 595
Total 189 988 -34 595

Balance as Less: Amount

Add: Current

Note at 1 April expensed in Add/Less: Other
Year advances
2019 current year
Advances paid (Not
expensed) 10 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Public entities - - 189 988
Total - - 189 988

x Ngwanalsejololaitlhakanelwa'y

2019/20
R'000

8 705
8 705
8 705

2019/20
R'000
8 705
8 705

2019/20
R'000

8 705
8 705

2019/20
R'000

8 705
8 705

2019/20
R'000

125574

125574

2019/20
R'000

80 000
189 988
269 988

Balance as at
31 March 2021

R’000

155 393
155 393

Balance as at
31 March 2020

R’000

189 988

189 988
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Balance as at
31 March 2021

R’000

49771
49771

Balance as at
31 March 2020

R’000

80 000
80 000

2019/20
Current Non-current Total

R’000 R’000 R’000

11368 - 11 368
70 886 - 70 886

82 254 - 82 254

10,2  Prepayments (Not expensed)
Balance as Less: Amount Add: Current
Note at 1 April expensed in  Add/Less: Other Year
2020 current year prepayments
10 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Listed by economic
classification
Capital assets 80 000 -30 229 - -
Total 80 000 -30 229 - -
Balance as Less: Amount Add: Current
Note at 1 April expensed in  Add/Less: Other Year
2019 current year prepayments
Prepayments (Not
expensed) 10 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Listed by economic
classification
Capital assets - - - 80 000
Total - - - 80 000
2020/21
Current Non-current Total
Note R’000 R’000 R’000
Receivables
Recoverable expenditure 111 1638 1638
Staff debt 112 87 924 87 924
Total 89 562 - 89 562
2020/21
Note R'000
11,1 Recoverable expenditure (disallowance accounts) 11
(Group major categories, but list material items)
SAL:DEDUCTION DISALL ACC:CA -
SAL:DEDUCTION DISALL ACC:CA 3
SAL:REVERSAL CONTROL:CA 213
SAL:DISALLOWANCE ACCOUNT:CA 1109
SAL:TAX DEBT:CA 280
SAL:MEDICAL AID:CL 18
SAL:INSURANCE DEDUCTIONS:CL 15
Total 1638
2020/21
Note R'000
11,2  Staff debt 11
(Group major categories, but list material items)
DEBT ACCOUNT 87 924
Total 87 924
2020/21
Note R'000
11,3  Impairment of receivables
Estimate of impairment of receivables 81 868
Total 81 868

2019/20
R'000

67
9132
885
1204

65
15
11 368

2019/20
R'000

70 886
70 886

2019/20
R'000

59 735
59 735
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12

13

14

15

Voted Funds to be Surrendered to the Revenue Fund
Opening balance

As restated

Transfer from statement of financial performance (as restated)
Voted funds not requested/not received

Paid during the year

Closing balance

Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts to be surrendered to the Revenue

Fund

Opening balance

As restated

Transfer from Statement of Financial Performance (as restated)
Own revenue included in appropriation

Paid during the year

Closing balance

Bank Overdraft
Consolidated Paymaster General Account
Total

Payables - current
Clearing accounts
Total

15,1 Clearing accounts

(Identify major categories, but list material amounts)
SAL:ACB RECALLS:CA

SAL:BARGAINING COUNCILS:CL
PAYBLE:ADV:P/DEPT:NW ADV ACC:CL

SAL:GEHS FUNDS

SAL:INCOME TAX:CL

SAL:OFFICIAL UNIONS:CL

SAL:PENSION FUND:CL & SAL:UIF:CL R97.00 + R5.00
SAL : FINANCE OTHER INSTITUTIONS:CL

Total

x Ngwanalsejololaitlhakanelwa'y

Note

Note

Note

Note
15

2020/21
R'000

470 389
470 389
207 457

(470 389)
207 457

2020/21
R'000

2710
2710

18 442
-19 442
1710

2020/21
R'000

82 624
82 624

2020/21
R'000

11 640
11 640

2020/21
R'000

6843
25
175
1749
2685

102
57
11 640

2019/20
R'000

118 898
118 898
415 824
-64 333

470 389

2019/20
R'000

1640
1640
355
21551
-20 836
2710

2019/20
R'000

2019/20
R'000

13 422
13 422

2019/20
R'000

4741
86

1496
5263
20
1768
45

13 422
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16

17

18

19

20

Net cash flow available from operating activities

Net surplus/(deficit) as per Statement of Financial Performance
Add back non cash/cash movements not deemed operating activities
(Increase)/decrease in receivables

(Increase)/decrease in prepayments and advances
Increase/(decrease) in payables — current

Expenditure on capital assets

Surrenders to Revenue Fund

Voted funds not requested/not received

Own revenue included in appropriation

Net cash flow generated by operating activities

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents for cash flow purposes
Consolidated Paymaster General account
Total

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
18,1 Contingent liabilities
Liable to Nature
Housing loan guarantees Employees
Claims against the department
Total

The items included under uncertainties relating to the contingent liabilities the amount or timing of any outflow is not known.

There are no reimbursements requested or identified to be reimbursement.

All cases were disclosed regardless of sensitivety of case.

Note

Note

Note

Annex 2A
Annex 2B

2020/21
R'000

207 457
18771

-7 308
64 824
-1782
434 426
-489 831

18 442

2019/20
R'000

416 179
192 851

226 228

2020/21
R'000

-82 624
-82 624

2020/21
R'000

71
210 695
210 766

-18 828
-269 988
5280
540 005
-20 836
-64 333
21551

2020/21
Note R'000
Capital commitments
Specify class of asset
Buildings and other fixed structures 708 581
Total 708 581
2020/21
R'000
Accruals and payables not recognised
20,1 Accruals
Listed by economic classification 30 days 30+ days Total
Goods and services 11 382 11 382
Capital assets 5625 5625
Total 17 007 17 007
2020/21
Listed by programme level Note R'000
Administration 6522
Public Ordinary Schools 4 860
Infrastructure 5625
Total 17 007

609 030

2019/20
R'000

125574
125 574

2019/20
R'000

71
196 503
196 574

2019/20
R'000

565 676

565 676

2019/20
R'000

Total
18 337
22 868
41 205

2019/20
R'000
16 706
1631
22 868
41 205
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20,2  Payables not recognised

Listed by economic classification 30 days 30+ days Total
Goods and services 5885 732 6617
Capital assets 1127 - 1127
Total 7012 732 7744
2020/21
Listed by programme level Note R'000
Administration 3330
Public Ordinary Schools 3287
Infrastructure 1127
Total 7 744
2020/21
Included in the above totals are the following: Note R'000
Confirmed balances with departments Annex 3 -
Total -
2020/21
Note R'000
21 Employee benefits
Leave entitlement 176 908
Service bonus 433 136
Performance awards 12 050
Capped leave 772 813
Other 20 798
Total 1415 705

At this stage the department is not able to reliably measure the long term portion of the long service awards.

22 Lease commitments
22,1 Operating leases

Spef:i_alised Building.s and Machinery and
2020/21 military Land other fixed .
assets structures equipment
R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000
Not later than 1 year - - - -
Total lease commitments - - - -
Specialised Buildings and .
2019/20 pm ilitary Land other gf]ixed Machl_nery and
equipment
assets structures
R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000
Not later than 1 year - - - 181
Total lease commitments - - - 181
2020/21
Note R'000
23 Irregular expenditure
23,1 Reconciliation of irregular expenditure
Opening balance 1695 000
As restated 1695 000
Add: Irregular expenditure - relating to current year 232 9 235
Closing balance 1704 235
Analysis of closing balance
Current year 9235
Prior years 1695 000
Total 1704 235

x Ngwanalsejololaitlhakanelwa'y

Total
9313
17 715
27 028

2019/20
R'000
9103
210
17 715
27 028

2019/20
R'000
10114
10114

2019/20
R'000

155 995
430 636
20672
875 021
19 705

1502 029

Total

R'000

Total

R'000
181
181

2019/20
R'000

1489 277
1489 277
205 723

1695 000

205 723
1489 277

1695 000
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24

25

2020/21
Details of current and prior year irregular expenditure — added current year (under
23,2 determination and investigation) R'000
Incident Disciplinary steps taken/criminal proceedings
AWARD SUPPLIER EXP CIDB To be investigated 168
ONLY 1 QUOTATION OBTAINED To be investigated 1187
HIGHEST SCORER NOT APPOINTED To be investigated 2533
NOT APPROVED BY ACC OFFICER To be investigated 1222
PAYMENT OVER CONTRACT AMT To be investigated -
LOCAL CONTENT To be investigated 3150
NOT ON LIST DEV SMALL BUSINESS To be investigated 975
Total 9 235
2020/21
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure R’000
24,1  Reconciliation of fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Opening balance 3773
As restated 3773
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure — relating to current year 24,2 244
Closing balance 4017
24,2 year (under determination and investigation) 2020/21
Incident Disciplinary steps taken/criminal proceedings R’000
Interest paid on overdue accounts To be investigated 244
Total 244
Related party transactions
2020/21
Note R'000
Revenue received
Tax revenue -
Sales of goods and services other than capital assets -
Fines, penalties and forfeits -
Interest, dividends and rent on land -
Sales of capital assets -
Transactions in financial assets and liabilities -
Transfers received -
Total -
Payments made
Compensation of employees -
Goods and services -
Interest and rent of land -
Expenditure for capital assets -
Payments for financial assets -
Transfers and subsidies -
Total -
2020/21
In kind goods and services provided/received Note R'000

List in kind goods and services between department and related party

The department occupies buildings owned by department of public works roads
free of charge.

Furthermore, all North West Provincial departments, trading entities, schedule 3C
and 3D public entities as well as the provincial legislature, in the provincial sphere
of government are a related party to the department.

The Cabinet resolved to invoke section 100(1)(b) of the Constitution on 23 May
2018 at the department, together with interventions at other provincial departments.
In this regard an Inter-Ministerial Task Team (IMTT) was established constituted of
several ministers to address the challenges facing the province. Each relevant
minister was also mandated to conduct performance assessments of their
corresponding portfolio department in the province. To give effect to section
100(1)(b), Mr JNT Mohlala was appointed as administrator of the North West
Department of Education for the financial period under review. As a result the
National Department of Basic Education, in the national sphere of government, the
Minister of the National Department of Basic Education and Mr JNT Mohlala are a
related party to the department for the duration of the national intervention.

Total

2019/20
R’000

3613
3613

160
3773

2019/20
R'000

2019/20
R'000
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26

27

27,1

27,2

Key management personnel

Political office bearers (provide detail below)
Officials:

Level 15 and 16

level 14

Level 13

Family members of key management personnel
Total

No. of
Individuals
1
5
8
27
13

2020/21
R'000

1978
7764
8523
29 641
6410
54 316

There were no non-arm’s length transactions with these related parties during the year. Mr JNT Mohlala, was appointed as
administrator for the full duration of the period under review by the National Minister of the National Department of Basic
Education. Therefor the before mentioned are considered part of key management personnel, they were however not paid

by the department

Movable Tangible Capital Assets

MOVEMENT IN MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT

2019/20
R'000

1918
8474
9478
29923
6410
56 203

Closing
balance

R'000

145 070

Transport assets

Computer equipment

Furniture and office equipment
Other machinery and equipment

25755
59 929
55291

4 096

TOTAL MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

Opening Value
balance adjustments Additions Disposals
R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000
123 984 - 37 411 16 325
12131 - 23189 9 565
54 811 - 9443 4325
53 865 - 1426 -
3178 - 3353 2435
123 984 - 37 411 16 325

Additions

ADDITIONS TO MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT

(Capital work-in-
progress current
costs and finance

Cash Non-cash lease payments)

R'000 R'000 R'000

37411 - -

Received
current, not paid
(Paid current
year, received
prior year

R'000

145 070

Total

R'000

37411

Transport assets

Computer equipment

Furniture and office equipment
Other machinery and equipment

23189 - -
9443 - -
1426 - -
3353 - -

23189
9443
1426
3353

CAPITAL ASSETS

37 411 - -

Disposals

DISPOSALS OF MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT

Transport assets

Computer equipment

Furniture and office equipment
Other machinery and equipment

CAPITAL ASSETS

Non-cash
Sold for cash  disposal Total disposals
R'000 R'000 R'000
- 16 325 16 325
- 9 565 9 565
- 4325 4325
- 2435 2435
- 16 325 16 325
x Ngwanalsejololaitlhakanelwa'y

37 411

Cash received
Actual

R'000
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27,3

Movement for 2019/20

MOVEMENT IN MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
Opening Prior period

balance error Additions Disposals
R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000
MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT 106 222 - 65 328 47 566
Transport assets 430 - 21441 9740
Computer equipment 49 096 - 15870 10 155
Furniture and office equipment 52 906 - 4 467 3508
Other machinery and equipment 3791 - 23 550 24 163
TOTAL MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS 106 222 - 65 328 47 566

Minor assets
MOVEMENT IN MINOR ASSETS PER THE ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

Specialised Intangible Heritage Machinery and Biological
military assets assets assets equipment assets
R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000
Opening balance - - - 23745 -
Value adjustments - - - 203 -
Additions - - - 74 189 -
Disposals - - - 73 813 -
TOTAL MINOR ASSETS - - - 24 324 -
Specialised Intangible Heritage Machinery and Biological
military assets assets assets equipment assets
Number of R1 minor assets - - - 2 -
Number of minor assets at cost - - - 18 195 -
ASSETS - - - 18 197 -

Minor assets
MOVEMENT IN MINOR ASSETS PER THE ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Specialised Intangible Heritage Machinery and Biological
military assets assets assets equipment assets
R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000
Opening balance - - - 23 640 -
Additions - - - 15 850 -
Disposals - - - 15 745 -
TOTAL MINOR ASSETS - - - 23 745 -
Specialised Intangible Heritage Machinery and Biological
military assets assets assets equipment assets
Number of R1 minor assets - - - 542 -
Number of minor assets at cost - - - 17 824 -
ASSETS - - - 18 366 -
27.4.1 Prior period error Note

Relating to 2019/20
Minor assets procured were duplicated in the prior year asset register
Total

Closing
balance

R'000

123 984

12131
54 811
53 865

3178

123 984

Total
R'000
23745
203
74 189
73813
24 324

Total

18 195
18 197

Total
R'000
23 640
15 850
15 745
23 745

Total
542
17 824
18 366

2019/20
R'000
689
689
689
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28

28,1

28,2

28,3

28,4

Immovable Tangible Capital Assets

MOVEMENT IN IMMOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

Opening Value
balance adjustments Additions Disposals
R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000
BUILDINGS AND OTHER FIXED STRUCTURES 2538 130 - 1065 191 437 964
Non-residential buildings 2538 130 1065 191 437 964
ASSETS 2538 130 - 1065 191 437 964
Additions

ADDITIONS TO IMMOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

(Capital work-in-
progress current
costs and finance

Received
current, not paid
(Paid current
year, received

Cash Non-cash lease payments) prior year

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000
BUILDINGS AND OTHER FIXED STRUCTURES 387 232 1065 191 -387 232 -
Non-residential buildings 387 232 1065 191 -387 232 -
CAPITAL ASSETS 387 232 1065191 -387 232 -

Disposals

DISPOSALS OF IMMOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

Non-cash
Sold for cash disposal Total disposals
R'000 R'000 R'000
BUILDINGS AND OTHER FIXED STRUCTURES - 437 964 437 964
Non-residential buildings - 437 964 437 964
CAPITAL ASSETS - 437 964 437 964

Movement for 2019/20

MOVEMENT IN IMMOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Closing
balance

R'000
3165 357

3165 357

3165 357

Total

R'000
1065191

1065191

1065 191

Cash received
Actual

R'000

L ]

Opening Prior period Closing
balance error Additions Disposals balance
R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000
BUILDINGS AND OTHER FIXED STRUCTURES 2258 173 - 327 543 47 586 2538 130
Non-residential buildings 2258173 327543 47 586
ASSETS 2258173 - 327 543 47 586 2538 130
Capital Work-in-progress
CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS AS AT 31 MARCH 2021
Ready for use Closing
Opening (Assets to the Balance
Balance AR) / Contracts 31 March
Note 1 April 2020  Current Year WIP terminated 2021
Annexure 4 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Buildings and other fixed structures 2 853 493 387 232 1065 191 2175534
TOTAL 2 853 493 387 232 1065 191 2175534
Age analysis on ongoing projects Number of projects 2020/21
Planned, Planned, Total
construction not construction R'000
started started
Oto 1 year - 148 55033
1 to 3 year(s) - 248 1108 575
3to 5 years - 48 676 810
Longer than 5 years - 8 335116
Total - 452 2 175534

8 construction projects are longer then 5 year as the project commenced before construction started by firstly appointing consultants and

construction commenced 2 to 3 years later based on availability of budget

2 Ngwanalsejololaitlh
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29

30

Qo

2020/21 2019/20
Payables not recognised relating to Capital WIP R'000 R'000
[Amounts relating to progress certificates received but not paid at year end and
therefore not included in capital work-in-progress] 3945 26 991
Total 3945 26 991
CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS AS AT 31 MARCH 2020
Ready for use
(Assets to the Closing
Opening Prior period AR) / Contracts Balance
Note Balance error Current Year WIP terminated 31 March 2020
Annexure 4 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Buildings and other fixed structures 2 728 269 -15 176 467 943 327 543 2 853 493
TOTAL 2728 269 -15 176 467 943 327 543 2 853 493
The closing balance was reduced by R15,176 million as this amount should have not been included in work in progress
Age analysis on ongoing projects Number of projects 2019/20
Planned, Planned, Total
construction not construction R'000
started started
0to 1 year - 196 183 533
1 to 3 year(s) - 159 1416 484
3to 5 years - 37 1215767
Longer than 5 years - 1 37 709
Total - 393 2853493
The 1 project that is longer then 5 years is due to the fact that it is a very large project and has many phases .e.g. the school, teachers
quarters and student hostels and it is for professional fees for all phases.
2020/21 2019/20
Immovable assets additional information Note
Duration of
Facilities on right to use land use Number Number
Schools Unlimited 819 745
Principal-agent arrangements
2020/21 2019/20
29,1 Department acting as the principal
R'000 R'000
SITA - -
PUBLIC WORKS AND ROADS - -
INDEPENDENT DEVELOPMENT TRUST 403 704
DEVELOPMENT BANK OF SA 2315 19 589
Total 2718 20 293
The department procures from the sita tenders but no fees are paid to the.Department of Public works implements some
schools on our behalf and to fees is paid to them.IDT charges a fee of 3% on cost of a project. DBSA is implementing
projects on behalf of the department and is charged between 6%-9% fee
There will be no ternination cost on termination of the principal agent and the retention will be disclosed in the departments
books as it is due.
For the above mentioned agents the assets held by them a bank accounts held by the agent and disclosed in there books.
Prior period errors 2019/20
Amount bef error Prior period Restated
Note correction error amount
30,1  Correction of prior period errors R’000 R’000 R’000
Revenue: (e.g. Annual appropriation, Departmental
revenue, Aid assistance, etc.)
Minor assets procured were duplicated in the prior year
asset register 27 24 434 -689 23745
Incorrectly included in WIP which should not have
been included 28 2 868 669 -15 176 2 853 493
Net effect 2893 103 -15 865 2 877 238
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